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Ventas, Inc. is @ leading healthcare real estate investment trust (REIT).
Its growing portfolio includes 519 seniors housing and healthcare-related

properties containing approximately 52,500 licensed beds and seniors
housing units, strategically located in 43 states and 2 Canadian provinces.

Ventas at a Glance

2007
Total Shareholder Return 12%
Normalized FFQO Per Share T10%
Annual Dividend Per Share T20%
Total Acquisition Activity $2.2+ billion

Ventas's Diversified Portfolio of Seniors Housing and Healthcare-Related Properties
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(in thousands, except per share amounts)
Operating Data:
Rental income $ 483,985 $ 405,952 $ 310915
Resident Fees and Services 282,226 —_ —_
Total Revenues 771,791 415,852 319,184
EBITDA’ 698,909 396,496 327,158
Normalized EBITDA? 552,431 400,709 308,310
Income from Continuing Operations
Applicable to Common Shares 141,496 125,964 119,112
Net Incame Applicable to Common Shares 277,119 131,430 130,583
Share Data:
FFO, Diluted’ $ 3.07 3 2.38 $ 2.23
Normalized FFQ, Diluted? 5 .69 $ 2.44 3 2.09
FAD, Diluted* $ 249 s 2.25 $ 1.94
Income from Centinuing Operations
Applicable to Common Shares, Diluted $ 1.15 $ 1.20 $ 1.24
Net Income Applicable 10 Common Shares, Dituted $ 2.25 $ 1.25 $ 1.36
Dividends Paid for Year s 1.90 b 1.58 $ 1.44
Weighted Average Shares Qutstanding, Diluted 123,012 104,731 95,775
Closing Stock Price s 45.25 s 42.32 $ 32.02
Shares Qutstanding 133,651 106,137 103,523
Other Data:
Equity Market Capitalization $6,047,698 $4,491,718 $3,314,806
Total Capitalization $9,395,374 $6,828,707 45.112,370
Debv/Total Capitalization 35.6% 34.2% 35.2%

1 Earnings before interest (including gain of loss on extinguishment of debt and swap breakage), taxes, depreciation, amortization and non-cash
stock-based compensation, including amounts in discontinued operations.

2 Normalized EBITDA. EBITDA excluding: (a) gain on fareign currency hedge in 2007; (o) preferred stock dividends and issuance costs in 2007; {c)
merger-related expanses i1 2007; {d) net gain on sale of marketable equity securities in 2007 and 2006; (e) rent reset costs in 2006; {f) reversal of
contingent kiability in 2005; (g) net proceeds from litigation setifement in 2005; (h) contribution to charitable foundation in 2005; () net loss on
real estate disposal in 20C5; and {j) gain on sa'e of real estate assets in 2007 and 2005.

3 Funds from Operations. .
Normalized FFO. FFO excluding: (a) gain of loss on extinguishment of debt; (b} gain on foreign currency hedge in 2007; {c) preferred stock issuance
costs in 2007; (d) bridge koan fees in 2007 and 2005; (e) merger-related expenses in 2007; {f) income tax benefil in 2007: {g) net gain on sale of
marketable equity securities in 2007 and 2006: (h) rent resel costs in 2006; {i) reversal of contingent liability in 2006; () net proceeds from litigation
settlernent in 2005; {k} cantribution to charitable foundation in 2005; and {I) net gain on swap breakage in 2005.

5  Funds Available for Distribution. FAD represents normalized FFO exchuding straight-fine rental adjustments and capital expenditures.

For non-GAAP recondiliation, see “Supplemental Data” on page 8.
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Debra A. Cafaro

Dear Fellow Stakeholder,

We are pleased to report another excellent year of

performance and strategy as we grow our highly diversified

Company that is positioned to remain a leader in seniors
housing and healthcare real estate. While delivering
shareholder return of 12 percent, Ventas also evolved

dramatically in 2007 with our major Sunrise RET acquisition
as we continue to build a sustainable, profitable enterprise.

As promised, we have succeeded in significantly diversifying

our revenue streams into a desirable mix of high-quality

tenants, multiple private pay and government reimbursed

asset classes, and different geographies. And we have

given our business further dimension and growth potential

by adding operating businesses in seniors housing and
medical office buildings (MOBs) to our stable, growing
base of triple-net leased assets.

Qur success in 2007 derives from the same atiributes
that have helped us build a leading enterprise:

« Disciplined diversification of our assets and tenants
¢ Cash flow growth

» Balance sheet strength and flexibility

* Systematic, deliberate reduction of enterprise risk

« Integrity, consistency and commitment from
our management team

* Focus on stakeholders

The rigorous execution of our strategy has enabled
us to continue to cutperform and deliver superior
risk-adjusted returns in a variety of economic, capital
market and reimbursement cycles.
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Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Sunrise Senior Living REIT - A Defining Moment
The highlight of 2007 was our successful $2 billion
acquisition of 79 high-quality private pay independent
and assisted living assets in the United States and
Canada from Sunrise Senior Living REIT. From the start -
when we announced the transaction in January of
2007 - we believed that Sunrise REIT would be an
extraordinary acquisition that would improve the overall
quality of our porifolio, increase our private pay revenue
base, extend our diversification strategy into international
markets and provide us with the potential for higher
future growth. And that has been the case.

The unigue structure of the Sunrise REIT acquisition enables
Ventas to receive the direct benefit of the net operating
income (NOI) from our communities rather than a fixed
fease payment from a corporate tenant. These cash flows
are paid directly to Ventas by 7,000 seniors, providing
apartment-like diversification - and healthy growth

potential — to Ventas's revenue base.

Seniors Housing and
MOB Operating Assets

45%

Two Dimensions
of Qur Portfolio
1

Other
VTR Revenue

55%




Sunrise of Exton
Aasisted Living Community
Exion, PA

In the last year, we have successfully integrated into our
portfolio these excellant communities, which are managed
by Sunrise Senior Living, Inc. (NYSE:SRZ) (*Sunrise”). They
are distinguished by their award-winning “mansion”
architectural design, locations in major metropolitan
markets with excellent age and income characteristics

and significant barriers to entry, and delivery of a quality
fiving experience to seniors who require assistance with
tasks of daily living.

Qur Sunrise mansiors have produced the NOI and
occupancy levels we had predicted, and impontantly,
by year-end, our private pay revenues accounted for
69 percent of our arnualized revenues. Adding these
properties to our already highly productive portfolio has
elevated Ventas into new territory, making us a better,
stronger company.

The Sunrise REIT acquisition also carried us into international
markets, with 12 independent and assisted living assets

in Ontario and British Columbia. We like the Canadian
seniors housing market because its economy has different
drivers than ours, it has the biggest baby boom population
in the world, and the private pay seniors housing model

is gaining rapid acceptance by consumers. As a resuit,
we see ample prospects for significant growth in the
Canadian seniors hotising market.

A final important grcwth component of the Sunrise REIT
acquisition is our exclusive option to acquire brand new
communities developed by Sunrise throughout Canada
and in defined geographical areas surrounding our
domestic Sunrise communities.

The Sunrise REIT acquisition — from start to finish - is a
classic example of the way Ventas operates. We articulated
our goals, identified a transaction to achieve those
goals, worked creatively and

tirelessly with the best advisors Percentage of Canadian

and internal talent to design Population Over 65
a structure that enabled us i

to seize the opportunity,

underwrote the cash flows %%

carefully, outlined the risks and

rewards to aur stakeholders, %

protected our right to complete

the Sunrise REIT acquisition, 3% 1 75.6%
worked closely with our Board n2%

to maintain discipline, and % 1

executed with singular focus. 126%

Another part of our corporate 10% 1

DNA is to acknowledge and 0%

protect the downside, While W00 2006 205
completing the Sunrise REIT
acquisition, we saw reduced
liquidity and increasing cost
of funds affecting the debt market. Acting quickly,

we completed the largest RETT follow-on equity offering

in history, raising $1.1 billion within weeks after closing
the Sunrise REIT transaction. We used the proceeds to repay
all of the acquisition’s short-term financing with permanent
capital. Our timing was prescient. We weathered the
summer’s rapidly deteriorating equity and credit markets
from a position of strength. Moreover, we funded the
batance of our 2007 acquisitions through the opportunistic
sale of assets owned by our tenant Kindred Healthcare,
Inc. (NYSE:KND) (“Kindred*} at attractive rates, further
protecting our balance sheet and eliminating any need to
tap the capitat markets during a particularty volatile period.

Canadian and U.S. Baby Boom
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Building Shareholder Value Year After Year

Ventas Outperformance

1-Year 3-Year 5-Year 10-Year

VTR é\nnualized Returf'n

MSCI US REIT Index Annualized Return

{16.8%) 8.2% 17.9% 10.4%

VTR Rank Among MSCI US REIT Index

VTR Q;ujperformance vs!. MSCl US REIT Index

2,880bps

2nd 2nd 3rd 4ath
1.570bps 2.070bps

Healthcare REITs Annualized Return

2.9% 15.6% 257% 13.8%

VTR Rank Among Healthcare REITs

1st 1st 2nd 15t

VTR Outperformance vs:. Healthcare REITs

Source: Morgan Stanley ressarch dated Janvary 2, 2008

Long-Term, Consistent Excellence

Al Ventas, we want to end every year as a better company
than we were a1 the beginning and create value for our
shareholders. We invest in the future, but also realize that
our stakeholders are entitled to current performance too,
so we try 10 make decisions that achieve both objectives.
Despite volatile and difficult market conditions in 2007,
we delivered 12 percent total return to shareholders,
versus a NEGATIVE 17 percent for REITs as a whole.
Our normalized 2007 Funds from Operations (FFO)

per share grew 10 percent to $2.69, and our dividend
increased 20 percent to $1.90 per share.

Our job is 1o deliver consistent excellent performance o
our stakeholders, and indeed we have. During EACH of
the last one-year, three-year, five-year and ten-year periods,
we were among the top 5 perferming REITS within the
overall REIT universe of about 100 companies. We are
the only REIT to achieve that distinction.

Six Consecutive Years of Double-Digit Growth
|

$2.75 $2.69

$2.40 1

$2.05 1

$1.70 A

$1.35 +

£1.00

000 2002 2003 2004 005 2006 2007
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1.290bps

Qur strategy remains to create an excellent company that
owns a high-quality portfolio of diversified seniors housing
and healthcare assets that will deliver superior, consisient
cash flow growth, operale in multiple segments and
evidence lower overall risk. We want Ventas (o be a
sustainable, profitable institution that is more than the
sum of our assets or our deals and that does not depend
on any cne individual for success.

We believe in the size, strength and potential for growth
in the healthcare and seniors housing sector of real
estate, This is particularly true as healthcare REITs use
their increasing scale, industry expertise, contacts and
sophistication to expand their platforms, differentiate
strategies and tap into this important part of our economy
and daily lives.

The demand for healthcare and seniors housing is growing
inexorably, as healthcare expenditures trend to 20 percent
of gross domestic product (GDP). This powerful macro
trend should follow from the explosion in the over-75
population coupled with the leading edge of the baby
boomers turning 65 and becoming Medicare-eligible in
2011, Most of our assets are need-based, with relatively
inelastic demand, making them less subject to recessionary
influences. In other assets, such as private pay independent
living, market penetration is still quite low, and should
expand as more seniors and their families acknowledge
the benefits of communal senior living.

Normalized FFO per Diluted Share
grew 0% in 2007.




National Health Expenditures as Percent of Gross Domestic Product (1980-2015)
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Focus on MOB Strategy

An important component of our growth and diversification
strategy will be to add more MOBs to our portfolio.

The MOB business is characterized by predictable, stable
rents, high tevels of tenant retention, and increasing
demand. With over $150 million in investments, we made
significant and steady progress with our MOB acquisition
strategy in 2007. We now own over 1 million square

feet of MOBSs,

We have also established important partnerships with
several MOB regional developer managers to position
ourselves for propriezary deal flow and development
opportunities. We ertered 2008 with a good pipeline
and excellent opportunities in the MOB space.

We favor the MOB asset class because it has excellent
fundamentals, MOBs cater to aging baby hoomers whe,
as they reach 65, will confront more health issues, will
increasingly see their physicians and will become Medicare
eligible, which means doctor visits are government paid.
Also, federal healthcare policy favors delivery of healthcare
in the [owest cost, most clinically appropriate setting.
Because of notable improvements in technology, less
invasive surgical procedures and other advances, patient

care that previously was provided within a hospital now
frequently occurs in an MOB.

Because the MOB market is huge — estimates run as
high as $250 billion — and highly fragmented, we see
considerable opportunities for growth.

Most MOBs are owned by for-profit and not-for-profit
hospital systems, which are beginning to see the benefit
of monetizing their buildings to meet extensive capital
expenditure needs and free up cash to use in more
productive and strategic ways. They can redeploy the
proceeds from a sale of their MOBs to purchase new
technology, add hospital bed capacity, maintain existing
facilities in excellent shape, or even pay down debt.
Increasingly sophisticated hospital finance executives do
not want to tie up their balance sheet with real estate
assets, and recognize that REITs are more efficient holders
of MOBs. This trend should accelerate the sale of MOBs
from hospital systems, and we intend to play a role in
this transfer of assets.

Finally, hospitals are incented to eliminate management
and control of MOBs due to restrictions imposed by
federal laws, These rules are designed o insure that
interactions between hospitals and physicians occur at

MOB Transaction Volume

$6,000 - §5.284
45,000
CAGR '00-07: 36% $4.206
g $4,000 -
Zg $3,030
- 0 2.2
$2,000 4 §1,543
$967
1,000 4 622 $792
o1 1 1
2000 2000 007 2004 1007 Ann.

Sowrce: BOMA, 2007 Medical Office Building and Healthcare Facliities Saminar

Chairman’s Letter 2007 ventas, ing.




"arms length” independent market terms, Hospitals know
that they eliminate regulatory exposure when a bona fide
third party, like Ventas, owns and operates their MOBs
and handles all real estate dealings with their physicians.

We are committed to building an MOB business that is
well-positioned 1o capitalize on these long-term trends, as
hospital systems accelerate divestiture of their MOB assets,

Ratings Upgrade and Dividend Increase

2008 started with exceptionally positive news when
Standard & Poor’s credit rating agency gave us our second
investment grade rating {BBB-), which should reduce our
borrowing costs, an essential ingredient for future success.
Even more essential: investment grade rated companies
should have access to capital even in a dislocated credit
market, We believe access to credit will be a defining
issue in 2008.

We recognized during the recent years of excess liquidity
and easy credit that the debt rarkets would reverse.
Rather than just enjoy the good times, we were disciplined
and made conscious decisions to position ourselves to be
strong when credit tightened. The benelits of our actions
are already apparent in the current credit crunch.

We also started 2008 with a decision to share our success
with our shareholders by increasing our dividend by

B percent to an annualized rate of $2.05 per share. We
have continued to maintain a conservative payout ratio
even as our dividend growth remains above average.
This makes your dividend more secure and positions us
for continued dividend growth.

2008 - Looking Ahead

Our 2008 outlock is cautious but optimistic. We are
focused on liquidity, safety and opportunity, in that
order. Many observers believe that real estate is in a period
of pricing reevaluation and that the housing correction is

spreading to commercial real estate. Healthcare real estate
values have held up well, supported by excellent funda-
mentals and cash flow yields that remain more attractive
than those available from other real estate sectors.

| am convinced there is no better sector in real estate
than seniors housing and healthcare. The benefits of our
business - driven by the aging population, increasing
market acceptance of seniors housing, and the growing
needs for healthcare - should outweigh the negative macro
economic and market trends affecting asset valuations,
demand and financing costs. | expect our cash flows to
continue to grow during 2008 due 10 our business mode!
founded on long-term triple-net leases, the recession-
resistant character of our sector, and the reliability of

our operating cash flows.

The more sobering issue is the debt market dislocation
that began in 2007 and has deepened in 2008. We do
not betieve normalcy will return to the credit markets for
some time. We expect waves of write-downs and distress
10 continue as massive de-leveraging takes place. This
process will feed on itself and limit the willingness and
ability of traditional institutions to lend until they sell off
the debt they hold on their balance sheets and see a floor
in debt valuations.

Consequently, our highest priority is to remain liquid,
financially strong and flexible. To execute on this prionity,
we raised $200 million in permanent equity capital during
the first quarter of 2008 and also increased our debt
capacity by expanding our revolving credit facilities to
$850 million from $600 miltion. At this time, we have
substantially all of that credit capacity available to us and
manageable forward debt maturities.

While we remain cautious, we also intend to execule
our business plan in a2 measured and deliberate way.
The platform we have built should give us a compelitive

Strong Demographic Trends Will Drive Healthcare Real Estate Demand
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advantage in growing our business and increasing our cash
flow through new investments, Additionally, our strong
balance sheet and investment grade ratings should allow
us 1o raise capital at acceptable rates and we have built
significant liquidity to pursue appropriate opportunities.
We also expect 1o see a less competitive market for
investments as highly leveraged buyers are sidelined by
the unavailability of debt financing.

The current environment should provide us with excellent
opportunities 10 make outsized risk-adjusted returns for
our shareholders. The fundamental challenge in 2008
will be to make the right decisions about what to
buy, when to buy and what to pay, in a context where
there is little gquidance on pricing and no visibifity

on future conditions.

In all events, we intend to remain a leader in healthcare
real estate.

Relentless and Committed

Every year | am amazed at how hard the Ventas team
waorks, and last year was extraordinary in that respect.
t was privileged in 2007 10 lead a group of skilled,
focused and collaborative colleagues.

Qur Company’s achievements reflect nothing if not the
Ventas team’s uncompromising and unified efforts to do
our collective best for our shareholders. No one could
wish for better partners than those | have at Ventas,
incuding Ray Lewis, Rick Riney, Rick Schweinhart, Brian
Wood and Tim Doman, ail of whom have been together
for over five years. We have a team-based approach to
excellence throughout the organization, and we operate
as a cohesive group focused on building value for

our shareholders.

2007 was a significant year for expanding our infrastructure
and intellectual capital. Investments in our business were
necessary due to the acquisition of Sunrise RE{T, expansion
of our MOB operating business, and our first international
investment. During the year, | was proud to announce
several important promotions and management additions
that enhance the hard work and excellent thinking that
have become synonymous with our management team.

Earning and keeping your trust has ahways been essential
10 our management team. Through open and honest
communication, transparency and accountability, we hope
10 maintain your confidence.

Recognizing our commitment to shareholders, institutional
Shareholder Services (1S5) has awarded Ventas a 99th
percentile governance rating, putting us in the top 1 percent
of our peer companies for the 4th consecutive year.

Your independent Board of Directors has been a major
source of our growth and progress. Through their different
perspectives, support, guidance and experience, each
Board member contributes meaningfully to our strategy
and decisions. | seek their input, value their insights,
respect their hard work, and benefit from their insistence
that we constantly improve and stay ahead of the curve,
Especially in this challenging time, our shareholders should
take great comfort in the composition and engagement of
our Board. In early 2008, we were delighted to welcome
two well-regarded hospital executives to our Board of
Directors. Jarmes D. ("Denny”) Shelton and Robert D. Reed
will enhance our excellent Board with their industry
knowledge and experience.

| continue to learn and grow, and | am humbled by the
opportunities | have enjoyed since joining the Company
in 1999, Building a quality team and keeping everyone
working toward the same goals remains a source of great
personal and professional pride and satisfaction. t must
add that maintaining a candid dialogue with stakeholders,
holding ourselves accountable, and delivering exceptional
returns are truly their own reward.

We are cognizant that our excellent track record does
not assure continued success, and that current market
conditions or unexpected developments could interrupt
our forward progress. In 2008, we intend to be cohesive,
vigilant and vigorous to retain our edge.

1 remain fundamentally optimistic about Venias’s future and
prospects despite the strains evident in today’s economy
and capital markets, We are well positioned - from an
asset quality, human capital and liquidity standpoint -

to thrive and take advantage of opportunities quickly
and decisively. With your trust and support, we will work
hard to continue our position as a leader in the REIT
industry, enhance the sustainability and excellence of our
enterprise, and execute on our strategic business goals
for your benefit.

Sincerely,

Debra A. Cafaro
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

March 24, 2008

This letter is subject to, and incorporates by reference,
our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission,
including our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2007.
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Supplemental Data

Funds from Operations {FFO), Normalized FFO and Funds Available for Distribution (FAD)

Per diluted share

Far the Years Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005
(in thousands, except per share Smunu)
Net income applicable to common shares $277.119 $131,430 $130,583 $225 $1.25 $ 1.36
Adjustments:
Real estate depreciation and amortization 232,952 115,788 84,877 1.89 1.1 0.89
Real estate depreciation related 10 minority interest (3.749) - - 0.03) - -
Net loss on real estate disposal - - 175 - - -
Discontinued operations;
Gain on sale of real estate assets (129,478} - (5,114) {1.05) - (0.05)
Depreciation on real esiale assets 812 2,450 2,682 0.0 0.02 0.03
FFO applicable to comman shares 377,656 249,668 213,203 3.07 2.38 2.23
Gain on foreign currency hedge (24,314) - - {0.20) -
Preferred stock issuance costs 1,750 - - 0.01 - -
Bridge loan fee 2,550 - 402 0.02 - -
Merger-related expenses 2,879 - - 0.02 - -
Income tax benefit (29,095) - - (0.24) - -
{Gain} loss on extinguishment of debt (88} 1,273 1,376 - 0.01 0.0
Net gain on sale of marketable equity securities {864) {1,379) - ©.01) {0.01) -
Rent reset costs - 7,361 - - 0.07 -
Reversal of contingent liabitity - {1,769) - - (0.02) -
Net proceeds from litigation settlement - - (15,909 - - (0.16)
Contribution to charitable foundation - - 2,000 - - 0.02
Net gain on swap breakage - - {981) - - (0.0)
Normalized FFO 330,574 255,154 200,091 2.69 2.44 2.09
Straight-lining of rental income (17,311} (19,963) {14,287) 0.14) {0.19) (0.15}
Capital expenditures (6,372 (368) (25} {0.05) - -
FAD $306,891 $234,823 $185,779 $ 2.49 $225 $1.94

Historical cost accounting for real estate assets implicitly assumes that the value of real estate assets diminishes predictably over time. Since real estate values instead have historically
risen or fallen with market conditions, mary industry investors have considened presentations of operating results for real estate companiss that use historical cost accounting to be
insufficient by themsedves. To overcome this problem, we consider FFO and FAD appropriate measures of performance of an equity RE, and we use the NAREIT definition of FFO.
NAREIT defines FFO as net income (omputed in accorgance with GAAP), exduding gains or losses from sales of real esiate property, p'us real estate depreciation and amostization,
and after adjustrnents for unconsalidated partnerships and joint ventures, FAD represents normalized FFO excluding siraight-ine rental adjusiments and capital expenditures,

Earnings before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation, Amortization and Non-Cash Stock-Based Compensation (EBITDA) and Normalized EBTDA

For the Years Ended December N, 2007 2006 2005
{in thousands}
Net income applicable to common shares $277.119 $131,430 $130,583
Add back:
Interest 204,218 136,544 100,431
Depreciation and amortization 234,061 117472 85,319
Non-cash stock-based compensatior: 7.493 3,046 1,971
Net gain on swap breakage - - (981)
{(Gain) loss on extinguishment of debt {8B) 1,273 1,376
Taxes (26,992) - -
Discontinued operations add back: - -
Interest 2,115 4,550 5.777
Depreciation and amortization 983 2,481 2.682
EBITDA 698,909 396,496 327,158
Adjustments;
Gain on foreign currency hedge (24,314) - -
Preferred stock dividends and ssuance costs 5,199 - -
Merger-related expenses 2,979 -
Net gain on sale of marketable equity securities (864) {1,379) -
Rent reset costs - 7,361 -
Reversal of contingent liability - {1,769) -
Net proceeds from litigation settlermnent - - {15,909}
Contribution to charitable foundation - - 2,000
Net loss on real estate disposal - - 175
Discontinued operations:
Gain on sale of real estate assets {129,478) - (5,114)
Normalized EBITDA $552,431 $400,709 $308,310

We consider EBITDA a profitability measure which indicates our ability to service debt. Normalized EBITDA exdudes income and expense iterms that are nonrecurring in our core business.

FFO, FAD and EBMDA presented hereln are not negessarily comparable to simiar measures used by other companies due to the fact that not all companies use the same definitions.
FFQ, FAD and EBITDA should not be considered as alternalives to net income {determined in accordance with GAAP) as indicators of our financial performance or as alternatives

to cash flow from operating activities {determined in accordance with GAAP) as measures of our iiquidity, nor are FFO, FAD and EBITDA necessanily indicative of sufficient cash flow
10 fund all of our needs. In order o facilitate a clear understanding of our consolidated historical operating results, FFO, FAD and EBITDA should be examined in conjunclion with

net income as presented in our Consolidated Financial Staterments,
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS

Unless otherwise indicated or except where the context otherwise requires, the terms “we,” “us” and “our”
and other similar terms in this Annual Repont on Form 10-K refer to Ventas, Inc. and its consolidated
subsidiaries.

Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K includes “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended (the “Exchange Act”). All statements regarding our expected future financial position, results of
operations, cash flows, funds from operations, dividends and dividend plans, financing plans, business strategy,
budgets, projected costs, capital expenditures, competitive positions, acquisitions, investment opportunities,
merger integration, growth opportunities, expected lease income, continued qualification as a real estate
investment trust (“REIT"), plans and objectives of management for future operations and statements that include
words such as “anticipate,” “if,” “believe,” “plan,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “may,” “could,” “should,”
“will" and other similar expressions are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are
inherently uncertain, and security holders must recognize that actual results may differ from our expectations.
We do not undertake a duty to update these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date on
which they are made.

Our actual future results and trends may differ materially depending on a variety of factors discussed in our
filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”). Factors that may affect our plans or
results include without limitation:

* The ability and willingness of our operators, tenants, borrowers, managers and other third parties, as
applicable, to meet and/or perform the obligations under their various contractual arrangements with us;

* The ability and willingness of Kindred Healthcare, Inc. {together with its subsidiaries, “Kindred™),
Brookdale Living Communities, Inc. (together with its subsidiaries, “Brookdale”) and Alterra
Healthcare Corporation (together with its subsidiaries, “Alterra”) to meet andfor perform their
obligations to indemnify, defend and hold us harmless from and against various claims, litigation and
liabilities under our respective contractual arrangements with Kindred, Brookdale and Alterra;

» The ability of our operators, tenants, borrowers and managers, as applicable, to maintain the financial
strength and liquidity necessary to satisfy their respective obligations and liabilities to third parties,
including without limitation obligations under their existing credit facilities;

*  Our success in implementing our business strategy and our ability to identify, underwrite, finance,
consummate and integrate diversifying acquisitions or investments, including those in different asset
types and outside the United States;

¢  The nature and extent of future competiticn;

* The extent of future or pending healthcare reform and regulation, including cost containment measures
and changes in reimbursement policies, procedures and rates;

* Increases in our cost of borrowing;

* The ability of our operators and managers, as applicable, to deliver high quality services, to attract and
retain qualified personnel and to attract residents and patients;

« The results of litigation affecting us;

* Changes in general economic conditions and/or cconomic conditions in the markets in which we may,
from time to time, compete;

*  Qur ability to pay down, refinance, restructure and/or extend our indebtedness as it becomes duc;




» The movement of interest rates and the resulting impact on the value of and the accounting for our
interest rate swap agreement;

+  QOur ability and willingness to maintain our qualification as a REIT due to economic, market, legal, tax
or other considerations;

» Final determination of our taxable net income for the year ended December 31, 2007 and for the year
ending December 31, 2008,

+ The ability and willingness of our tenants to renew their leases with us upon expiration of the leases and
our ability to relct our properties on the same or better terms in the event such leases expire and are not
renewed by the existing tenants;

+ Risks associated with our acquisition of Sunrise Senior Living Real Estate Investment Trust (“Sunrise
REIT"), including the timely delivery of accurate property-level financial results for our properties and
our ability to timely and fully realize the expected revenues and cost savings therefrom;

» Factors causing volatility in our revenues generated by our seniors housing communities managed by
Sunrise Senjor Living, Inc. (together with its subsidiaries, “Sunrise”), including without limitation
nationa] and regional economic conditions, costs of materials, energy, labor and services, employee
benefit costs and professional and general liability claims;

+ The movement of U.S, and Canadian exchange rates:

s Year-over-year changes in the Consumer Price Index and the effect of those changes on the rent
escalators, including the rent escalator for Master Lease 2 with Kindred, and our eamings;

¢ The impact on the liquidity, financial condition and results of operations of our operators, tenants,
bommowers and managers, as applicable, resulting from increased operating costs and uninsured liabilities
for professional liability claims, and the ability of our operators, tenants, borrowers and managers to
accurately estimate the magnitude of these liabilities; and

+ The impact of the Sunrise strategic review process and accounting, legal and regulatory issues.

Many of these factors, some of which we describe in greater detail in Part 1, ltem 1A of this Annual Report
on Formz 10-K, are beyond our control and the control of our management.

Kindred and Brookdale Senior Living Information

Each of Kindred and Brookdale Senior Living Inc. (together with its subsidiaries, which include Brookdale
and Alierra, “Brookdale Senior Living™) is subject 1o the reporting requirements of the Commission and is
required to file with the Commission annual reports containing audited financial information and quarterly
reports containing unaudited financial information. The information related to Kindred and Brookdale Senior
Living contained or referred to in this Annual Report on Form 10-K is derived from filings made by Kindred or
Brookdale Senior Living, as the case may be, with the Commission or other publicly available information, or
has been provided to us by Kindred or Brookdale Senior Living. We have not verified this information either
through an independent investigation or by reviewing Kindred's or Brookdale Senior Living’s public filings. We
have no reason to believe that this information is inaccurate in any material respect, but we cannot assure you
that all of this information is accurate. Kindred’s and Brookdale Senior Living's filings with the Commission can
be found at the Commission’s website at www.sec.gov. We are providing this data for informational purposes
only, and you are encouraged to obtain Kindred’s and Brookdale Senior Living's publicly available filings from
the Commission.




Sunrise Information

Sunrise is subject to the reporting requirements of the Commission and is required to file with the
Commission annual reports containing audited financial information and quarterly reports containing unaudited
financial information. According to public disclosures, Sunrise has not been timely filing such required reports
and is currently experiencing certain legal, accounting and regulatory difficulties. On July 25, 2007, Sunrise
announced that its board of directors had decided to explore strategic alternatives intended to enhance
sharcholder value, including a possible sale of Sunrise. Sunrise has also announced that it intends to file its
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the ycar ended December 31, 2006 no later than March 17, 2008, although
there can be no assurance it will do so. If Sunrise does not so file, its shares will likely be delisted from the New
York Stock Exchange. We cannot predict what impact, if any, the outcomes of these uncertainties will have on
Sunrise’s financial condition or ability to manage our senior living operations. You are encouraged to obtain
additional information related to Sunrise at the Commission’s website at www.sec.gov.

Certain Information Regarding ElderTrust Operating Limited Partnership

Not later than the deadline prescribed by the Exchange Act, we will cause ElderTrust Operating Limited
Parmership (“ETOP”) to file an Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007. ETOP’s
Annual Report, upon filing, shall be deemed incorporated by reference in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.




Iiem 1.
Ilem 1A,
Iiem 1B.
ltem 2.
Item 3.
Item 4.

ftem 5.

Item 6.
Item 7.

Item 7A.

Item 8.
Item 9.

Item 9A.

Item 9B.

Item 10,
Item 1.
Item 12.

Item 13.
Item 14,

Item 15.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PARTI
533 T
RIS FaCIOTS + o oottt et e it e e e e
Unresolved Staff Comments ......... ... ittt et i,
PrOPeItiEs o . . e e e
Legal Proceedings .. ..o vvnninnt it ettt e
Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Helders .. ........oo v ivn i
PART I

Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of

EQUity SECURLIES oo v vvt v vttt i i i
Selected Financial Data . . ...... ... i i i ittt st
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations .. . ...
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk .............. e
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data .. ... covvv it i e
Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure ... ..
Controls and PrOCEAUIES ... v o ivnre et vea e aaaaas e iaas s st st e ananranas
L0 T 1T 11 v T S e

PART II1

Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance ... iienn.
EXecutive COMPENSAON . . ... u ittt iaesastrsiieannssnnaate s aneantoianns

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder

o (=2 130
Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence .................
Principal Accountant Fees and Services .......coviti i iinrennnrrran i

PART IV
Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules . .. ... .. it i ittt

iv




PART1
ITEM 1. Business

BUSINESS

Qverview

We are a REIT with a geographically diverse portfolio of seniors housing and healthcare-related properties
in the United States and Canada. As of December 31, 2007, this portfolio consisted of 519 assets: 253 seniors
housing communities, 197 skilled nursing facilities, 42 hospitals and 27 medical office and other properties in 43
states and two Canadian provinces, including 77 seniors housing communities we acquired from Sunrise REIT
on April 26, 2007. With the exception of our medical office buildings (“MOBs") and 79 of our seniors housing
communities that are managed by Sunrise pursuant to long-term management agreements, we lease these
properties to healthcare operating companies under “triple-net” or “absolute-net” leases, which require the
tenants to pay all property-related expenses. We also had real estate loan investments relating to sentors housing
and healthcare-related third parties as of December 31, 2007,

We conduct substantially all of our business through our wholly owned subsidiaries, Ventas Realty, Limited
Partnership, PSLT OP, L.P. and Ventas SSL, Inc., and ETOP, in which we own substantially all of the
partnership units. Qur primary business consists of financing, owning and leasing seniors housing and healthcare-
related properties and leasing or subleasing those properties to third parties or operating those properties through
independent third party managers.

We were incorporated in Kentucky in 1983, commenced operations in 1985 and reorganized as a Delaware
corporation in 1987. We operate through two reportable business segments: triple-net leased properties and
senior living operations. See our Consolidated Financial Statements and the related notes, including “Note 2—
Accounting Policies,” included in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Our business strategy is comprised of two primary objectives: (1) diversifying our portfolio of properties
and (2) increasing our eamnings. We intend to continue to diversify our real estate portfolio by operator, property
type, geography and reimbursement source through investments in, and acquisitions and/or development of,
additonal seniors housing and/or healthcare-related assets across a wide spectrum.

Portfolio of Properties

As of December 31, 2007; we had a 100% ownership interest in 451 of our properties, consisting of 192
seniors housing communities, 42 hospitals, 197 skilled nursing facilities and 20 other properties; we had a 75%
10 85% ownership interest in 61 seniors housing communities, with the minority interest in those communities
being owned by Sunrise; and we had a majority ownership interest in seven MOBs, with the mincerity interest in
those properties ranging from less than 1% to less than 9% being owned by three different partners that provide
management and leasing services for the properties.




The following table provides an overview of our portfolio of properties and other real estaie investments as
of and for the year ended December 31, 2007:

Real Estate
#of Percentof Renl Estgte  Percentof  Investment Number
fof Beds/ Tota) Investments, Real Estate Per of
Portfolio by Type Properties Units Revenue Revenues at Cost Investments Bed/Unit  Locations (1)
(Dollars In thousands)
Seniors Housing and
Healthcere-Related
Properties
Seniors housing
communities ., ....... 253, 24,113 $483378 62.7% $4,842,211 76.9% $200.8 36
Skilled nursing
facilities 197 24577 175217 2.7 873,958 139 356 29
Hospitals .. 42 3,844 92,020 11.9 368,856 59 96.0 18
MOBs(2) .... 19 nm 14619 1.9 198,203 32 nm 8
Orher properties ........ 8 122 917 0.1 7.137 0.1 58.5 1
Totaf seniors housing
and healthcare-
related .
properties ....... 519 52,656 $§766.211 99.3% $6,290,365 100.0% a5
Other Real Estate
Investments
Loans receivable ....... 4 290 2,586 03
Totad ............ 523 52.946 $768.797 99.6%(3)

|
|
u

(1) As of December 31, 2007, we owned seniors housing and healthcare-related properties located in 43 states
and two Canadian provinces. These properties were operated or managed by 21 different operators or third-
party managers.

(2) As of December 31, 2007, sixteen of our MOBs were operated by third-party managers and three were
under triple-net leases.

(3) The remainder of our total revenues is interest and other income.

nm - not meaningful

Seniors Housing and Healthcare-Related Properties

Seniors Housing Communities. Our seniors housing communities include independent and assisted living
communities, and communities providing care for individuals with Alzheimer’s and other forms of memory loss.
These communities offer residential units on a month-to-month basis primarily to elderly individuals requiring
various levels of assistance. Basic services for residents of these communities include housekeeping, meals in a
central dining area and group activities organized by the staff with input from the residents. More exiensive care
and personal supervision, at additional fees, are also available for such needs as eating, bathing, grooming,
transportation, limited therapeutic programs and medication administration, all of which encourage the residents
10 live as independently as possible according to their abilities. These services are often met by home health
providers, close coordination with the resident’s physician and skilled nursing facilities.

Skilled Nursing Facilities. Our skilled nursing facilities typically provide nursing carc services o the
elderly and rehabilitation and restoration services, including physical, eccupational and speech therapics, and
other medical treatment for patients and residents who do not require the high technology, care-intensive setting
of an acute care or rehabilitation hospital.

Hospitals. Our hospitals generally are long-term acute care hospitals that serve medically complex,
chronically ill patients who require a high level of monitoring and specialized care, but whose conditions do not
necessitate the continued services of an intensive care unit. The operator of these hospitals has the capability to
treat patients who suffer from multiple systemic failures or conditions such as neurological disorders, head
injuries, brain stem and spinal cord trauma, cerebral vascular accidents, chemical brain injuries, central nervous
system disorders, developmental anomalies and cardiopulmonary disorders. Chronic patients are often dependent
on technology for continued life support, such as mechanical ventilators, total parenteral nutrition, respiration or
cardiac monitors and dialysis machines, and, therefore, due to their severe medical conditions, these paticnts
generally are not clinically appropriate for admission to a nursing facility or rehabilitation hospital.
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Medical Office Buildings. Our medical office buildings offer office space primarily to physicians and
other healthcare-related businesses.

Other Properties. Our other properties consist of personal care facilities, which provide specialized care,
including supported living services, neurorehabilitation, neurobehavioral management and vocational programs,
for persons with acquired or traumatic brain injury.

Orther Real Estate Invesiments

As of December 31, 2007, our other real estate investments consisted of three first mortgage loans, secured
by four properties, in the outstanding aggregate principal amount of $20.1 miltion.

Each first mortgage loan accrues interest at a rate of 9% per annum and provides for monthly amortization
of principal with a balloon payment maturity date ranging between April and July 2010. One of these loans is
guaranteed by a third party, unrelated to the borrower, and its two principals. The remaining two loans are
guaranteed by an affiliate of the borrower and its two principals.

See “Note 8—Loans Receivable™ of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part {1,
Itemn 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K,

Geographic Diversification

Our portfolio of seniors housing and healthcare-related properties is broadly diversified by geographic
location in the United States and Canada, with properties in two states comprising more than 10% of our 2007
total revenues, The following table shows our rental income and resident fees and services derived by geographic
location for our portfolio of properties:

For the Year Ended
December 31, 2007
Rental income and
Resident Fees and Percent of
Services Total Revenues
{Doliars ip thousands)
Geographic Location
Caltfornia ... ... it i e i e $100,479 13.0%
NOMS . oot e 83,694 10.8
Massachusetls . ... oo oo i e e e 49,709 6.4
Pennsylvania . ...ttt i e 43332 5.6
Florda ..ottt it e tta e e e 34,398 4.5
Newlersey ..., e 32,908 4.3
L1 T 28,662 3.7
Kentucky ..o i e e . 25088 . 33
NorthCarolina .........ccoiiiiiienin it iiieiinnnrnans 24,899 32
L e o 24,662 . 32
Other (33 s1B1ES) ... ... cuiiie ettt 271,488 35.2
Total U.S i i it et 719,319 93.2%
Canada (two Canadian provinces) ...........ooiiiian.... 46,892 6.1
117 A PP $766,211 99.3%(1)

(1) The remainder of our total revenues is interest from loans receivable and interest and other income,




Segment Information

As of December 31, 2007, we operated through two reportable business segmenis: triple-net leased
properties and senior living operations. See “Note 19—Segment Information™ of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements included in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for more information about
our business segments and the geographic diversification of our portfolio of properties.

Certificates of Need

A majority of our skilled nursing facilitics and hospitals are located in states that have certificate of need
(“CON"} requirements. A CON, which is issued by a governmental agency with jurisdiction over healthcare
facilities, is at imes required for expansion of existing facilities, construction of new facilities, addition of beds,
acquisition of major items of equipment or introduction of new services, The CON rules and regulations may
restrict our or our operators’ ability to expand our properties in certain circumstances.

The foliowing table shows the percentage of our rental income derived by skilled nursing facilities and
hospitals in states with and without CON requirements:

For the Year Ended
December 31, 2007
Skilled Nursing
Facilies Hospitals  Total
States with CON requirements .. .......oeinnnrrrnennes-- 74.0% 51.0% 66.1%
States without CON requirements .................covianss 26,0 49.0 339

- 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Sunrise REIT Acquisition

On April 26, 2007, we completed the acquisition of all of the assets of Sunrise REIT pursuant to the terms
of a purchase agreement dated as of January 14, 2007, as amended, among us, our wholly owned subsidiaries,
Ventas SSL Ontario 1, Inc. (the “Securities Purchaser”) and Ventas SSL Ontario 11, Inc. (the “Asset Purchaser”
and, together with the Securities Purchaser, the “Purchasers”), Sunrise REIT, Sunrise REIT Trust {“Sub Trust”)
and Sunrise REIT GP Inc. (“Sunrise GP"), in its capacity as general partner of Sunrise Canadian UPREIT, LP
("UPREIT™). The aggregate consideration for the Sunrise REIT acquisition, including the assumption of dcbt,
was approximately $2.0 billion.

At the effective time of the Sunrise REIT acquisition, the Securities Purchaser purchased all of the interests
and assumed all of the lizbilities of Sunrise REIT Canadian Holdings Inc. (“Canco”) and cenain of Sunrise
REIT"s intercompany notes held by Sub Trust, and the Asset Purchaser acquired all of Sunrise REIT's remaining
assets and liabilites from Sunrise REIT, Sub Trust and UPREIT. Immediately following the Sunrise REIT
acquisition, each unit of beneficial interest of Sunrise REIT outstanding immediately prior to the cffective time
(except for a small number of non-tendered units) was redeemed for Cdn $16.50 in cash.

Through the Sunrise REIT acquisition, we acquired a 100% interest in 18 seniors housing communities and
a 75% to 85% interest in 59 additional seniors housing communities, with the minority interest in those 59
communities being owned by affiliates of Suarise. Of the 77 communities, 66 are located in metropolitan areas of
19 U.S. states and eleven are located in the Canadian provinces of Ontario and British Columbia.

As a result of the Sunrise REIT acquisition, we arc party to management agreements with Sunrise pursuant
to which Sunrise provides comprehensive accounting and property management services with respect to each of
the Sunrise REIT properties. Each management agreement has a term of 30 years from its effective date, the
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carlicst of which began in 2004. Pursuant to the management agreements, we pay Sunrise a base management fee
of 6% of resident fees and similar revenues, subject to reduction based on below target performance for a poo! of
properties. The minimumn management fee assessable under these agreements is 5% of resident fees and similar
revenues of the properties. We also pay incentive fees if a pool of properties exceeds aggregate performance
targets; provided, however, that total management fees, including incentive fees, shall not exceed 8% of resident
fees and similar revenues. The management agreements also specify that we (or the joint venture to which we are
parly, as applicable) will reimburse Sunrise for direct or indirect costs necessary to manage our seniors housing
communities.

Under the terms of the letter agreement dated January 14, 2007 (the “Letter Agreement”) between us and
Sunrise, we modified varions management and other agreements and contractual relationships that existed
between Sunrise, on the one hand, and Sunrise REIT, on the other hand (the “Existing Agrecments”). Pursuant to
the Letter Agreement, the Strategic Alliance Agreement dated as of December 23, 2004 between Sunrise and
Sunrise REIT was terminated effective upon the closing of the Sunrise REIT acquisition, except with respect to
certain limited provisions. Under the terms of the Letter Agreement, we have, among other things, a right of first
offer to acquire seniors housing communities developed by Sunrise in Canada. In addition, we have a right of
first offer to acquire seniors housing communities developed by Sunrise in the United States within a
demographically defined radius of any of the properties acquired by us in the Sunrise REIT acquisition. The
terms of the rights of first offer for properties in both the United States and Canada arc governed generally by the
terms set forth in the Strategic Alliance Agreement and the fixed price acquisition agreement referred to in the
Strategic Alliance Agreement, but subject to modification of those terms to address changes in circumstances and
other matters.

The Letter Agreement also (1) provides us assurances that Sunrise will cooperate with us in connection with
our compliance with the REIT rules under the Intemnal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code™), and in
connection with our financial reporting obligations, (2) contains restrictions on our rights to transfer our interest
in the acquired properties to transferees who compete with Sunrise or who do not meet certain requirements, and
(3) provides that Sunrise consents to the Sunrise REIT acquisition and waives certain rights under the Existing
Agreements. Although not required, we and Sunrise may enter inte various amendments to the Existing
Agreements to further address the matters set out in the Letter Agreement.

As a result of the Sunrise REIT acquisition, we assumed all rights and obligations of Sunrise¢ REIT under
two fixed price acquisition agreements with Sunrise. Under the terms of these fixed price acquisition agreements,
funds were advanced prior to the Sunrise REIT acquisition to Sunrise in connection with the development by
Sunrise of seniors housing communities in Staten Island, New York and Vaughan, Ontano. The fixed price
acquisition agreements granted to us an option to purchase a majority interest in each of these properties,
independently, for a fixed price and on fixed terms, subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions. The funds
advanced for a property under the fixed price acquisition agreements are advances on the fixed purchase price for
the property and are applied to our purchase price for our interest at the closing of the acquisition.

We funded the Sunrise REIT acquisition through $530.0 mitlion of borrowings under a senior interim loan,
an equity-backed facility providing for the issuance of 700,000 shares of our Series A Senior Preferred Stock,
with a liquidaton preference of $1,000 per share, and the assumption of $861.1 million of existing mortgage
debt. In May 2007, we completed the sale of 26,910,000 shares of our common stock in an underwritten public
offering pursvani 1o our shelf registration statement. We received $1.05 billion in net proceeds from the sale,
which we used along with the proceeds of the disposition of cenain of our Kindred assets (sce “Note 6—
Dispositions” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part 1, Item 8§ of this Annual Report
on Form 10-K) and borrowings under our unsecured revolving credit facility to redeem all of our Series A Senior
Preferred Stock and to repay our indebtedness under the senior interim loan.

For the year ended December 31, 2007, we expensed $5.2 million of preferred stock dividends and issuance
costs related to the Serics A Senior Preferred Stock and $5.0 million of fees and interest associated with the
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senior interim loan (the latter of which is included in interest expense in our Consolidated Statement of Income
for the year ended December 31, 2007 included in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Repon on Form 10-K).

On June 19, 2007, we acquired an 80% interest in the seniors housing community located in Staten Island,
New York in accordance with the terms of the applicable fixed price acquisition agreement for approximately
$25.5 million, inclusive of our share of assumed debt of $15.3 million.

On December 11, 2007, we acquired an 80% interest in the seniors housing community located in Vaughan,
Ontario in accordance with the terms of the applicable fixed price acquisition agreement for approximately Cdn
$43.6 million, inclusive of our share of assumed debt of Cdn $23.3 million.

We incurred $3.0 million of merger-related expenses (that were not capitalized) in connection with the
Sunrise REIT acquisition during the year ended December 31, 2007. Merger-related expenses include
incremental costs directly related to the acquisition and expenses relating to our lawsuit against HCP, Inc. related
to our acquisition of Sunrise REIT, in which we are the plaintiff.

Significant Tenants and Operators

As of December 31, 2007, approximately 39.7%, 22.0% and 14.9% of our properties, based on their original
cost, were managed or operated by Sunrise, Brookdale Senior Living and Kindred, respectively. Total revenues
attributable to senior living operations managed by Sunrise were $283.1 million for the period from April 26,
2007 through December 31, 2007, representing 36.2% of our total revenues (including amounts in discontinued
operations) for the year ended December 31, 2007. Approximately 15.7% and 30.8% of our total revenues
(including amounts in discontinued operations) for the year ended December 31, 2007 were derived from our
leases with Brookdale Senior Living and our master lease agreements with Kindred (the “Kindred Master
Leases™), respectively. Our affifiation with Sunrise is a result of the Sunrise REIT acquisition in April 2007. Qur
affiliation with Brookdale Senior Living is a result of our acquisition of Provident Senior Living Trust
(“Provident”) in June 2005 and the subsequent combination of Brookdale and Alterra under Brookdale Senior
Living. Our affiliation with Kindred is a result of our spin off of Kindred in May 1998, pursuant to which we
transferred to Kindred our previous hospital, nursing facility and ancillary services businesses and we retained
substantially all of the real property which we leased to Kindred.

Triple-Net Leased Properties

Each of our leases with Kindred and Brookdale Senior Living is a triple-net lease pursuant to which the
tenant is required to pay all insurance, taxes, utilitics and maintenance and repairs related to the properties. In
addition, the tenants are required to comply with the terms of the mortgage financing documents, if any, affecting
the propertics.

Because we lease a substantial portion of our triple-net leased properties to Kindred and Brookdale Senior
Living and they are each a significant source of our total revenues, their financial condition and ability and
willingness to satisfy their obligations under their respective leases and certain other agreements with us and their
willingness to renew those leases upon expiration of the initial base terms thereof will significantly impact our
revenues and our zbility to service our indebiedness and to make distributions to our stockholders. We cannot
assure you that Kindred or Brookdale Senior Living will have sufficient assets, income and access to financing to
enable it to satisfy its obligations under its respective leases and other agreements with us, and any inability or
unwillingness on its part to do so would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition,
results of operation and liquidity, on our ability to service our indebtedness and other obligations and on our
ability to make distributions to our stockholders, as required for us to continue to qualify as a REIT (a “Material
Adverse Effect”). We also cannot assure you that Kindred and/or Brockdale Senior Living will elect {0 renew
their respective leases with us upon expiration of the initial base terms or any renewal terms thereof. See “Risks
Arising from Our Business—We are dependent on Kindred and Brookdale Senior Living; ¢ither of Kindred's or
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Brookdale Senior Living's inability or unwillingness to satisfy its obligations under its agreements with us could
significantly harm us and our ability to service our indebtedness and other obligations and to make distributions
to our stockholders as required for us to continue to qualify as a REIT” included in Item 1A of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

Kindred Master Leases. The properties leased to Kindred pursuant to the Kindred Master Leases are
grouped into renewal bundles, with each buadle containing a varying number of properties. All properties within
a bundle have primary terms ranging from ten to 15 years from May 1, 1998 and, provided certain conditions are
satisfied, are subject to three five-year renewal terms,

Under each Kindred Master Lease, the aggregate annual rent is referred to as Base Rent (as defined in the
applicable Kindred Master Lease). Base Rent escalates on May I of each year at a specified rate over the Prior
Period Base Rent (as defined in the applicable Kindred Master Lease) contingent upon the satisfaction of
specified facility revenue parameters. On October 6, 2006, final appraisers designated by us and Kindred
specified that the market annual rent escalator is 2,7% under Kindred Master Leases 1, 3 and 4, and is based on
year-over-year changes in the Consumer Price Index, with a floor of 2.25% and a ceiling of 4%, under Kindred
Master Lease 2. Assuming the specified revenue parameters are met, Base Rent due under the Kindred Master
Leases will be approximately $241.7 million from May 1, 2008 to April 30, 2009. See “Note 3—Revenues from
Properties” of the Notes 10 Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report
on Form 10-K.

On April 27, 2007, Kindred renewed, through April 30, 2013, its leases covering all 64 healthcare assets
owned by us (seven of which we subsequently sold on June 30, 2007 (se¢ “Note 6——Dispositions™ of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part IT, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K)) whose base
term would have expired on April 30, 2008. Kindred retains two additional sequential five-year renewal options
for these assets.

Brookdale Senior Living Leases. Our leases with Brookdale have primary terms of 15 years, commencing
cither January 28, 2004 (in the case of 15 “Grand Coun” properties we acquired in early 2004) or October 19,
2004 (in the case of the properties we acquired in connection with the Provident acquisition), and, provided
certain conditions are satisfied, are subject to two ten-year renewal terms. Our leases with Alterra also have
primary terms of 15 years, commencing either October 20, 2004 or December 16, 2004 (both in the case of
properties we acquired in connection with the Provident acquisition), and, provided certain conditions are
satisfied, are subject to two five-year renewal terms.

Under the terms of the Brookdale leases assumed in connection with the Provident acquisition, Brookdale is
cobligated to pay base rent, which escalates on January 1 of each year, by an amount equal to the lesser of (i) four
times the percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index during the immediately preceding year or (ii) 3%.
Under the terms of the Brookdale leases with respect to our “Grand Court” properties, Brookdale is cbligated to
pay base rent, which escalates on February 1 of each year, by an amount equal to the greater of (i) 2% or (i) 75%
of the increase in the Consumer Price Index during the immediately preceding year. Under the terms of the
Alterra leases, Alterra is obligated to pay base rent, which escalates either on January 1 or November 1 of cach
year by an amount equal to the lesser of (i) four times the percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index
during the immediately preceding year or (ii) 2.5%. The aggregate snnualized contractua) cash base rent
expected from Brookdale Senior Living for 2008 is approximately $106.7 million, excluding variable interest
Brookdale is obligated to pay as additional rent based on various variable rate mortgages assumed by us during
the Provident acquisition. The aggregate annualized contractual GAAP rent (computed in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP™)), excluding the variable interest, expected from Brookdale
Senior Living for 2008 is approximately $119.9 million. See “Note 3—Revenues from Properties” and
“Note 13—Commitments and Contingencies™ of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part
II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.




Senior Living Operations

We are party to management agreements with Sunrise pursuant to which Sunrise cusrenily provides
comprehensive accounting and property management services with respect to 79 of our seniors housing
communities. Each management agreement has a term of 30 years from its effective date, the earliest of which
began in 2004.

Although we have various rights as owner under the Sunrise management agreements, we are relying on
Sunrise’s personnel, good faith, expertise, historical performance, technical resources and information systems,
proprietary information and judgment to manage our seniors housing communities efficiently and effectively.
Because a significant portion of our properties are managed by Sunrise, its inability to efficiently and effectively
manage those properties and to provide timely and accurate accounting information with respect thereto could
have a Material Adverse Effect on us. We are also relying on Sunrise to set resident fees and otherwise operate
those properties pursuant to our management agreements. A change in the senior management of Sunrise or any
adverse developments in Sunrise's business and affairs or financial strength could also have a Material Adverse
Effect on us. In addition, any inability or unwillingness on the part of Sunrise to satisfy its obligations under the
management agreements it has with us could have a Material Adverse Effect on us.

Competition

We compete for real property investments with healthcare providers, other healthcare-related REITS,
healthcare lenders, real estate partnerships, banks, insurance companies and other investors. Some of our
competitors are significantly larger and have greater financial resources and lower cost of capital than we do. Our
ability to continue to compete successfully for real property investments will be determined by numerous factors,
including our ability to identify suitable acquisition or investment targets, our ability to negotiatc acccptable
terms for any such acquisition and the availability and cost of capital to us. See “Risks Arising from Our
Business—We may encounter certain risks when implementing our business strategy (o pursue investments in,
and/or acquisitions or development of, additiona) seniors housing and/or healthcare-selated assets”™ included in
Item 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and “Note 9—Borrowing Amangements” of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included in Past 1], Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The operators and managers of our properties compete on a local and regional basis with other seniors
housing and healthcare operators and managers. Their ability to compete successfully for residents and patients at
our properties depends upon several factors, including the scope and quality of services provided, the ability to
attract and retain qualified personnel, the operational reputation of the operator or manager, physician referral
patterns, physical appearance of the properties, other competitive systems of healthcare delivery within the
community, population and demographics, and the financial condition of the operator or manager. Private,
federal and state reimbursement programs and the effect of other laws and regulations also may have a
significant impact on our healthcare operators’ and managers’ ability to compete successfully for residents and
patients at the propertics. See “Risks Arising from Qur Business—Qur tenants, managers and operators may be
adversely affected by increasing healthcare regulation and enforcemem” and “—Changes in the reimbursement
rates or methods of payment from third-party payors. including the Medicare and Medicaid programs, could have
a material adverse effect on certain of our tenants and operators” included in Item 1A of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

Employees

As of December 31, 2007, we had 53 full-time employees. We consider the relationship with cur employees
to be good.

Insurance

We maintain and/or require in our existing leases or other agreements that our tenants, managers and
operators maintain liability and casualty insurance on our properties and their operations. For example, under the

8




Kindred Master Leases, Kindred is required to maintain, at its expense, certain insurance coverage related to the
properties under the Kindred Master Leases and Kindred's operations at those properties. However, we cannot
assure you that Kindred or our other tenants, managers and operators will maintain such insurance, and any
failure by our tenants, managers and operators to do 50 could have a Material Adverse Effect on us. We believe
that our tenants, managers and operators are in substantial compliance with the insurance requirements contained
in their respective leases and other agreements with us.

General and professional liability and casualty insurance covering our properties managed by Sunrise and
the related operations is currently maintained by Sunrise in accordance with the standards contained in our
management agreement with Sunrise. On an annuval basis, we may elect to opt in or out of the Sunrise insurance
program. If we choose to opt out of the Sunrise insurance program, we would maintain general and professional
liability and casualty insurance for our Sunrisc-managed properties in accordance with the standards contained in
our Sunrise management agreements. Regardless of who maintains this insurance, however, the costs of the
insurance program covering our Sunrise-managed properties are facility expenses paid from the revenues of these
properties.

We believe that the amount and scope of insurance coverage provided by our own and our tenants’,
managers’ and operaiors’ policies are customary for similarly situated companies in our industry. We cannot
assure you that in the future such insurance will be available at a reasonable price or that we will be able to
maintain adequate levels of insurance coverage.

Due to historically high frequency and severity of professional liability claims against healthcare providers,
the availability of professional liability insurance has been restricted and the premiums for such insurance
coverage remain very high. As a result, many healthcare providers may incur large funded and unfunded
professional liability expense, which could have a material adverse cffect on their liquidity, financial condition
and results of operations. In addition, many healthcare providers are pursuing different organizational and
corporate structures coupled with insurance programs that provide less insurance coverage. Therefore, we cannot
assure you that our tenants, managers and operators will continue to carry the insurance coverage required under
the terms of their leases and other agreements with us or that we will continue to require the same levels of
insurance under those leases and agreements.

Additdonal Information

We maintain a website at www.ventasreit.com. The information on our website is not incorporated by
reference in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and our web address is included as an inactive textual reference
only.

We make available, free of charge, through our website our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly
Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or fumnished
pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file
such material with, or furnish it to, the Commission. In addition, our Guidelines on Governance, the charters for
each of our Audit and Compliance, Nominating and Governance and Executive Compensation Committees and
our Code of Ethics and Business Conduct are available on our website, and we will mail copies of the foregoing
documents to stockholders, free of charge, upon request to Corporate Secretary, Ventas, Inc., 10350 Ormsby Park
Place, Suite 300, Louisville, Kentucky 40223,




GOVERNMENTAL REGULATION

Heglthcare Regulation
General

The operators of certain of our properties derive a substantial portion of their revenues from third-party
payors, including the Medicare and Medicaid programs. Medicare is a federal program that provides certain
hospital and medical insurance benefits to persons age 65 and over, certain disabled persons and persons with
end-stage renal disease. Medicaid is a medical assistance program jointly funded by federal and state
governments and administered by each state pursuant to which benefits are available to certain indigent patients.
The Medicare and Medicaid statutory framework is subject to administrative rulings, interpretations and
discretion that affect the amount and timing of reimbursement made under Medicare and Medicaid. The amounts
of program payments received by our operators and tenants can be changed from time to time, and at any time,
by legislative or regulatory actions and by determinations by agents for the programs. See “—Healthcare
Reform.” Such changes may be applied retroactively under certain circumnstances. In addition, private payors,
including managed care payors, continually demand discounted fee structures and the assumption by healthcare
providers of all or a portion of the financial risk. Efforts to impose greater discounts and more stringent cost
controls upon operators hy privatc payors are expected to intensify and continue. We cannot assure you that
adequate third-party reimbursement levels will continve to be available for services to be provided by the
operators of our properties which currently are being reimbursed by Medicare, Medicaid and private payors.
Significant limits on the scope of services reimbursed and on reimbursement rates and fees could have a material
adverse effect on these operators’ liquidity, financial condition and results of operations, which could affect
adversely their ability to make rental payments under, and otherwise comply with the terms of, their leases with
us,

The operators of certain of our properties are subject to other extensive federal, state and local laws and
regulations including, but not limited 1o, laws and regulations relating to licensure, conduct of operations,
ownership of facilities, addition of facilitics, services, prices for services, billing for services, and the
confidentiality and security of health-related information. These laws authorize periodic inspections and
investigations, and identification of deficiencies that, if not corrected, can result in sanctions that include
suspension or loss of licensure to operate and loss of rights to participate in the Medicare and Medicaid
programs. Regulatory agencies have substantial powers to affect the actions of operators of our properties if the
agencies believe that there is an imminent threat 10 patient weifare, and in some states these powers can include
assumption of interim control over facilities through receiverships.

Seniors Housing Communities. Our seniors housing communities include independent and assisted living
communities, and communities providing care for individuals with Alzheimer’s and other forms of memory loss.
These communities offer residential units on a month-to-month basis primarily to elderly individuals requiring
various levels of assistance. Basic services for residents of these communrities include housekeeping, meals in a
central dining area and group activities organized by the staff with input from the residents. More extensive care
and personal supervision, at additional fees, are also available for such needs as eating, bathing, grooming,
transportation, limited therapeutic programs and medication administration, all of which eacourage the residents
to live as independently as possible according to their abilities. These services are often met by home health
providers, close coordination with the resident’s physician and skilled nursing facilities.

Seniors housing communities are subject to relatively few, if any, federal regulations. Instead, to the extent
they are regulated, the regulation is conducted mainly by state and local 1sws which govem the licensing of beds,
the provision of services, staffing requirements and other operational matters. However, these state laws vary
greatly from one state to another.

The recent increase in the number of seniors housing communities around the country has attracted the
attention of various federal agencies which believe there should be more federal regulation of these properties.
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To date, Congress has deferred to state regulation of seniors housing communities. As a result of the increased
federal scrutiny along with the rapid increase in the number of these properties, some states have revised and
strengthened their regulation of seniors housing communities. More states are expecied to do the same in the
future.

Skilled Nursing Facilities. The operators of our skilled nursing facilities generally are licensed on an
annual or bi-annual basis and certified annually for participation in the Medicare and Medicaid programs through
various regulatory agencies which determine compliance with federal, state and local laws. These legal
requirements relate to the quality of the nursing care provided, qualifications of the administrative personnel and
nursing staff, the adequacy of the physical plant and equipment and continuing compliance with the laws and
regulations governing the operation of nursing facilities. A loss of licensure or certification could adversely affect
a nursing facility’s ability (o receive payments from the Medicare and Medicaid programs, which, in turn, could
adversely impact the operator’s ability to make rental payments under its leases with us.

Hospitals. Substantially all of our hospitals are operated as long-term acute care hospitals, which are
hospitals that have a Medicare average length of stay greater than 25 days. Our hospitals are freestanding
facilities, and we do not own any “hospitals within hospitals,” In order to receive Medicare and Medicaid
reimbursement, cach hospital must meet the applicable conditions of participation set forth by the U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services (“HHS”) relating to the type of hospital and its equipment, personnel
and standard of medical care, as well as comply with state and local laws and regulations. Hospitals undergo
periodic on-site licensure surveys, which generally are limited if the hospital is accredited by the Joint
Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare Organizations or other recognized accreditation organizations. A
loss of licensure or certification could adversely affect a hospital’s ability to receive payments from the Medicare
and Medicaid programs, which, in tum, could adversely impact the operator’s ability to make rental payments
under its leases with us.

Any significant expansion in the number or type of, or a violation of any of, these federal, state or local laws
and regulations also could have a material adverse effect on our operators’ liquidity, financial condition and
results of operations, which, in turn, could adversely impact their ability to make rental payments under, or
otherwise comply with the terms of, their leases with us.

Certificates of Need

Some states require state approval for development and expansion of healthcare facilities and services,
including findings of nced for additional or expanded healthcare facilities or services. A CON is issued by a
governmental agency with jurisdiction over healthcare facilities and is at times required for expansion of existing
facilities, construction of new facilities, addition of beds, and acquisition of major items of equipment or
introduction of new services. The CON rules and regulations may restrict an operator’s ability to expand our
properties in certain circurnstances.

In the last several years, in response to mounting Medicaid budget deficits, many states have begun to
tighten CON controls, including the imposition of moratoriums on new nursing facilities and hospitals. Some
states have also increased controls over licensing and change-of-ownership rules.

In the event that any operator of our properties fails to make rental payments to us or to comply with the
applicable healthcare regulations, and, in either case, the operator or its lenders fail to cure the default prior to the
expiration of the applicable cure period, our ability to evict that operator and substitute another operator or
operators may be materially delayed or limited by various state licensing, receivership, CON or other laws, as
well as by Medicare and Medicaid change-of-ownership rules. Such delays and limitations could have a material
adverse effect on our ability to collect rent, to obtain possession of leased properties, or otherwise to exercise
remedies for tenant default. [n addition, we may also incur substantial additional expenses in connection with any
such licensing, receivership or change-of-ownership proceedings.
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Fraud and Abuse

There are extensive federal and state laws and regulations prohibiting fraud and abuse in the healthcare
industry, the violation of which could result in significant criminal and civil penalties that can materially affect
the operators of our properties. The federal laws include:

» The anti-kickback statute (Section 1128B(b) of the Social Security Act), which prohibits certain
business practices and relationships that might affect the provision and cost of healthcare services
reimbursable under Medicare, Medicaid and other federal healthcare programs, including the payment
or receipt of remuneration for the referral of patients whose care will be paid by Medicare or other
governmental programs.

» The physician self-referral prohibition (Ethics in Patient Referral Act of 1989, commonly referred to as
the “Stark Law™), which prohibits referrals by physicians of Medicare patients to providers of a broad
range of designated healthcare services with which the physicians (or their immediate family members)
or Medicaid have ownership interests or certain other {inancial arrangements.

» The False Claims Act, which prohibits any person from knowingly presenting false or fraudulent claims
for payment to the federal government (including the Medicare and Medicaid programs).

» The Civil Monetary Penalties Law, which authorizes HHS to impose civil penalties administratively for
fraudulent acts.

* The Health Insurance Portability and Accouniability Act of 1996 {(commonly referred to as “HIPAA™),
which among other things, protects the privacy and security of individually identifiable health
information by limiting its use and disclosure.

Sanctions for violating these federal laws include criminal and civil penalties that range from punitive
sanctions, damage assessments, money penalties, imprisonment, denial of Medicare and Medicaid payments,
and/or exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs. These laws also imposc an affirmative duty on
operators to ensure that they do not employ or contract with persons excluded from the Medicare and other
government programs.

Many states have adopted or are considering legislative proposals similar to the federal fraud and abuse
laws, some of which extend beyond the Medicare and Medicaid programs to prohibit the payment or receipt of
remuneration for the referral of patients and physician self-referrals regardless of whether the service was
reimbursed by Medicare or Medicaid. Many states have also adopted or are considering legislative proposals to
increase patient prolections, such as minimum staffing levels, criminal background checks, and limiting the use
and disclosure of patient specific health information. These state laws also impose criminal and civil penaltics
similar to the federal laws.

In the ordinary course of their business, the operators of our properties have been and are subject regularly
to inquiries, investigations and audits by federal and state agencies that oversee these laws and regulations.
Increased funding through recent federal and state legislation has led 10 a dramatic increase in the number of
investigations and enforcement actions over the past several years. Private enforcement of healthcare fraud also
bas increased due in large part to amendments to the civil False Claims Act in 1986 that were designed to
encourage private individuals to sue on behalf of the government. These whistleblower suits by private
individuals, known as qui tam suits, may be filed by almost anyone, including present and former patients or
nurses and other employees. HIPAA also created a series of new healthcare-related crimes.

As federal and state budget pressures continue, federal and state administrative agencies may also continue
to escalate investigation and enforcement efforts to eliminate waste and to control fravd and abuse in
governmental healthcare programs. A violation of any of these federal and state fraud and abuse laws and
regulations could have a2 material adverse effect on our operators’ liquidity, financial condition and resulis of
operations, which could affect adversely their ability to make rental payments under, or otherwise comply with
the terms of, their leases with us.
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Healthcare Reform

Healthcare is one of the largest industries in the United States and continues to attract much legislative
interest and public attention. In an effort to reduce federal spending on healthcare, in 1997 the federal
government enacted the Balanced Budget Act ("BBA™), which contained extensive changes to the Medicare and
Medicaid programs, including substantial Medicare reimbprsement reductions for healthcare operations. For
certain healthcare providers, including hospitals and skilled nursing facilities, implementation of the BBA
resulted in more drastic reimbursement reductions than had been anticipated. In addition to its impact on
Medicare, the BBA also afforded states more flexibility in administering their Medicaid plans, including the
ability to shift most Medicaid enrollees into managed care plans without first oblaining a federal waiver.

The following key legislative and regulatory changes have been made to the BBA to provide some relief
from the drastic reductions in Medicare and Medicaid reimbursement resulting from implementation of the BBA:

* The Balanced Budget Refinement Act of 1999 (“BBRA");

* The Medicare, Medicaid, and State Child Health Insurance Program Benefits Improvement and
Protection Act of 2000 (“BIPA™);

* The one-time “administrative fix” to increase skilled nursing facility payment rates by 3.26%, instituted
by the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (“CMS") beginning on October 1, 2003,

»* The Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement, and Modemization Act of 2003 (“Medicare
Modernization Act,” sometimes referred to as the “Drug Bill"”);

* The Deficit Reduction Act of 2005 (Pub. L No, 109-171) (“"DRA”); and
* The Tax Relief and Health Care Act of 2006 (Pub. L. No. 109-432).

The Medicare and Medicaid programs, including payment levels and methods, are continually evolving and
are less predictable following the enactment of BBA and the subsequent reform activities, We cannot assure you
that future healthcare legislation or changes in the administration or implementation of governmental healthcare
reimbursement programs will not have a material adverse effect on our operators’ fiquidity, financial condition or
results of operations, which could adversely affect their ability to make rental payments to us and which, in tum,
could have a Material Adverse Effect on us.

Medicare Reimbursemens; Long-Term Acute Care Hospitals

The BBA mandated the creation of a prospective payment system for long-term acute care hospitals
(“LTAC PPS"), which became effective on October 1, 2002 for cost reporting periods commencing on or after
Octaber 1, 2002. All long-term acute care hospitals are required to have transitioned to LTAC PPS, which
classifies patients into distinct diagnostic groups based on clinical characteristics and expected resource needs.

Under LTAC PPS, long-term acute care hospitals are reimbursed on a predetermined rate rather than on a
reasonable cost basis that reflects costs incurred. LTAC PPS requires payment for a Medicare beneficiary at a
predetermined, per discharge amount for each defined patient category {called “Long-Term Care—Diagnosis
Related Groups™ or “LTC-DRGs™), adjusted for differences in area wage levels.

Updates to the LTAC PPS payment rates are published annually for the long-term acute care hospital rate
year (July 1 through June 30). However, annual updates to the LTAC PPS classification system and its relative
weighting system (LTC-DRGs) continuc to coincide with the federal fiscal year (October 1 through
September 30), as with the prospective payment system for short-term acute care hospitals. These updates are
established by regulators each year.
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On May 11, 2007, CMS published its final rule updating LTAC PPS payment rates for the 2008 rate year
(July 1, 2007 through June 30, 2008). On July 5, 2007, CMS published corrections to the final rute. The corrected
final rule makes many technical changes and adjusiments to LTAC PPS, including increasing the standard
federa) payment rate by 0.71% (which, owing to other changes, will on average represent a 0.6% increase),
revising the payment methodologies impacting short-stay outliers, adjusting the wage index component of the
federal payment and increasing the high cost outliér threshold, CMS estimates that, due to these changes and
adjustments, payments per discharge are expected to decrease in the 2008 rate year by 1.2% on average, when
compared to average payments for the 2007 ratc year. The comected final rule also expands the so-called
“25-percent rule,” which limits payments from referring co-located hospitals, to all long-term acute care
hospitals. The 25-percent rule is being phased in over o three-year period, and CMS projects that it will not result
in payment reductions in the first year of implementation. The expansion of the 25-percent rule contained in the
corrected final rule could, however, reduce the caseloads or affect the referral patterns of the long-term acute care
hospitals operated by our tenants.

On August 22, 2007, CMS published its final rule to update and reform the inpatient prospective payment
system (“IPPS™) for short-term and long-term acute care hospitals for the 2008 federal fiscal year (October 1,
2007 through September 30, 2008). On October 10, 2007, CMS published corrections to the final rule. The
reforms in the corrected final rule are intended to improve the accuracy of Medicare payments for inpatient acute
care. The final rule creates 745 new scverity-adjusted diagnosis-related groups (“DRGs™) (Medicare Severity
DRGs or MS-DRGs) to replace the current 538 DRGs. CMS projects that aggregate annual spending from the
reforms will not change. However, CMS expects that payments would increase for hospitals serving more
severely ill patients and decrease for hospitals serving patients who are less severely ill.

On September 27, 2007, the U.S. Congress passed the “TMA, Abstinence Education, and QI Programs
Extension Act of 2007,” which was signed into law by President Bush on September 29, 2007. The bill reduced a
planned “behavioral offset” to the MS-DRGs to -0.6% from -1.2% in federal fiscal year 2008 and to -0.9% from
-1.8% in federal fiscal year 2009. The changes to the prospective cuts will result in a restoration of Medicare
payment cuts to IPPS hospitals of $2.5 billion over the next two years and $7 billion over the next five years,
assuming no additional retrospective adjustments are made. The bill also includes a “lookback” provision, which
directs the Secretary of Health and Human Services to adjust for hospital overpayments or underpayments if the
remaining prospective cuts do not accurately account for real changes in case mix once the new MS-DR@ system
is fully implemented by 2010.

On December 29, 2007, President Bush signed into law the “Medicare, Medicaid, and SCHIP Extension Act
of 2007" (the “*Medicare Extension Act”™). Section 114 of the Medicare Extension Act is intended to implernent
the recommendations of the Medicare Payment Advisory Commission (“MedPAC™) to better define long-term
acute care hospitals and the patients they treat by using better patient and facility-level criteria. Long-term acute
care hospitals must institute a patient review process to better assess patients upon admission and on a continuing
basis for appropriateness of care. CMS medical necessity reviews for long-term acute care hospitals will be
significantly expanded. Section 114 of the Medicare Extension Act, among other things, also provides the
following relief from recent long-term acute care hospital payment policy changes:

* it prevents CMS from applying the 25-percent rule for three years to freestanding and grandfathered
long-term acute care hospitals; ‘

it modifies the application of the 25-percent rule to certain urban and rural long-term acute care
“hospitals-within-hospitals” and “satellite” facilities for three years;

« it prevents CMS from applying the “very short stay outlier” policy for three years; and

« it prevents CMS for three years from making any onc-time adjustments to correct estimates used in
implementing LTAC PPS.
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Lastly, the Medicare Extension Act places a partial-year freeze on long-lerm acute care hospilal rates in the
fourth quarter of fiscal year 2008 (from April 1, 2008 through June 30, 2008) and introduces a moratorium on
new long-term acute care hospitals and beds for three years.

On Janvary 29, 2008, CMS issued a proposed rule proposing an increase of 2.6% in annual payment rates
for the 2009 rate year (proposed as July 1, 2008 through September 30, 2009). CMS believes this proposal
complies with the Medicare Extension Act. The proposed rule includes a 3.5% increase in the hospital market
basket index, less a 0.9% adjustment to offset recent coding behavioral changes. CMS estimates aggregate long-
term acute care hospital payments to reach approximately $4.44 billion under the proposed rule, an increase of
approximately $124 million over the 2008 rate year. CMS is also proposing to change the annual rate update
back to October 1 to coincide with the annual update to MS-DRG classifications and weights, etc. Accordingly,
this 2009 rate year update will be effective for a 15-month period (July 1, 2008 through September 30, 2009).
Lastly, the proposed rule is proposing to increase the fixed-loss threshold amount for high cost outlier cases by
2% to $21,199, from $20,738. The proposed rule is subject to a 60-day comment period.

We cannot assurc you that future updates to the LTAC PPS system or Medicare reimbursement for long-
term acute care hospitals will not materially adversely affect our operators, which, in tumn, could have a Material
Adverse Effect on us, See “Risks Arising from Qur Business—Changes in the reimbursement rates or methods of
payment from third-party payors, including the Medicare and Medicaid programs, could have a material adverse
effect on certain of our tenants and operators” included in Itcm 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Medicare Reimbursement; Skilled Nursing Facilities

The BBA also established a prospective payment system for skilled nursing facilities (“SNF PPS") offering
Part A covered services. Under the SNF PPS, payment amounts are based vpon classifications determined
through assessments of individual Medicare patients in the skilled nursing facility, rather than on the facility’s
reasonable costs. The payments received under the SNF PPS are intended gencrally to cover all inpatient services
for Medicare patients, including routine nursing care, most capital-related costs associated with the inpatient stay,
and ancillary services, such as respiratory therapy, occupational and physical therapy, speech therapy and certain
covered drugs. Under the SNF PPS, per diem payments are made to nursing home facilities for each resident.

In response to widespread healthcare industry concern about the reductions in payments under BBA, the
federal government enacted BBRA on November 29, 1999. BBRA increased the per diem reimbursement rates
for certain high acuity patients by 20% starting April 1, 2000 and continuing until case mix refinements were
implemented by CMS, as explained below. Under BBRA, outpatient rehabilitation therapy providers, including
Part B nursing facilitics, also reccived a two-year moratorium on the annual cap on the amoumt of physical,
occupational and speech therapy provided to a patient, which moratorium was subsequently extended until
December 31, 2005 pursuant to the Medicare Moderization Act. On January 1, 2006, these therapy limitations
went into effect until the DRA was enacted. This new law, signed by President Bush on February 8, 2006,
retroactively established an exception process for the payment of all claims above the limits when such services
are medically necessary, Under CMS’s final rule updating LTC-DRGs for the 2007 federal fiscal year, the annual
cap on Medicare part B reimbursement for physical therapy and speech-language pathology services and the
separate annual cap on occupational therapy were lifted for those patients who can demonstrate medical
necessity. On December 20, 2006, the President signed into law the Tax Relief and Health Care Act of 2006,
which, among other things, extended the DRA process for obtaining relief from the therapy caps through
December 31, 2007. The DRA process was again extended through June 30, 2008 by Section 105 of the
Medicare Extension Act,

In addition, under CMS's final rule updating LTC-DRGs for federal fiscal year 2007, reimbursement of
uncollectible Medicare coinsurance amounts for all beneficiaries (other than bencficiaries of both Medicare and
Medicaid) is reduced from 100% to 70% for skilled nursing facility cost reporting periods beginning on or after
October 1, 2005. CMS estimates that the change in treatment of bad debt will result in a decrease in payments to
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skilled nursing facilities of $490 million over the five-year period from federal fiscal year 2006 to 2010. The rule
also includes various options for classifying and weighting patients transferred to a skilled nursing facility after a
hospital stay less than the mean length of stay associated with that particular diagnosis-related group. This
change in methodology could affect skilled nursing facility admissions, although we currently cannot predict
what impact it will have on the liquidity or profitability of our skilled nursing facility operators.

Pursuant to CMS’s final rule updating SNF PPS for the 2006 federal fiscal year, CMS, among other things,
refined the resource utilization groups (“RUGs™) used to determine the daily payment for beneficiaries in skilled
nursing facilities by adding nine new payment categories. The result of this refinement, which became effective
on January 1, 2006, was to eliminate the temporary add-on payments that Congress enacted as part of the BBRA.

On November |, 2006, the Secretary of Health and Human Services placed on public display his five-year
review and update to the Medicare physician fee schedule entitled: “Medicare Program; Revisions to Payment
Policies, Five-Year Review of Work Relative Value Units, Changes to the Practice Expense Methodotogy Under
the Physician Fee Schedule, and Other Changes to Payment Under Part B; Revisions to the Payment Policies of
Ambulance Services Under the Fee Schedule for Ambulance Services; and Ambulance Inflation Factor Update
for CY 2007.” This final rule with a comment period was scheduled to be effective on January 1, 2007. The
reduction in fees for physician and therapy services was overturned on December 20, 2006, when President Bush
signed into law the Tax Relief and Health Care Act of 2006, which, among other things, reduced the overall
payment reduction of 5% to zero.

Cn August 3, 2007, CMS published its final rule for SNF PPS and Consolidated Billing for Skilled Nursing
Facilities for the 2008 federal fiscal year {October 1, 2007 through September 30, 2008). The final rule, among
other things, updates the SNF PPS rates by increasing the market basket by 3.3% and makes various other
technical changes, the economic effects of which have not yet been analyzed. However, the market basket
increase provided under this rule can be overridden by Congressional legislation. In addition, the President’s
proposed 2009 budget contains provisions that, if implemented, could reduce or slow the growth in Medicare
reimbursement rates for skilled nursing facilitics.

We cannot assure you that future updates to the SNF PPS system, therapy services or Medicare
reimbursement for skilled nursing facilities will not materially adversely impact our operators, which, in tum,
could have a Material Adverse Effect on us. See “Risks Arising from Our Business—Changes in the
reimbursement rates or methods of payment from third-party payors, including the Medicare and Medicaid
programs, could have a material adverse effect on certain of our tenants and operators” included in Item 1A of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Medicaid Reimbursement; Skilled Nursing Facilities

Approximately two-thirds of all nursing home residents are dependent on Medicaid. Medicaid
reimbursement rates, however, typically are less than the amounts charged by the operators of our properties.
BBA repealed the “Boren Amendment” federal payment standard for Medicaid payments to hospitals and skilled
nursing facilities effective October 1, 1997, giving states greater latitude in setting payment rates for these
providers. Furthermore, federal legislation restricts a skilled nursing facility operator’s ability to withdraw from
the Medicaid program by restricting the eviction or transfer of Medicaid residents.

For the last several years, many states have announced actval or potential budget shortfalls. As a result of
these budget shortfalls, many states have implemented, are implementing or considering implementing “freezes”
or cuts jn Medicaid rates paid to providers, including hospitals and skilled nursing facilities. Changes to
Medicaid eligibility criteria are also possible thereby reducing the number of beneficiaries eligible to have their
medical care reimbursed by government sources.

In the DRA, Congress made changes to the Medicaid program that are estimated to result in $10 billion in
savings to the federal government over five years following enactment of the legislation primarily through the
accounting practices some states use to calculate their maiched payments and revising the qualifications for
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individuals who are eligible for Medicaid benefits. The changes made by the CMS’s final rule updating SNF PPS
for the 2006 federnl fiscal year described above are also anticipated to reduce Medicaid payments to skilled
nursing facility operators in the future. In addition, as pan of the Tax Relicf and Health Care Act of 2006,
Congress reduced the ceiling on taxes that states may impose on healthcare providers and which would qualify
for federal financial participation under Medicaid by 0.5%, from 6% to 5.5%. Nationally, it is anticipated that
this reduction should have a negligible effect, affecting only those states with taxes in excess of 5.5%. We have
not yet ascenained the impact of this reduction on our skilled nursing facility operators.

At this time, it is not possible to predict whether significant Medicaid rate freezes or cuts or other program
changes will be adopted and if so, by how many states or whether the U.S. government will revoke, reduce or
stop approving “provider taxes” that have the effect of increasing Medicaid payments 1o the states, or the impact
of such actions on our operators. However, severc and widespread Medicaid rate cuts or freezes could have a
material adverse effect on our skilled nursing facility operators, which, in tum, could have a Material Adverse
Effect on us.

Nursing Home Quality Initiative

In 2002, HHS launched the Nursing Home Quality Initiative program. This program, which is designed to
provide consumers with comparative information about nursing home quality measures, rates nursing homes on
various quality of care indicators, Since 2002, investigative and enforcement activities regarding nursing home
quality compliance has intensified both on the federal and state administrative levels.

If the operators of certain of our properties are unable to achieve quality of care ratings that are comparable
or superior to those of their competitors, patients may choose alternate facilitics, which could cause operating
revenues Lo decline. In the event the financial condition or operating revenues of these operators are adversely
affected, the operators’ ability to make rental payments to us could be adversely affected, which, in tum, could
have a Material Adverse Effect on us,

Environmental Regulation

As an owner of rcal property, we are subject to various federal, state and local laws and regulations
regarding environmental, health and safety matters. These laws and regulations address, among other things,
asbestos, polychlorinated biphenyls, fuel oil managemeni, wastewater discharges, air emissions, radicactive
materials, medical wastes, and hazardous wastes. In certain cases, the costs of complying with these laws and
regulations and the penalties for non-compliance can be substantial. For example, although we do not generally
operate or manage our properties, we may be held primarily or jointly and severally liable for costs relating to the
investigation and clean-up of any property from which there is or has been a release or threatened release of a
hazardous or toxic substance and any other affected properties, regardless of whether we knew of or caused the
release, In addition to these costs, which are typically not limited by law or regulation and could exceed the
property’s value, we could be liable for cenain other costs, including govemmental fines and injuries to persons
or property. See “Risks Arising from Our Business—If any of our properties are found to be contaminated, or if
we become involved in any environmental disputes, we could incur substantial liabilities and costs™ included in
Item 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

We are generally indemnified by the current operators of our properties for contamination caused by those
operators. For example, under the Kindred Master Leases, Kindred bas agreed to indemnify us against any
environmental claims (including penalties and clean-up costs) resulting from any condition arising in, on or
under, or relating to, the leased properties at any time on or after the lease commencement date for the applicable
leased property and from any condition permitted to deteriorate on or after such date (including as a result of
migration from adjacent properties not owned or operated by us or any of our affiliates other than Kindred and its
direct affiliates). However, we cannot assure you that Kindred or another operator will have the financial
capability or the willingness to satisfy any such environmental claims, and in the event Kindred or another
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operator is unable or unwilling to do 50, we may be required to satisfy the claims. See “Risks Arising from Qur
Business—We are dependent on Kindred and Brookdale Senior Living; Kindred's or Brookdale Senior Living's
inability or unwillingness to satisfy its obligations under its agreements with us could significantly harm us and
our ability to service our indebtedness and other obligations and to make distributions to our stockholders, as
required for us to continue to qualify as a REIT” included in Item 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

We have also generally agreed to indemnify cenain of our operators against any environmenial claims
(including penaltics and clean-up costs) resulting from any condition arising in, on or under, or relating to, the
leased properties at any time before the lease commencement date for the applicable leased property. We have
agreed to indemnify Sunrise against any environmental claims (including penalties and clean-up costs) resulting
from any conditions on our propertics managed by Sunrise, unless Sunrise caused or contributed to those
conditions,

We did not make any material capital expenditures in connection with these environmental, health, and
safety laws, ordinances and regulations in 2007 and do not expect that we will have to make any such material
capital expenditures during 2008.

CERTAIN U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

This section summarizes certain U.S. federal income tax considerations that you may consider relevant as a
holder of our common stock. It is not tax advice. The discussion does not address all aspects of taxation that may
be relevant to particular stockholders in light of their personal investment or tax circumstances, nor does it apply
1o certain types of stockholders that are subject to special treatment under the federal income tax laws, such as
insurance companics, lax-cxempt organizations (except to the extent discussed below under “—Treatment of
Tax-Exempt Stockholders”), financial institutions, pass-through entities (or investors in such entities} or broker-
dealers, and non-U.S. persons and foreign corporations (except to the extent discussed below under “-—Special
Tax Considerations for Non-U.S. Stockholders”).

The statements in this section are bascd on the Code, Treasury Regulations and administrative and judicial
interpretations thereof. The laws goveming the federal income tax treatment of REITs and their stockholders are
highly technical and complex, and this summary is qualified in its entirety by the authorities listed above, as in
effect on the date hereof. We cannot assure you that new laws, interpretations of law or court decisions, any of
which may take effect retroactively, will not cause any statement in this section to be inaccurate.

Federal Income Taxation of Ventas

We elected REIT status beginning with the year ended December 31, 1999. Beginning with the 1999 tax
year, we believe that we have satisfied the requirements to qualify as a REIT, and we intend to continue to
qualify as a REIT for federal income tax purposes. If we continue to qualify for taxation as a REIT, we generally
will not be subject to federal income tax on net income that we currently distribute to stockholders. This
treatment substantially eliminates the “double taxation™ (i.e., taxation at both the corporate and stockholder
levels) that generally results from investment in a corporation.

Notwithstanding our qualification as a REIT, we will be subject to federal income tax on any undistributed
taxable income, including undistributed net capita) gains, at regular corporate rates. In addition, we will be
subject to a 4% excise tax if we do not satisfy specific REIT distribution requirements. See “~~Requirements for
Qualification as a REIT—Annual Distribution Reguirements.” Under cenain circumstances, we may be subject
to the “altemative minimum tax™ on our undistributed items of tax preference. If we have (i) net income from the
sale or other disposition of “foreclosure property” (see below) that is held primarily for sale to customers in the
ordinary course of business or (ii) certain other non-qualifying income from foreclosure property, we will be
subject to tax at the highest corporate rate on such income. See “—Requirements for Qualification as a REIT—
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Asset Tests.” In eddition, if we have net income from “prohibited transactions” (which are, in'general, certain
sales or other dispositions of property (other than foreclosure property) held primarily for sale to customers in the
ordinary course of business), that income will be subject to a 100% tax.

We may also be subject to “Built-in Gains Tax” on any appreciated asset that we own or acquire that was
previously owned by a C corporation (i.e., a corporation generally subject to full corporute level tax). If we
dispose of any of these assets and recognize gain on the disposition of such asset during the ten-year period
immediately after the assets were owned by a C corporation {either prior to our REIT election, or through stock
acquisition or merger), then we generally will be subject to regular corporate income tax on the gain equal to the
lower of (i) the recognized gain at the time of the disposition or (ii) the built-in gain in that asset as of the date it
became a REIT asset.

In addition, if we should fail to satisfy the 75% gross income test or the 95% gross income test (as discussed
below) and nonetheless have maintained cur qualification as a REIT because certain other requirements have
been met, we will be subject to a 100% tax on the gross income attributable to the greater of the amount by which
we failed the 75% or 95% tests (or, for our 2001 through 2004 taxable years, a 90% test in liew of the 95% test),
multiplied by a fraction intended 1o reflect our profitability. Further, if we were to violate one or more of the
REIT asset tests (as discussed below) under certain circumstances, but the violation was due to reasonable cause
and not willful neglect and we were to take certain remedial actions, we may avoid a loss of our REIT status by,
among other things, paying a tax equal to the greater of $50,000 or the highest corporate tax rate multiplied by
the net income generated by the non-qualifying asset during a specified period. In addition, if we should fail to
satisfy one or more requirements for REIT qualification, other than the 75% and 95% gross income tests and
other than the assets test, but nonetheless maintain our qualification as a REIT because certain other requirements
have been met, we may be subject 1o a $50,000 penalty for each failure, Finally, we will incur a 100% excise tax
on certain transactions with a taxable REIT subsidiary that are not conducted on an arm’s-length basis.

See “—Requirements for Qualification as a REIT” below for other circumstances in which we may be
required to pay federal taxes.

Requirements for Qualification as a REIT

To qualify as a REIT, we must meet the requirements discussed below, relating to our organization, sources
of income, nature of assets and distributions of income to stockholders.

Organizational Requirements

The Code defines a REIT as a corporation, trust or association: (i) that is managed by one or more directors
or trustees; (ii) the beneficial ownership of which is evidenced by transferable shares or by transferable
certificates of beneficial interest; (iii) that would be taxable as a domestic corporation, but for Sections 856
through 859 of the Code; (iv) that is neither a financial institution nor an insurance company subject to certain
provisions of the Code; (v) the beneficial ownership of which is held by 100 or more persons during at least 335
days of a taxable year of twelve months, or during a proportionate part of a shorter laxable year (the “100
Shareholder Rule™); (vi) not more than 50% in value of the outstanding stock of which is owned, directly or
indirectly, by five or fewer individuals (as defined in the Code to include certain entittes) during the last half of
each taxable year (the “5/50 Rule™); (vii) that makes an election to be a REIT (or has made such ¢lection for a
previous taxable year) and satisfies all relevant filing and other administrative requirements established by the
IRS that must be met in order 1o elect and to maintain REIT status; (viii) that uses a calendar year for federal
income tax purposes; and (ix) that meets certain other tests, described below, regarding the nature of its income
and assets,

We belicve, but we cannet assure you, that we have satisfied and will continue to satisfy the organizational
requirements. In order to prevent a concentration of ownership of our stock that would cause us to fail the 5/50
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Rule or the 100 Shareholder Rule, we have placed certain restrictions on the transfer of our shares that are
intended to prevent such concentration of share ownership. However, such restrictions may not prevent us from
failing to meet these requirements, and thereby failing to qualify as a REIT.

In addition, to qualify as a REIT, a corporation may not have (as of the end of the taxable year) any eamings
and profits that were accumulated in periods before it elected REIT status. We belicve that we have not had any
accumulated eamnings and profits that are attributable to non-REIT periods, although the IRS is entitled to
challenge that determination.

Gross Income Tests

To qualify as a REIT, we must satisfy two annual gross income requirements. First, at least 75% of our
gross income (excluding gross income from prohibited transactions) for each taxable year must consist of defined
types of income derived directly or indirectly from investments relating to real property or mortgages on real
property (including pledges of equity interest in certain entities holding real property and also including “rents
from real propenty” (as defined in the Code)) and, in certain circumstances, interest on certain types of temporary
investment income. Second, at least 95% of our gross income (excluding gross income from prohibited
transactions) for each taxable year must be derived from such real property or temporary investments, dividends,
interest and gain from the sale or disposition of stock or securities, or from any combination of the foregoing.

We believe, but we cannot assure you, that we have been and will continue to be in compliance with the
gross income tests. If we fail to satisfy one or both gross income tests for any taxable year, we may nevertheless
qualify as a REIT for the year under certain relief provisions of the Code. If we were cligible to qualify under the
relief provisions, a 100% tax would be imposed with respect to the income exceeding one or both of the gross
income tests.

If we fail to satisfy one or both of the gross income tests and the relief provisions for any year, we will not
qualify as a REIT for such year. If we lose our REIT status, it would have a Material Adverse Effect on us.

Asset Tests

At the close of each quarter of our taxable year, we must satisfy the following tests relating to the nature of
our assets. First, at least 75% of the value of our total assets must be represented by cash or cash items (including
centain receivables), government securities, “real estale assets” (including interest in real property and in
mortgages on real property and shares in other qualifying REITs) or, in cases wherc we raise new capital through
stock or long-term (maturity of at least five years) debt offerings, temporary investments in stock or debt
instruments during the one-year period following our receipt of such capital (the “75% asset test”). Second, of
the investments not meeting the requirements of the 75% asset test, the value of any one issuer’s debt and equity
securities owned by us (other than our interest in any entity classified as a parnership for federal income tax
purposes, the stock of a taxable REIT subsidiary (as defined below) or the stock of a qualified REIT subsidiary)
may not exceed 5% of the value of our total assets (the “5% asset test”), and we may not own more than 10% of
any one issuer’s outstanding voting securities (the “10% voling securities test”) or 10% of the value of any one
issuer’s outstanding sccurities, subject to imited “safe harbor” exceptions (the “10% value test”). In addition, no
more than 20% of the value of our assets can be represented by securities of taxable REIT subsidiaries (the “20%
TRS test™).

If we fail to satisfy the asset tests at the end of any quarter other than our first quarter, we may nevertheless
continue to qualify as 8 REIT and maintain our REIT status if (i) we satisfied all of the asset tests at the close of
the preceding calendar quarter and (ii) the discrepancy between the value of our assets and the asset test
requirements arose from changes in the market values of our assets and was not wholly or partly caused by an
acquisition of nonqualifying assets.
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Furthermore, if we fail any of the asset tests discussed above at the end of any quarter without curing such
failure within 30 days after the end of such quarter, we would fail to qualify as a REIT, untess we were to qualify
under certain relief provisions enacted as part of the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004, Under one of these
relief provisions, if we were to fail the 5% asset test, the 10% voting securities test or the 10% value test, we
nevertheless would continue to qualify as a REIT if the failure was due to the ownership of assets having a total
value not exceeding the lesser of 1% of our assets al the end of the relevant guarter or $10 million, and we were
to dispose of such assets (or otherwise meet such asset tests) within six months after the end of the quarter in
which the failure was identified. If we were 1o fail to meet any of the REIT asset tests for a particular quarter, but
we did not qualify for the relief for de minimis failures that is described in the preceding sentence, then we would
be deemed to have satisfied the relevant asset test if: (1) following our identification of the failure, we were to file
a schedule with a description of each asset that caused the failure; (ii) the failure was due to reasonable cause and
not willful neglect; (iii) we were to dispose of the non-qualifying asset (or otherwise meet the relevant asset test)
within six months after the last day of the quarter in which the failure was identified; and (iv) we were to pay a
penalty tax equal to the greater of $50,000 or the highest corporate tax rate multiplied by the net income
generated by the non-qualifying asset during the period beginning on the first date of the failure and ending on
the date we dispose of the asset (or otherwise cure the asset test failure). It is not possible to predict, however,
whether in all circumstances we would be entitled to the benefit of these relief provisions. We intend to maintain
adequate records of the value of our assets to ensure compliance with the asset tests and to take such other
actions as may be required to comply with those tests.

We believe, but we cannot assure you, that we have been and will continue to be in compliance with the
75% asset test, the 10% voting securities test, the 10% value test, the 5% asset test and the 20% TRS test. If we
fail to satisfy any of these tests and the relief provisions, we would lose our REIT status, which would have a
Material Adverse Effect on us.

Foreclosure Properiy

The foreclosure property rules permit us {by our election) to foreclose or repossess properties without being
disqualified as a REIT as a result of receiving income that does not qualify under the gross income tests;
however, a corporate tax is imposed upon such net non-qualifying income from “foreclosure property.” Detailed
rules specify the caiculation of the tax, and the after-tax amount would increase the dividends we would be
required to distribute to stockholders each year. See “—Annual Distribution Requirements” below.

Foreclosure property treatment will end on the first day on which we enter into a lease of the property that
will give risc to income that is not “good REIT” income under Section B56(c)(3) of the Code. In addition,
foreclosure property treatment will end if any construction takes place on the property (other than completion of
a building, or other improvement more than 10% complete before default became imminent). Foreclosure
property treatment is available for an initial period of three years and may, in certain circumstances, be extended
for an additional three years. Foreclosure property treatment for qualified healthcare property is available for an
initial period of two years and may, in certain circumstances, be extended for an additional four years.

Taxable REIT Subsidiaries

We are permitted to own up to 100% of a “taxable REIT subsidiary” or “TRS.” A TRS is a corporation
subject 1o tax as a regular C corporation. Generally, a TRS can own assets that cannot be owned by a REIT and
can perform otherwise impermissible tenant services (excluding the direct or indirect operation or management
of a lodging or healthcare facility) which would otherwise disqualify the REIT’s rental income under the REIT
income tests. There are certain limits on the ability of a TRS to deduct interest payments made to us. In addition,
we will be obligated to pay a 100% penalty 1ax on some payments that we receive or on certain expenses
deducted by the TRS if the economic arrangements between the REIT, the REIT s tenants and the TRS are not
comparable to similar arrangements among unrelated parties.
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Annual Distribution Requirements

In order to be taxed as a REIT, we are required to distribute dividends (other than capital gain dividends) to
our stockholders in an amount at least equal to (i} the sum of (A) 90% of our “REIT taxable income” {computed
without regard to the dividends paid deduction and our net capital gain) and (B) 90% of the ret income (after
tax), if any, from foreclosure property, minus (ii) the sum of certain items of non-cash income. Such distribmions
must be paid in the taxable year to which they relate, or in the following taxable year if (i) they are (A) declared
in October, November or December, (B) payable to stockholders of record on a specified date in any one of these
months and (C) actually paid during January of such following year or (ii}(A) they are declared before we timely
file our tax return for such year, (B) paid on or before the first regular dividend payment after such declaration,
and (C) we elect on our federal income tax return for the prior year to have a specified amount of the subsequent
dividend as treated as paid in the prior year, To the extent that we do not distribute all of our net capital gain or
distribute a1 least 90%, but less than 100%, of our “REIT taxable income,” as adjusted, we will be subject to tax
on the undistributed amount at regular capital gains and ordinary corporate tax rates except (o the extent of net
operating loss or capital loss carryforwards. If any taxes are paid in connection with the Built-in Gains Tax rules,
these taxes will be deductible in computing REIT taxable income. Furthermore, if we fail to distribute during
each calendar year (or, in the case of disuibutions with declaration and record dates falling in the last three
months of the calendar year, by the end of January following such calendar year) at least the sum of (i) 85% of
our REIT ordinary income for such year, (ii) 95% of our REIT capital gain net income for such year (other than
long-term capital gain we elect to retain and treat as having been distributed to stockholders), and (iii) any
undistributed taxable income from prior periods, we will be subject to a 4% nondeductible excise tax on the
excess of such required distribution over the amounts actually distributed.

We believe, but we cannot assure you, that we have satisfied the annual distribution requirements for the
year of our REIT election and each year thereafter through the year ended December 31, 2007. Although we
intend to continue meeting the annual distribution requirements to qualify as a REIT for federal income tax
purposes for the year ending December 31, 2008 and subsequent years, it is possible that economic, market,
legal, tax or other considerations may limit our ability to meet such requirements. As a result, if we were not able
to meet the annual distribution requirement, we would fail to qualify as a REIT. Moreover, if we distribute 100%
of our REIT taxable income by taking advantage of the “throwback rule” described in clause (ii)(C) of the second
sentence of the preceding paragraph, satisfying the REIT distribution requirement and generally avoiding
corporate level tax, we may incur a 4% nondeductible excise tax.

Failure to Continue 10 Qualify

If we fail to satisfy one or more requirements for REIT qualification, other than an asset or income test
violation of a type for which relief is otherwise available as described above, we would retain our REIT
qualification if the failure was due to reasonable cause and not willful neglect, and if we were to pay a penalty of
$50,000 for each such failure. It is not possible to predict whether in all circumstances we would be entitled to
the benefit of this relief provision.

If our election to be taxed as a REIT is revoked or terminated (e.g., due to a failure to meet the REIT
qualification tests and oo relief provisions were to apply), we would be subject to tax (including any applicable
alternative minimum tax) on our taxable income at regular corporate rates (for all open tax years beginning with
the year our REIT election is revoked or terminated) except to the extent of net operating loss and capital loss
carryforwards. Distributions to stockholders would not be deductible by us, nor would they be required to be
made. To the extent of current and accumulated eamings and profits, all distributions to stockholders would be
taxable as ordinary income, and, subject to certain limitations in the Code, corporate stockholders may be eligible
for the dividends received deduction. In addition, we would be prohibited from re-clecting REIT status for the
four taxable years following the year during which we ceased to qualify as a REIT, unless certain relief
provisions of the Code applied. It is impossible to predict whether we would be entitled to such statutory relief.
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Federal Income Taxation of U.S, Stockholders

As used herein, the term “U.S, Stockholder” means a holder of our common stock that for U.S, federal
income tax purposes is: (i) an individual who is & citizen or resident of the United States; (ii) a corporation
created or organized in or under the laws of the United States or of any political subdivision thereof; (iii) an
estate the income of which is includible in gross income for U.S. federal income tax purposes regardless of its
source; or (iv) any trust with respect to which (A) a U.S. count is able to exercise primary supervision over the
administration of such trust or (B) an election has been made under applicable Treasury Regulations to retain its
pre-August 20, 1996 classification as a U.S. person. If a partnership holds our common stock, the tax treatment of
a partner will generally depend on the status of the partner and on the activities of the partnership. Partners of
partnerships holding our stock should consult their tax advisors. This section assumes the U.S. Stockholder holds
our common stock as a capital asset.

As long as we qualify as a REIT, distributions made to our laxable U.S. Stockholders out of current or
accumulated carnings and profits (and not designated as capital gain dividends) generally will be taken into
account by such U.S. Stockholders as ordinary income and will not be eligible for the qualified dividends rate
generally available to non-corporate holders or for the dividends received deduction gemerally available to
corporations. Distributions that are designated as capital gain dividends will be taxed as a capital gain (to the
extent such distributions do not exceed our actual net capital gain for the taxable year) without regard to the
period for which the stockholder has held its shares. The tax rates applicable to such capital gains are discussed
below. Distributions in excess of current and accumulated earnings and profits will not be taxable to a
stockholder to the extent that they do not exceed the adjusted basis of the stockholder’s shares (determined on a
share-by-share basis), but rather will reduce the adjusted basis of those shares. To the extent that distributions in
excess of current and accumulated eamings and profits exceed the adjusted basis of a stockholder’s shares, such
distributions will be included in income as capital gains. The tax rate applicable to such capital gain will depend
on the stockholder’s holding period for the shares. In addition, any distribution declared by us in October,
November or December of any year and payable to a stockholder of record on a specified date in any such month
shall be treated as both paid by us and received by the stockholder on December 31 of such year, provided that
the distribution is actually paid by us during January of the following calendar year.

We may clect to treat all or a part of our undistributed net capital gain as if it had been distsibuted to our
stockholders (including for purposes of the 4% excise tax discussed above under “—Requirements for
Qualification as a REIT-—-Annual Distribution Requirements”). If we make such an election, our stockholders
would be required 1o include in their income as long-term capital gain their proportionate share of our
undistributed nect capital gain, as designated by us. Bach such stockholder would be deemed to have paid its
proportionate share of the income tax imposed on us with respect to such undistributed net capital gain, and this
amount would be credited or refunded to the stockholder. In addition, the tax basis of the stockholder’s shares
would be increased by its proportionate share of undistributed net capital gains included in its income, less its
proportionate share of the income tax imposed on us with respect to such gains.

Stockholders may not include in their individual income tax returns any of our net operating losses or net
capital losses. Instead, such losses would be carried over by us for potential offset against our future income
(subject to certain limitations). Taxable distributions from us and gain from the disposition of our common stock
will not be treated as passive activity income, and, therefore, stockholders generally will not be able to apply any
“passive activity losses” (such as losses from certain types of limited partnerships in which the stockholder is a
limited partner) against such income. In addition, taxable distributions from us generally will be treated as
investment income for purposes of the investment interest limitations.

We will notify stockholders after the close of our taxable year as to the portions of the distributions
attributable to that ycar that constitute ordinary income, retum of capital and capital gain, To the extent a portion
of the distribution is designated as a capital gain dividend, we will notify stockholders as to the portion that is a
“15% rate gain distribution” and the portion that is an unrecaptured Section 1250 distribution. A 15% rate gain
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distribution is a capital gain distribution 10 domestic stockholders that are individuals, estates or trusts that is
taxable at a maximum rate of 15%. An unrecaptured Section 1250 gain distribution would be taxable to taxable
domestic stockholders that are individuals, estates or trusts at a maximum rate of 25%.

Taxation of U.S. Stockholders on the Disposition of Shares of Common Stock

In general, a U.S. Stockholder who is not a dealer in securities must treal any gain or loss realized upon a
taxable disposition of our common stock as long-term capital gain or loss if the U.S. Stockholder has held the
shares for more than one year, and otherwise as short-term capital gain or loss. However, a U.S. Stockholder
must treat any loss upon a sale or exchange of shares of our common stock held for six montbs or less as a long-
term capital loss to the extent of capital gain dividends and any other actual or deemed distributions from us
which the U.S. Stockholder treats as long-term capital gain. All or a portion of any loss that a U.S. Stockholder
realizes upon a taxable disposition of our common stock may be disallowed if the U.S. Stockholder purchases
other shares of our common stock within 30 days before or after the disposition.

Treatment of Tax-Exempt Stockholders

Tax-exempt organizations, including qualified employee pension and profit sharing trusts and individual
retirement accounts (collectively, “Exempt Organizations”), gencrally are exempt from federal income taxation.
However, they are subject lo taxation on their unrelated business taxable income (“UBTI"). While many
investments in real estate generate UBTI, the TRS has issued a published ruling that dividend distributions by a
REIT to an exempt employee pension trust do not constitute UBTI, provided that the shares of the REIT are not
otherwise used in an unrelated trade or business of the exempt employee pension trust. Based on that ruling, and
subject to the exceptions discussed below, amounts distributed by us to Exempt Organizations generally should
not constitute UBT1. However, if an Exempt Organization finances its acquisition of our common stock with
debt, a portion of its income from us will constitute UBTI pursuant to the “debt-financed property” rules.
Furthermore, social clubs, voluntary employee benefit associations, supplemental unemployment benefit trusts
and qualified group legal services plans that are exempt from taxation under paragraphs (7), (9), (17) and (20),
respectively, of Section 501(c) of the Code are subject to different UBTI rules, which generally will require them
to characterize distributions from us as UBTI. In addition, in certain circumstances, a pension trust that owns
more than 10% of our stock is required to treat a percentage of the dividends from us as UBTI.

Special Tax Considerations for Non-U.S. Stockholders

The rules governing U.S. federal income taxation of nonresident alien individuals, foreign corporations,
foreign estates and foreign trusts (collectively, “Non-U.S. Stockholders™) are complex, and the following is no
more than a brief summary of those rules. Non-U.S. Stockholders should consult with their own tax advisors to
determine the impact of federal, state, local and non-U.S. tax laws with regard to their ownership of our comnton
stock, including any reporting requirements.

For purposes of this discussion, the term “Non-U.S. Stockholder” does not include any foreign stockholder
whose investment in our stock is “effectively connected” with the conduct of a trade or business in the United
States. Such a foreign stockholder, in general, will be subject to U.S, federal income tax with respect to its
investment in our stock in the same manner as a U.S. Stockholder is taxed (subject to applicable alternative
minimum tax and a special alternative minimum tax in the case of nonresident alicn individuals). In addition, a
foreign corporation receiving income that is treated as effectively connected with a U.S. trade or business also
may be subject to an additional 30% *branch profits tax,” unless an applicable tax treaty provides & lower rate or
an exemption, Certain centification requirements must be satisfied in order for effectively connected income to be
exempt from withholding.

Distributions to Non-U.S. Stockholders that are not attributable to gain from sales or exchanges by us of
U.S. real property interests and are not designated by us as capital gain dividends (or deemed distributions of

24




retained capital gains) wiil be treated as dividends of ordinary income to the extent that they are made out of our
current or accumulated earnings and profits. Such distributions ordinarily wili be subject to a withholding tax
equal to 30% of the gross amount of the distribution unless an applicable tax treaty reduces or eliminates that tax.
Distributions in excess of ous current and accumulated earnings and profits will not be taxable to a stockholder to
the extent that such distributions do not exceed the adjusted basis of the stockholder’s shares (determined on a
share-by-share basis), but rather will reduce the adjusted basis of those shares. To the extent that distributions in
excess of current and accumulated earnings and profits exceed the adjusted basis of a Non-U.S. Siockholder’s
shares, such distributions will give risc to tax liability if the Non-U.S. Stockholder would otherwise be subject to
tax on any gain from the sale or disposition of its shares, as described below.

We expect to withhold U.S. tax at the rate of 30% on the gross amount of any dividends, other than
dividends treated as attributable to gain from sales or exchanges of U.S. real property interests and capital gain
dividends, paid to a Non-U.S. Stockholder, unless (i) a lower treaty rate applies and the required IRS Form
W-8BEN evidencing eligibility for that reduced rate is filed with us or the appropriate withholding agent or
(ii) the Non-U.S. Stockholder files an IRS Form W-8ECI or a successor form with us or the appropriate
withholding agent properly claiming that the distributions arc effectively connected with the Non-U.S.
Stockhelder’s conduct of a U.S. trade or business.

For any year in which we qualify as a REIT, distributions to a Non-U.S, Stockholder that owns more than
5% of our common shares at any time during the one-year period ending on the date of distribution and that are
attributable to gain from sales or exchanges by us of U.S. real property interests will be taxed to a Non-U.S.
Stockholder under the provisions of the Foreign Investment in Real Property Tax Act of 1980 (“FIRPTA").
Under FIRPTA, distributions attributable to gain from sales of U.S. real property interests are taxed to a
Non-U.S. Stockholder as if such gain were effectively connected with a U.S. business. Accordingly, a Non-U.S.
Stockholder that owns more than 5% of our shares will be taxed at the normal capital gain rates applicable to a
U.S. Stockholder (subject to any applicable alternative minimum tax and a special altemative minimum tax in the
case of nonresident alien individuals). Distributions subject to FIRPTA made to a Non-U.S. Stockholder that
owns more than 5% of our shares also may be subject to 30% branch profits tax in the hands of a foreign
corporate stockholder not entitled to treaty relief or exemption. Under FIRPTA, we are required to withhold 35%
of any distribution to a Non-U.S. Stockholder that owns more than 5% of our shares which is or could be
designated as a capital gain dividend attributable to U.S. real property interests. Morcover, if we designate
previously made distributions as capital gain dividends attributable to U.S. real property interests, subsequent
distributions (up to the amount of such prior distributions) will be treated as capital gain dividends subject to
FIRPTA withholding. This amount is creditable against the Non-U.S. Stockholder’s FIRPTA tax liability. It
should be noted that the 35% withhoiding tax rate on capital gain dividends paid to Non-U.S. Stockholders
owning more than 5% of our shares is higher than the maximum rate on long-term capital gains of non-corporate
persons. Capital gain dividends not attributable to gain on the sale or exchange of U.S. real property interests are
not subject to U.S. taxation if there is no requirement of withholding.

If a Non-U.S. Stockholder does not own more than 5% of our shares at any time during the one-year period
ending on the date of the distributior, the gain will not be considered to be effectively connected with a US.
business. As such, a Non-U.8. Stockhelder who does not own more than 5% of our shares would not be required
to file a U.S. federal income tax return by receiving such a distribution. In this case, the distribution will be
weated as a REIT dividend to that Non-U.S. Stockholder and taxed as a REIT dividend that is not a capital gain
distribution (and subject to possible withholding) as described above. In addition, the branch profits tax will not
apply to the distribution.

For so long as our commen stock continues to be regularly traded on an established securities market, the
sale of such stock by any Non-U.S. Stockhelder who is not a Five Percent Non-U.S. Stockholder (as defined
below) generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax (unless the Non-U.S. Stockholder is a nonresident
alien individual who was present in the United States for more than 182 days during the taxable year of the sale
and certain other conditions apply, in which case such gain will be subject to a 30% lax on a gross basis). A
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“Five Percent Non-U.S. Stockholder” is a Non-U.S. Stockholder who, a1 some time during the five-year period
preceding such sale or disposition, beneficially owned (including under certain attribution rules) more than 5% of
the total fair market value of our common stock (as outstanding from time to time).

In general, the sale or other taxable disposition of our common stock by a Five Percent Non-U.S.
Stockholder also will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax if we are a “domestically controlled REIT.” A
REIT is a “domestically controlled REIT” if, at all times during the five-year period preceding the disposition in
question, less than 50% in value of its shares is held directly or indirectly by Non-U.S. Stockholders. Although
we believe that we currently qualify as a domestically controlled REIT, because our common stock is publicly
traded, we cannot assure you that we currently qualify or will qualify as a domestically controlled REIT at any
time in the future. If we do not constitute a domestically controlled REIT, a Five Percent Non-U.S. Stockholder
will be taxed in the same manner as & U.S. Stockholder with respect to gain on the sale of our common stock
(subject to applicable alternative minimum tax and a special alternative minimum tax in the case of nonresident
alien individuals).

Information Reporting Requirements and Backup Withholding Tax

Information reporting to our stockholders and to the TRS will apply to the amount of distributions paid
during each calendar year and distributions required to be treated as so paid during a calendar year, and the
amount of tax withheld, if any, and to the proceeds of a sale or other disposition of our common stock. Under the
backup withholding rules, a stockholder may be subject to backup withholding at the applicable rate (currently
28%) with respect to distributions paid and proceeds from a disposition of our comsmon stock unless such holder
(i) is & corporation, non-U.S. person or comes within certain other exempt categories and, when required,
demonstrates this fact or (ii} provides a taxpayer identification number, certifies as to no loss of exemption from
backup withholding and otherwise complies with the applicable requirements of the backup withholding rules. A
stockholder who does not provide us with its correct taxpayer identification number also may be subject to
penalties imposed by the IRS.

Stockholders should consult their own tax advisors reganding their qualifications for an exemption from
backup withholding and the procedure for obtaining such an exemption. Backup withholding is not an additional
tax. Rather, the amount of any backup withholding with respect 10 a payment to a U.S. Stockholder will be
allowed as a credit against the U.S. Stockholder's U.S. federal income tax liability and may entitle the U.S.
Stockholder to a refund, provided that the required information is furnished timely to the IRS.

As a general matter, backup withholding and information reporting will not apply to a payment of the
proceeds of a sale of our common stock by or through a foreign office of a foreign broker. Information reporting
(but not backup withholding) will apply, however, to a payment of the proceeds of a sale of our common stock
by a foreign office of a broker that (i) is a U.S. person, (ii) is a foreign partnership that derives 50% or more of its
gross income for certain periods frem the conduct of a trade or business in the United States, or more than 50%
of whose capital or profit interests are owned during certain periods by U.S. persons, or (iii) is a “controlled
foreign corporation” for U.S. tax purposes, unless the broker has documentary evidence in its records that the
holder is @ Non-U.S. Stockholder and certain other conditions are satisfied, or the stockholder otherwise
establishes an exemption. Payment to or through a U.S. office of a broker of the proceeds of 2 sale of our
common stock is subject to both backup withholding and information reporting unless the stockholder certifies
under penalties of perjury that the stockholder is a Non-U.S. Stockholder or otherwise establishes an exemption.
A Non-U.S. Stockholder may obtain a refund of any amounts withheld under the backup withholding rules by
filing the appropriate claim for a refund with the IRS.
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Other Tax Consequences
State and Local Taxes

We and/or our stockholders may be subject to taxation by various states and localities, including those in
which we or a stockholder transact business, own property or reside. The state and local tax treatment may differ
from the federal income tax treatment described above. Consequently, stockholders should consult their own tax
advisers regarding the effect of state and local tax laws, in addition to the federal, foreign and other tax laws, in
connection with an investment in owr common stock.

Possible Legislasive or Other Actions Affecting Tax Consequences

You should recognize that our present federal income tax treatment may be modified by future legislative,
judicial and administrative actions or decisions at any time, which may be retroactive in effect, and which could
adversely affect the tax consequences of an investment in shares of our common stock. The rules dealing with
U.S. federal income taxation are constantly under review by persons involved in the legislative process and by
the IRS and the Treasury Department, resulting in statutory changes as well as promulgation of new, or revisions
to existing, regulations and revised interpretations of established concepts. We cannot predict the likelihood of
passage of any new tax legislation or other provisions either directly or indirectly affecting us or our stockholders
or the value of an investment in pur common stock.

ITEM 1A. Risk Factors
RISK FACTORS

This section discusses the most significant factors that affect our business, operations and financial
condition. It does not describe all risks and uncertaintics applicable to us, our industry or ownership of our
securities. If any of the following risks, as well as other risks and uncertainties that are not yet identified or that
we currently think are not material, actually occur, we could be matenially adversely affecied. In that event, the
value of our securities could decline.

We have grouped these risk factors into three general categories:
+  Risks arising from our business,

* Risks arising from our capital structure; and

« Risks arising from our status as a REIT.

Risks Arising from Our Business

We are dependent on Kindred and Brookdale Senior Living; either of Kindred's or Brookdale Senior Living's
inability or unwillingness to satisfy its obligations under its agreements with us could significantly harm us
and our ability to service our indebtedness and other obligations and to make distributions to our stockholders
as required for us 1o continue to qualify as a REIT.

We are dependent on Kindred and Brookdale Senior Living in the following ways:

+  We lease a substantial pertion of our properties to Kindred and subsidiaries of Brookdale Senior Living,
and therefore Kindred and Brookdale Senior Living accounted for a significant portion of our total
revenues in 2007 and 2006, and they are expected to continue to be significant sources of our revenues;

¢ Since the Kindred Master Leases and our leases with subsidiaries of Brookdale Senior Living are
wriple-net Jeases, we depend on Kindred and those subsidiaries to pay insurance, taxes, utilities and
maintenance and repair expenses required in connection with the leased properties; and
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* Kindred and certain subsidiaries of Brookdale Senior Living have agreed to indemnify, defend and hold
us harmless from and against various claims, litigation and liabilities arising in connection with their
respective businesses.

We cannot assure you that Kindred or Brookdale Senior Living will have sufficient assets, income, access to
financing and insurance coverage to enable it to satisfy its obligations under its agreements with us. In addition,
any failure by Kindred or Brookdale Senior Living to effectively conduct its operations could have a material
adverse effect on its business reputation or on its ebility to attract and retain patients and residents in its
properties, Any inability or unwillingness by Kindred or Brookdale Senior Living to satisfy its obligations under
its agreements with us or to effectively conduct its operations could have a Material Adverse Effect on us.

We may be unable to find another tenant or operator for our properties if we have to replace Kindred,
subsidiaries of Brookdale Senior Living or any of our other tenants or operators.

We may have to find another tenant or operator for the properties covered by one or more of the Kindred
Master Leases or our leases with subsidiaries of Brookdale Senior Living or any of our other tenants or operators
upon the expiration of the terms of the applicable lease or upon a default by Kindred or any of those subsidiaries,
tenants or operators. During any period that we are attempting to locate one or more tenants or operators, there
could be a decrease or cessation of rental payments on those propertics. We cannot assure you that Kindred,
subsidiarics of Brookdale Senior Living or any of our other tenants or operators will elect to renew their
respective leases with us upon expiration of the terms thereof, nor can we assure you that we will be able to
locate another suitable tenant or operator or, if we are successful in locating such a tenant or operator, that the
rental payments from that new tenant or operator would not be significantly less than the existing rental
payments. Qur ability to locate another suitable tenant or operator may be significantly delayed or limited by
various state licensing, receivership, CON or other laws, as well as by Medicare and Medicaid
change-of-ownership rules, We also may incur substantial additional expenses in connection with any such
licensing, receivership or change-of-ownership proceedings. Any such delays, limitations and expenses could
materially delay or impact our ability to collect rent, to obtain possession of leased properties or otherwise to
exercise remedies for tenant default and could have a Material Adverse Effect on us,

We may encounter certain risks when implementing our business strategy to pursue investments in, and/or
acquisitions or development of, additional seniors housing and/or healthcare-related assets.

We intend 1o continve to pursue investments in, and/or acquisitions or development of, additional seniors
housing and/or healthcare-related assets domestically and internationally, subject to the contractual restrictions
contained in our revolving credit facility, our Canadian credit facility and the indentures governing our
outstanding senior notes. Investments in and acquisitions of these properties, including the properties acquired in
connection with the acquisition of the assets of Sunrise REIT, entail general risks associated with any real estate
investment, including risks that the investment will fail to perform in accordance with expectations, that the
estimates of the cost of improvements necessary for acquired properties will prove inaccurate or that the tenant or
operator will fail 1o meet performance expectations. In addition, investments in and acquisitions of properties
outside the United States would subject us to legal, economic and market risks assoctated with operating in
foreign countries, such as currency and tax risks. Any new development projects that we pursue would also be
subject to numerous risks, including risks of construction delays or cost overruns that may increase project costs,
new project commencement risks such as receipt of zoning, occupancy and other required governmental
approvals and permits and the risk of incurring development costs in connection with projects that are not
pursued 10 completion. In addition, we may borrow to finance any investments in, and/or acquisitions or
development of, seniors housing, healthcare-related and/or other properties, which would increase our leverage.

We compete for investment and acquisition opportunities with entities that have substantially greater
financial resources than we do, Our ability to compete successfully for these opportunities is affected by many
factors, including our cost of obtaining debt and equity capital at rates comparable to or better than our
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competitors. Competition generally may reduce the number of suitable investment and acquisition opportunities
available to us and increase the bargaining power of property owners seeking to sell, thereby impeding our
investment, acquisition and development activitics. See “Business—Competition” included in Item 1 of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K. Even if we succeed in identifying and competing for investment or acquisition
opportunities, these opportunities would subject us to the risk that the value of the properties or businesses we
invest in or acquire could decrease substantially after such investment or acquisition, that we might be unable to
accurately assess the value of properties or businesses that are not of the type we currently own or that the
investment or acquisition would divert management’s attention from our existing business, some or all of which
could have a Material Adverse Effect on us.

Furthermore, as we continue to implement our business strategy to pursue investments in, and/or
acquisitions or development of, additional seniors housing and/or healthcare-related assets or businesses, we
intend to increase the number of operators of our properties and, potentially, our business segments. We cannot
assure you that we will have the capabilities to successfully monitor and manage a portfolio of propertics with a
growing number of operators and/or manage such businesses.

Our investments are concentrated in seniors housing and healthcare-related properties, making us more
vulnerable economically than if our investments were diversifted.

We invest primarily in real estate—in particular, seniors housing and healthcare-related properties.
Accordingly, we are exposed to the risks inherent in concentrating investments in real estate, and these risks are
magnified by the fact that our real estate investmeats are limited to properties used in the seniors housing or
healthcare industries, A downturn in the real estate industry could adversely affect the value of our properties and
our ability wo sefl properties for a price or on terms acceptable to us. A downtumn in the seniors housing or
healtheare industries could negatively impact our operators’ ability to make rental payments to us, which, in tum,
could have a Material Adverse Effect on us.

Furthermore, the healthcare industry is highly regulated, and changes in government regulation and
reimbursement in the past have had material adverse consequences on the industry in general, which
consequences may not have been contemplated by lawmakers and regulators. We cannot assure you that future
changes in government regulation of healthcare will pot have a material adverse effect on the heaithcare indusuy,
including our tenants end operators. Our ability to invest in non-seniors housing or non-healthcare-related
properties is restricted by the terms of our revolving credit facility and our Canadian credit facility, so these
adverse effects may be more pronounced than if we diversified our investments outside of real estate or outside
of seniors housing or healtheare.

Our tenants, managers and operators may be adversely affected by increasing healthcare regulation and
enforcement,

We believe that the regulatory environment surrounding the long-term healthcare industry has intensified
both in the amount and type of regulations and in the efforts to enforce those regulations. This is particularly true
for large for-profit, multi-facility providers like Kindred, Brookdale Senior Living and Sunrise.

The extensive federal, state and local laws and regulations affecting the healthcare industry include, but are
not limited to, laws and regulations relating to licensure, conduct of operations, ownership of facilities, addition
of facilities and equipment, allowable costs, services, prices for services, quality of care, patient rights, fraudulent
or abusive behavior, and financial and other arrangements which may be entered inte by healthcare providers.
Federal and state govemnments have intensified enforcement policies, resulting in a significant increase in the
number of inspections, citations of regulatory deficiencies and other regulatory sanctions, including terminations
from the Medicare and Medicaid programs, bars on Medicare and Medicaid payments for new admissions, civil
monetary penalties and even criminal penalties. See¢ “Governmental Regulation—Healthcare Regulation”
included in Item 1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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If our tenants, managers or operators fail to comply with the extensive laws, regulations and other
requirements applicable to their businesses and the operation of our properties, they could become ineligible to
receive reimbursement from governmental and private third-party payor programs, face bans on admissions of
new patients or residents, suffer civil and/or criminal penalties and/or be required to make significant changes to
their operations. Qur tenants, managers and operators also could be forced to expend considerable resources
responding to an investigation or other enforcement action under applicable taws or regulations. In addition,
failure of our tenants, managers or operators to comply with the applicable healthcare regulations could adversely
affect its results of operations and financial condition and the results of operations of our properties operated or
managed by it which, in turn, could have a Material Adverse Effect on us.

We arc unable to predict the future course of federal, state and local regulation or legislation, including the
Medicare and Medicaid statutes and regulations. Changes in the regulatory framework could have a material
adverse effect on our tenants, managers and operators, which, in turn, could have a Material Adverse Effect on
us,

Changes in the reimbursement rates or methods of payment from third-party payors, including the Medicare
and Medicaid programs, could have a material adverse effect on certain of our tenants and operators.

Kindred and certain of our other tenants and operators rely on reimbursement from third-party payors,
including the Medicare and Medicaid programs, for substantially all of their revenues. There continue to be
various federal and state legislative and regulatory proposals to implement cost-containment measures that limit
payments to healthcare providers, such as the proposed rule issued by CMS on January 29, 2008 updating LTAC
PPS payment rates for the 2009 rate year and the President’s proposed 2009 budget that could affect SNF PPS
rates. See “"Governmental Regulation—Healthcare Regulation” included in Item 1 of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. In addition, private third-party payors have continued their efforts to control healthcare costs. We
cannot assure you that adequate reimbursement levels will be available for services to be provided by Kindred
and our other tenants and operators which are curmrently being reimbursed by Medicare, Medicaid or private
payors. Significant limits by govemmental and private third-party payors on the scope of services reimbursed and
on reimbursement rates and fees could have a material adverse effect on the liquidity, financial condition and
results of operations of Kindred and certain of our other tenants and operators, which, in turn, could have a
Material Adverse Effect on us.

The properties managed by Sunrise account for a significant portion of our revenues, and Sunrise is currently
experiencing significant legal, accounting and regulatory difficulties.

Sunrise currently manages 79 of our seniors housing communities pursuant to long-term management
agreements. These properties represent a substantial portion of our portfolio, based on their original cost, and
account for a significant portion of our revenues. According o public disclosures, Sunrise is currently reviewing
its strategic alternatives and is experiencing significant legal, accounting and regulatory difficulties. Sunrise
announced that it intends to file its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006 no later
than March 17, 2008, although there can be no assurance it will do so. If Sunrise does not so file, its shares will
likely be delisted from the New York Stock Exchange. The diversion of Sunrise management and employee
attention away from the operation of our propertics to the strategic review process and these other difficulties
could adversely affect the performance of our assets, which, in turn, could have a Material Adverse Effect on us.
We cannot assure you that these issues will not harm Sunrise’s business reputation or its ability to attract and
retain qualified employees and to enlist and maintain residents in our propertics, which also could have a
Material Adverse Effect on us. In addition, we cannot predict the impact, if any, that the resolution of these
uncertainties will have on our financial condition and results of operations. The failure or inability of Sunrise to
satisfy its legal, accounting and regulatory requirements and to pay and perform its obligations could have a
Material Adverse Effect on us. .
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We rely on Sunrise 1o manage a significant number of our seniors housing communities efficiently and
effectively; Sunrise's inability to do so could have a Material Adverse Effect on us.

Although we have various rights as owner under the Sunrise management agreements, we are relying on
Sunrise’s personnel, good faith, expertise, historical performance, technical resources and information systems,
proprietary information and judgment 10 manage a significant number of our seniors housing communities
efficiently and effectively. We are also relying on Sunrise to set resident fecs and otherwise operate those
propertics pursuant to our management agreements and in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.
Any change in the senior management of Sunrise or any adverse developments in Sunrise’s business and affairs,
financia) strength or ability to operate our properties efficiently and effectively could have a Material Adverse
Effect on us. For example, we depend on Sunrise’s ability to attract and retain skilled management personnel
who are responsible for the day-to-day operations of our seniors housing communities. A shortage of nurses or
other trained personnel or general inflationary pressures may require that Sunrise enhance its pay and benefits
package to compete effectively for such personnel, the costs of which are included in the operating budget for
cach property. Suaris¢ may not be able to offset such added costs by increasing the rates charged to residents.
Any increase in these costs or any failure by Sunrise to attract and retain qualified personnel could adversely
affect the income we receive from these properties. In addition, any inability or unwillingness on Sunrise's part
1o satisfy its obligations under the management agreements it has with us could have a Material Adverse Effect
on us.

We are exposed 1o various operational risks, liabilities and claims with respect to our seniors housing
communities managed by Sunrise that may adversely affect our ability to generate revenues and/or increase
our costs and could have a Material Adverse Effect on us.

Historically, we have leased our healthcare properties, other than our MOBs, to healthcare operating
companies under triple-net leases, which require the tenants to pay all property-related expenses and 10 make
rental payments to us. As a result of the Sunrise REIT acquisition, however, we are now exposed to various
operational risks, liabilities and claims with respect to our Sunrise-managed properties that may adversely affect
our ability to generate revenues and/or increase our costs, thereby reducing our profitability. These risks include
fluctuations in occupancy levels, the inability to achieve economic resident fees (including anticipated increases
in those fees), rent control regulations, increases in costs of materials, energy, labor and services, national and
regional economic conditions, the imposition of mew or increased taxes, capital expenditure requirements,
professional and general liability claims and the availability and costs of professional and general liability
insurance. Any one or a combination of these factors could result in operating deficiencies at our Sunrise-
managed properties, which could have a Material Adverse Effect on us.

We have only limited rights 1o terminate our management agreements with Sunrise, and we may be unabie to
replace Sunrise if our management agreements are terminated or not renewed.

We and Sunrise are parties to long-term management agreements pursuvant to which Sunrise currently
provides comprehensive property management services with respect to 79 of our seniors housing communities.
Each management agreement has a term of 30 years and may only be terminated by us upoa the occurrence of an
event of default by Sunrise in the performance of a material covenant or term thereof (including the revocation of
any licenses or certificates necessary for operation), subject in each case to Sunrise’s rights to cure deficiencies,
or upon the occurrence of certain insolvency events relating to Sunrise. We can also terminate the management
agreement if a pool of properties fails to achieve a targeted net operating income level over a twelve-month
period, other than as a result of a default by Sunrise. Consequently, in order to terminate Sunrise’s management
agreement on a single underperforming property, we may be obligated to sell the property. If we were 1o exercise
this remedy with respect to a large number of our seniors housing communities managed by Sunrise, the
dispositions could have a Material Adverse Effect on us.
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In the event that our management agreements with Sunrise are terminated for any reascn or are not renewed
upon expiration of their terms, we will have to find another manager for the properties covered by those
agreements. We cannot assure you that we will be able to locate another suitable manager or, if we are successful
in locating such a manager, that such manager will manage the properties as effectively as Sunrise. Any such
inability or lengthy delay in replacing Sunrise as manager following termination or non-renewsal of our
management agreements could have a Material Adverse Effect on us.

We may not be able to realize the intended benefits of the Sunrise REIT acquisition, which could adversely
affect our financial condition and results of operations.

The Sunrise REIT acquisition poses a number of risks, including the risks that:

» the acquired properties may not perform as well as we anticipated due to various factors, such as
disruptions caused by the integration of operations with us and changes in economic conditions;

+ because we do not manage the day-to-day operations of the acquired properties, we rely on Sunrise to
provide accurate property-level financial results for our properties in a timely manner; and

* we may experience greater than expected costs and/or may not realize the expected revenues, cost
savings or development opportunities from the transaction within the expected timeframe, if ot all.

If the liabilities we have assumed in the Sunrise REIT acquisition are greater than expecied, or if there are
unknown liabilities relating to the Sunrise REIT properties, our business could be materially and adversely
affected.

We acquired our ownership interests in many of the Sunrise REIT properties through the acquisition of the
entities that own these properties. These entities may be subject to lisbilities unknown to us that, if asserted,
could have a Material Adverse Effect on us, such as;

*» liabilities relating to the clean-up or remediation of undisclosed environmental conditions;
* unasserted claims of vendors or other persons dealing with such entities;

+ liabilities, claims and litigation, whether or not incurred in the ordinary course of business, relating to
periods prior to the Sunrise REIT acquisition;

* claims for indemnification by general partners, directors, officers and others indemmnified by such
entities; and

* liabilities for taxes relating to periods prior to the Sunrise REIT acquisition.

As a result, we cannot assure you that the Sunrise REIT acquisition will be successful or will not, in fact,
harmn our business. Among other things, if the liabilities we have assumed are greater than expected, or if there
are obligations relating to the Sunrise REIT properties of which we were not aware at the time we completed the
Sunrise REIT acquisition, our business could be materially and adversely affected.

Our current and future investments in joint ventures could be adversely affected by our lack of sole decision-
making authority, our reliance on our joint venture partners’ financial condition, any disputes that may arise
between us and our joint venture partners and our exposure to potential losses from the actions of our joint
venlure partners.

Through the Sunrise REIT acquisition and our resulting relationship with Sunrise pursuant to a strategic
alliance agreement, we have acquired a 75% to 83% ownership interest in 61 seniors housing communities, with
the minority interests in those communities being owned by affiliates of Sunrise. In addition, as of December 31,
2007, we owned seven MOBs though joint ventures with partners who typically provide management and leasing
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services for the properties. These joint ventures involve risks not present with respect to our wholly owned
properties, including the following:

*»  We may share decision-making authority with our joint venture partners regarding major decisions
affecting the ownership or operation of the joint venture and any property held jointly thereby, such as
the sale or financing of any such property or the making of additional capital contributions for the
benefit of anv such property, which may prevent us from taking actions that are opposed by our joint
venture partners;

*  Prior consent of our joint venture partners may be required for a sale or transfer to a third party of our
interests in the joint venture, which restricts our ability to dispose of our interests in the joint venture;

+ Qur joint venture partners might become bankrupt or fail to fund their share of required capital
contributions, which may delay construction or development of a property or increase our financial
commitment (o the joint venture;

«  Our joint venture partners may have business interests or goals with respect to the property that conflict
with our busiress interests and goals, which could increase the likelihood of disputes regarding the
ownership, management or disposition of the property;

 Disputes may develop with our joint venture partners over decisions affecting the property or the joint
venture, which may result in litigation or arbitration that would increase our expenses and distract our
officers and/or directors from focusing their time and effort on our business and possibly disrupt the
day-to-day operations of the property, such as delaying the implementation of imporant decisions unti]
the conflict or dispute is resolved; and

*  We may suffer losses as a result of the actions of our joint venture partners with respect 1o our joint
venture investments.

We may be adversely affected by fluctuations in currency exchange rates.

We curmrently own twelve seniors housing communities in the Canadian provinces of Ontario and British
Columbia. As a result, we are subject to fluctuations in U.S. and Canadian exchange ratcs which may, from time
to time, have an impact on our financial condition and results of operations. As we increase our international
presence through investments in, and/or acquisitions or development of, seniors housing and/or healthcare-
related assets outside the United States, we may transact additional business in currencies other than U.S. or
Canadian dollars. Although we may decide to pursue hedging alternatives (including borrowing in local
currencies) to protect against foreign currency fluctuations, we cannot assure you that any such fluctuations will
not have a Material Adverse Effect on us.

Our revenues from the seniors housing communities managed by Sunrise are dependent on private pay
sources; Events which adversely affect the ability of seniors to afford our daily resident fees could cause our
occupancy rates, resident fee revenues and results of operations to decline.

Assisted and independent living services currently are not generally reimbursable under govemnment
reimbursement programs, such as Medicare and Medicaid. Accordiogly, substantially all of the resident fee
revenues generated by our Sunrise-managed properties are derived from private pay sources consisting of income
or assets of residents or their family members. In general, because of the expense associated with building new
properties and the staffing and other costs of providing services at these properties, only seniors with income or
asscts meeting or exceeding the comparable median in the regions where our properties are located typically can
afford to pay the daily resident and care fees. Events such as economic downturns, changes in the housing market
or changes in demographics could adversely affect the ability of seniors to afford these fees. If Sunrise is unable
to attract and retain seniors with sufficient income, assets or other resources required to pay the fees associated
with assisted and independent living services, our occupancy rates, resident fee revenues and results of
operations could decline, which, in turn, could have a Material Adverse Effect on us.
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Overbuilding in markets in which our seniors housing communities are located could adversely affect our
future occupancy rates, operating margins and profitability.

Barriers to entry in the assisted living industry are not substantial. Consequently, the development of new
seniors: housing communities could outpace demand. If the development of new seniors housing communitics
outpaces demand for those communities in the markets in which our properties are Jocated, those markets may
become saturated. Overbuilding in our markets, therefore, could cause us to experience decreased occupancy,
reduced operating margins and lower profitability.

Termination of resident lease agreements could adversely affect our revenues and earnings.

Applicable regulations governing .assisted living communities generally require written resident lease
agreements with each resident. Most of these regulations also require that each resident have the right to
terminate the resident lease agreement for any reason on reasonable notice. Consistent with these regulations, the
resident lease agreements signed by Sunrise with respect to our properties managed by it generally allow
residents to terminate their lease agreements on 30 days’ notice. Thus, Sunrise cannot contract with residents to
stay for longer periods of time, unlike typical apartment leasing arrangements with terms of up 1o one year or
longer. In addition, the resident tumover rate in our sentors housing communities may be difficult to predict. If a
large number of resident lease agreements terminate at or around the same time, and if our units remained
unoccupied, then our revenues and ecamings could be adversely affected, which, in turn, could have a Material
Adverse Effect on us. . .

Significant legal actions could subject our tenants, managers and operators to increased operating costs and
substantial uninsured liabilities, which could materially adversely affect their liguidity, financial condition and
results of operation.

Although claims and costs of professional liability insurance seem to be growing at a stower pace, our
tenants, managers and operators have experienced substantial increases in both the number and size of
professional liability claims in recent years. In addition to large compensatory claims, plaintiffs’ atiormeys
continue to seek significant punitive damages and attorneys’ fees.

Due to historically high frequency and severity of professional liability claims against healthcare providers,
the availability of professional liability insurance has been restricted and the premiums on such insurance
coverage remain very high. As a result, the insurance coverage of our tenants, managers and operators might not
cover all claims against them or continue to be available to them at a reasonable cost. If our tenants, managers
and operators are unable 10 maintain adequate insurance coverage or are required to pay punitive damages, they
may be exposed to substantial liabilities.

Kindred insures its professional liability risks in part through a wholly owned, limited purpose insurance
company. The limited purpose insurance company insures initial losses up to specified coverage levels per
occurrence with no aggregate coverage limit. Coverage for losses in excess of those per occurrence levels is
maintained through unaffiliated commercial insurance carriers up to an aggregate limit. The limited purpose
insurance company then insures all claims in'excess of the aggregate limit for the unaffiliated commercial
insurance carriers. Kindred maintains general liability insurance and professional malpractice liability insurance
in amounts and with deductibles which Kindred management has indicated that it believes are sufficient for its
operations. :

Qur tenants, managers and operators, including without limitation, Kindred, that insure any part of their
general and professional liability risks through their own captive limited purpose cntities generaily estimate the
future cost of general and professional liability through actuarial studies which rely primarily on historical data.
However, due to the increase in the number and severity of professional claims against healthcare providers,
these actuarial studies may underestimate the future cost of claims, and we cannot assure you that these tenants’,
managers’ and operators’ reserves for future claims will be adequate to cover the actual cost of those claims. If
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the actual cost of claims is significanily higher than the tenants’, managers and operators’ reserves, it could have
a material adverse effect on the results of operations at our properties operated by that tenant, manager or
operator, the tenants’, managers’ and operators’ liquidity, financial condition and results of operation and on their
ability to make payments to us or on our behalf, which, in turn, could have a Material Adverse Effect on us.

Our operators may be sued under a federal whistleblower statute.

Our operators who engage in business with the federal government may be sued under a federal
whistleblower statute designed to combat fraud and abuse in the healthcare industry. See “Governmental
Regulation—Healthcare Regulation” included in Item 1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. These lawsuits can
involve significant monetary damages and award bounties to private plaintiffs who successfully bring these suits.
If any of these lawsuits were to be brought against our operators, such suits combined with increased operating
costs and substantial uninsured liabilities could have a material adverse effect on the operators’ liguidity,
financial condition and results of operation and on their ability to make rental payments 1o us, which, in tumn,
could have a Material Adverse Effect on us.

If any of our properties are found to be contaminated, or if we become involved in any environmental disputes,
we could incur substantial liabilities and costs.

Under federal and state environmental laws and regulations, a current or former owner of real property may
be liable for costs related to the investigation, removal and remediation of hazardous or toxic substances or
peiroleum that are relcased from or are present at or under, or that are disposed of in connection with such
property. Owners of real property may also face other environmental liabilities, including government fines and
penalties imposed by regulatory authorities and damages for injuries 1o persons, property or natural resources.
Environmental laws and regulations ofien impose liability without regard to whether the owner was aware of, or
was responsible for, the presence, release or disposal of hazardous or toxic substances or petroleum. In certain
circumstances, environmental liability may result from the activities of a current or former operator of the
property. Although we are generally indemnified by the current operators of our properties for contamination
caused by them, these indemnities may not adequately cover all environmental costs. See “Governmental
Regulation—Environmental Regulation” included in Item 1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

We have assumed substantially all of Provident's liabilities, including contingent liabilities; If these liabilities
are greater than expected, or if there are unknown Provident obligations, our business could be materially and
adversely affected,

As a result of our acquisition of Provident in 2005, we have assumed substantially all of Provident's
liabilities, including contingent liabilities to which Provident succeeded when it acquired the ownership interests
in the properties that are currently leased to Brookdale and Alterra. We may leam additional information about
Provident’s business and liabilities that adversely affects us, such as:

» liabilities for clean-up or remediation of undisclosed environmental conditions;
* unasserted claims of vendors or other persons dealing with Provident or the former property owners;

* liabilities, whether or not incurred in the ordinary course of business, relating to periods prior to the
Provident acquisition, including periods prior to Provident's acquisition of the Brookdale and Alterra
properties;

* claims for indemnification by general parmers, directors, officers and others indemnified by Provident
or the fermer property owners; and

+ liabilities for taxes relating to periods prior to the Provident acquisition, including taxes associated with
the acquisition ot prior ownership of the Brookdale and Alterra properties.

As a result, we cannot assure you that the Provident acquisition will be successful or will not, in fact, harm
our business. Among other things, if Provident’s liabilities are greater than expected, or if there are obligations of
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Provident of which we were not aware at the time we completed the acquisition, or if the Provident acquisition
fails to qualify as a “reorganization” within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code, it could have a Material
Adverse Effect on us.

Risks Arising from Our Capital Structure
We may become more leveraged.

As of December 31, 2007, we had approximately $3.4 billion of indebtedness, Our revolving credit facility,
our Canadian credit facility and the indentures governing our outstanding senior notes permit us to incur
substantial additional debt, and we may borrow additional funds, which may include secured borrowings. A high
level of indebtedness would require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to the
payment of debt service, thereby reducing the funds available to implement our business strategy and to make
distributions to stockholders. A high level of indebtedness could also have the following consequences:

+  potential limits on our ability to adjust rapidly to changing market conditions and vulncrability in the
event of a downtum in general economic conditions or in the real estate and/or healthcare industries;

s+ potential impairment of our ability to obtain additional financing for our business strategy; and

+  potential downgrade in the rating of our debt securities by one or more rating agencies, which could
have the effect of, among other things, increasing our cost of borrowing,

We may be unable to raise additional capital necessary to continue to implement our business plan and to
meet our debt payments.

In order to continue to implement our business plan and to meet our debt payments, we may need to raise
additional capital. The amount of additional indebtedness we may incur is limited by the terms of our revolving
credit facility, our Canadian credit facility and the indentures governing our outstanding senior notes. In addition,
adverse economic conditions may impact the availability of additional funds or could cause the terms on which
we are able to borrow additional funds to become unfavorable. In those circumstances, we may be required to
raise additional equity in the capital markets or liquidate one or more investments in properties at times that may
not permit us to realize the maximum return on those investments, which could result in adverse tax
consequences to us. Moreover, certain healthcare regulations meay constrain our ability to sell assets. We cannot
assure you that we will be able to raise the necessary capital to continue to implement our business plan or to
meet our debt service obligations, and the failure to do so could have a Material Adverse Effect on us.

We have now, and may have in the future, exposure 10 floating interest rates, which could have the effect of
reducing our profitabiliry.

We receive a significant portion of our revenue by leasing our assets under long-term triple-net leases in
which the rental rate is generally fixed with annual rent escalations, subject to certain limitations. Certain of our
debt obligations are floating rate obligations with interest rate and related payments that vary with the movement
of LIBOR, Bankers' Acceptance or other indexes. The generally fixed rate nature of our revenues and the
variable rate nature of certain of our obligations create interest rate risk and can have the effect of reducing our
profitability or making our lease and other revenue insufficient to meet our obligations. The amount of floating
rate debt versus fixed rate debt we may incur is not limited.
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Risks Arising from Qur Status as a REIT

Loss of our status as a REIT would have significant adverse consequences to us and the value of our common
stock.

If we lose our status as a REIT, we will face serious tax consequences that will substantially reduce the
funds available for satisfying our obligations and for distribution to ousr stockholders for each of the years
involved because:

» we would not be allowed a deduction for distributions to stockholders in computing our taxable
income and would be subject to federal income tax at regular corporate rates;

* we also could be subject to the federal altemative minimum tax and possibly increased state and
local taxes; and

* unless we are entitled to relief under statutory provisions, we could not elect to be subject to tax as a
REIT for four taxable years following the year during which we were disqualified.

In addition, in such event we would no longer be required to pay dividends to maintain REIT status.

As a result of all these factors, our failure to qualify as a REIT also could impair our ability to implement
our business strategy and would adversely affect the value of our common stock.

Qualification as a REIT involves the application of highly technical and complex Code provisions for which
there are only limited judicial and administrative interpretations. The determination of various factual matters
and circumstances not entirely within our control may affect our ability to remain qualified as a REIT. In
addition, new legislation, regulations, administrative interpretations or court decisions may adversely affect our
investors or our ability to remain qualified as a REIT for tax purposes. Although we belicve that we qualify as a
REIT, we cannot assure you that we will continue to qualify or remain qualified as a REIT for tax purposes.

Sec “Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations—Federal Income Taxation of Ventas” and
“—Requirements for Qualification as a RETT” included in Item | of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The 90% distribution requirement will decrease our liquidity and may limit our ability to engage in otherwise
beneficial transactions.

To comply with the 90% distribution requirement applicable to REITs and to avoid the nondeductible excise
tax, we must make distributions to our stockholders, Se¢ “Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations—
Requirements for Qualification as a REIT—Annual Distribution Requirements” included in Item 1 of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K. The indentures governing our outstanding senior notes permit us to make annual
distributions to our stockholders in an amount equal to the minimum amount necessary to maintain our REIT
status so long as the ratio of our Debt to Adjusted Total Assets (as each term is defined in the indentures) does
not exceed 60% and to make additional distributions if we pass certain other financial tests. However,
distributions may limit our ability to rely upon rental payments from our properties or subsequently acquired
properties to finance investments, acquisitions or new developments.

Although we anticipate that we generally will have sufficient cash or liquid assets to enable us to satisfy the
REIT distribution requirement, it is possible that, from time to time, we may not have sufficient cash or other
Yiquid assets to meet the 0% distribution requirement. This may be due to the timing differences between the
actual receipt of income and actual payment of deductible expenses, on the one hand, and the inclusion of that
income and deduction of those expenses in arriving at our taxable income, on the other hand. In addition,
non-deductible expenses such as principal amortization or repayments or capital expenditures in excess of
non-cash deductions also may cause us to fail to have sufficient cash or liquid assets to enable us to satisfy the
90% distribution requirement.
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In the event that timing differences occur or we decide to retain cash or to distribute such greater amount as
may be necessary to avoid income and excise taxation, we may borrow funds, issue additional equity securities
(although we cannot assure you that we will be able to do so), pay taxable stock dividends, if possible, distribute
other property or securities or engage in a transaction intended to enable us to meet the REIT distribution
requirements. This may require us to raisc additional capital to mect our obligations; however, see “—Risks
Arising from Our Capital Structure—We may be unable to raise additional capital necessary to continue to
implement our business plan and to meet our debt payments.” The terms of our revolving credit facility, our
Canadian credit facility and the indentures goveming our outstanding senior notes restrict our ability to engage in
some of these transactions.

The structure utilized to implement the Sunrise REIT acquisition may jeopardize our REIT status.

As a REIT, we may not own and operate a healthcare facility directly, and a taxable REIT subsidiary may
not directly or indirectly manage or operate a healthcare facility. We believe (and have been advised by counsel)
that a taxable REIT subsidiary may own a healthcare facility if such facility is managed by an independent
eligible contractor. In order to ensure that the Sunrise REIT acquisition does not jeopardize our REIT status, the
Sunrise REIT properties were acquired through taxable REIT subsidiaries and are being managed by Sunrise
pursuant to long-term management agreements. We believe that the use of such a structure does not compromise
our REIT status. However, if it is determined that this structure jeopardizes our REIT status, such determination
could have a Material Adverse Effect on us.

We may still be subject to corporate level axes.

Following our REIT election and due to the acquisition of Provident, we are considered to be a former C
corporation for income tax purposes. Therefore, we remain potentially subject to corporate level taxes for any
additional Kindred asset dispositions occurring before December 31, 2008. Also, as a consequence of the
Provident acquisition, we remain potentially subject to corporate level taxes if we dispose of any of the
Brookdale properties before November 2014.

ITEM 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

ITEM 2.  Properties o
Sentors Housing and Healthcare-Related Properties

As of December 31, 2007, we owned 519 assets: 253 seniors housing communities, 197 skilled nursing
facilities, 42 hospitals and 27 medical office and other properties in 43 states and two Canadian provinces. We
believe that the asset type and geographic diversity of the properties makes our portfolio less susceptible to
adverse changes in state reimbursement and regulation and regional economic downtums,

‘At December 31, 2007, we had mortgage loan obligations outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of
$1.6 billion, secured by certain of our properties.
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The following table sets forth select information regarding the properties we owned as of December 31,
2007 for each geographic location in which we own property:

California ...............
Colorado ................
Connecticut ..............

Indiana

.................

...............

................

New Hampshire
Newlersey ..............
New Mexico .............
New York ..... e rieeraes

North Carolina ........... .

Ohio ........covvvevvnnn
Qklahoma ...............
Oregon
Pennsylvania .............
Rhodelsland .............
South Carolina
Tennessee ...........c...
Texas .....ccovveveninnn.
Utah
Vermont ................
Virginia .................
Washington . .............
West Virginia ............
Wisconsin ...............
Wyoming

Total US............
British Columbia
Ontario

...................

...............

.........

As of December 31, 2007
Senlors Hounsing Skilled Nursing Other
Communities Fedilitics Hospitals MOBs  Properties |
Number Number Number Number Number
of of Licensed of Licensed of of
Properties Units Facfliies Beds  Hospitels  Beds  Properties Properties
2 220 2 329 —_ —_ — _
8 663 4 623 2 100 —_ _—
6 420 —_ -— — —_— — —
27 3,324 9 1,159 5 417 —_ —_
6 459 4 464 1 68 3 _—
4 458 6 736 —_ —_ — —_
16 1,625 — —_ 6 511 6 —_
10 830 4 549 _ —_— _— —_
1 70 7 696 —_ _ —_ —_—
17 2,637 -— _— 4 43] — —_
9 1,002 13 1,968 1 59 — —_
3 354 —_ _ —_ — —_— —_—
— - 27 3,081 3 760 1 —_—
1 58 — —_ 1 168 —_ _—
—_ — 8 658 —_ —_ — —
2 149 3 462 —_— —_ —_ —_
10 1,259 26 2,811 2 109 — —_
10 920 _— —_ - —_ — —_
9 634 1 140 —_ —_ —_ —_
1 173 —_ — 2 221 1 —_
— —_ 2 331 _ —_ —_ —_
1 136 —_ —_ —_ —_ — —_—
1 152 2 180 1 52 - —_
—_ —_ 3 512 —_ — —_ —
9 T24 1 153 _— -— 1 —
2 344 — —_ | 61 —_ —_
i4 1,307 — —_ - —_ —_ —_
6 437 16 1,836 1 124 — —_
18 1,287 14 1,863 1 29 2 —_
— _ —_ —_ 1 59 —_ —_
— — 2 254 _— —_ —_— —_
25 1,686 6 797 2 115 2 _—
—_ - 2 201 — _— —-— —_
2 117 — — — —-— — —_
5 343 3 397 1 49 —_ —_
2 215 —_ —_ 7 496 3 8
1 79 5 620 _ - — —
—_ — 1 160 — — — —
5 401 4 629 —_ _ —_— —_
3 320 7 692 — —_ —_— _
1 64 — — —_ — - —
4 122 11 1,825 — — —_ —
—_— —_ 4 451 _ —_ —_ -
241 22,989 197 24,577 42 3,844 19 8
3 276 — _ —_ — _ —
5 _&8 — - = = = =
12 1,124 — _ — —_— — —
283 24,113 197 Eé?_?_ __E ﬁ "_1_2 __§




Other Real Estate [nvestments

As of December 31, 2007, our other real estate investments consisted of three first mortgage loans, secured
by four properties, in the outstanding aggregate principal amouat of $20.1 million.

Each first mortgage loan accrues interest at a rate of 9% per annum and provides for monthly amortization
of principal with a balloon payment maturity date ranging between April and July 2010. One of these loans is
guaranteed by a third party, unrelated to the borrower, and its two principals. The remaining two loans are
guaranteed by an affiliate of the borrower and its two principals.

See “Note 8—Loans Receivable” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part II,
Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Corporate Offices
We lease our corporate offices in Louisville, Kentucky and Chicago, Ilinois.

ITEM 3, Legal Proceedings

The information contained in “Note 15—Litigation™ of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
included in Part 11, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K is incorporated by reference into this Item 3.
Except as set forth therein, we are not a party to, nor is any of our property the subject of, any material pending
legal proceedings.

ITEM 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

Not applicable.
PARTII
ITEM 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities
Market Information

Our common stock, par value $0.25 per share, is listed and traded on the New York Stock Exchange (the
“NYSE") under the symbol “VTR.” The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low
sales prices of our common stock as reported on the NYSE and the dividends declared per share.

Sales Price of
Common Stock
High Low Dividends Declared
2007
FirstQuarter ...........cciinnrvviirnnnnanns, $47.97 $4091 $0.475
Second Quarter ...........coiiiiiiiaiiaaan, 45.14 34.90 0.475
Third Quarter ............ciiviiriirnreenans 43.19 31.38 0.475
Fourth QUANEr ...\ vvvnrennnenananss 4149 3937 0.475
2006
First QUuarter .......cvovviuurerinieronnronanan $34.66 $2954 $0.395
Second QUATEET ... .. ovireeeetriane e 3448  30.66 0.395
ThirdQuarter ...........ccovvriirrnrneennnns 40.07 3351 0.395
Fourth QUarter ........coovvenvienracrearaas 42.40 36.50 0.395




As of February 15, 2008, there were 138,311,810 shares of our common stock outstanding held by
approximately 2,979 stockhoiders of record.

Dividends and Distributions

We pay regular quarterly dividends to holders of our common stock. On February 13, 2008, our Board of
Directors declared the first quarterly installment of our 2008 dividend in the amount of $0.5125 per share,
payable on March 28, 2008 1o stockholders of record on March 6, 2008. We expect to distribute 100% or more of
our taxable net income to our stockholders for 2008.

Our Board of Directors normally makes decisions regarding the frequency and amount of our dividends on a
quarterly basis. Because the Board considers a number of factors when making these decisions, we canno? assure
you that we will maintain the policy stated above. Please see “Cautionary Statements” and the risk factors
included in Part I, Item 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for a description of other factors that may affect
our distribution policy.

Our stockholders may reinvest all or a portion of any cash distribution on their shares of our common stock
by participating in our Distribution Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan, subject to the terms of the plan. See
“Note 16—Capital Stock” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part I, Item 8 of this
Annual Repont on Form 10-K.

Director and Employee Stock Sales

Certain of our directors, executive officers and other employees have adopted and may, from time to time in
the future, adopt non-discretionary, writien trading plans that comply with Rule 10b5-1 under the Exchange Act,
or otherwise monetize their equity-based compensation.

Stock Repurchases

The table below summarizes repurchases of our common stock made during the guarter ended
December 31, 2007:

Number of Shares  Avernge Price Per
Repurchased (1) Share
October 1 through October31 .................... — —
November | through November 30 ................ —
December 1 through December 31 ................ 14,669 $43.89

(1) Repurchases represent shares withheld to pay taxes on the vesting of restricted stock granted to employees.
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Stock Performance Graph

The following performance graph compares the cumulative total retumn (including dividends) to the holders
of our common stock from December 31, 2002 through December 31, 2007, with the cumulative total retums of
the NYSE Composite Index, the FTSE NAREIT Composite REIT Index (the “All REIT Index”), the FTSE
NAREIT Healthcare Equity REIT Index (the “Healthcare REIT Index”) and the Russell 1000 Index over the
same period. The comparison assumes $100 was invested on December 31, 2002 in our common stock and in
cach of the foregoing indices and assumes reinvestment of dividends, as applicable. We have included the NYSE
Composite Index in the performance graph because our common stock is listed on the NYSE. We have included
the other indices because we believe that they are either most representative of the industry in which we compete,
or otherwise provide a fair basis for comparison with Ventas, and are therefore particularly relevant to an
assessment of our performance. The figures in the table below are rounded to the nearest dollar.

123172002 12/31/2000 12312004  12731/2005 1/3L/2006 1273172007

VEMAS ..ot eiie it et ranae s $100 $206 $270 $331 $457 $512
NYSE CompositeIndex ................ $£100 $132 $151 $166 $200 $217
ANlREITIndex ............ .0 ciinn.. $100 $138 $181 $196 $262 £215
Healthcare REITIndex ................ $100 $154 5186 $189 $273 $279
Russell 1000 IndeX .......ovnevvenennnn $100 $130 $145 $154 $178 $188

- | _
—

12/31/2002 12/31/2003 12/31/2004 1273112005 12/31/2006 12/31/2007

it \fontns ==Cre NYSE Composito Index =@= Al AEIT index *=dr==Hgalthcare REIT index ==@==Russsll 1000 index
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ITEM 6. Selected Financial Data

You should read the following sclected financial data in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” included in Item 7 of this Annual Report on Form
10-K and our Consolidated Financial Statements and the notes thereto included in Part I1, Item 8 of this Annual
Report on Form I0-K, as acquisitions, divestitures, changes in accounting policies and other items impact the
comparability of the financial data.

As of and For the Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Operating Data
Rentalincome ................... $ 483,985 §$ 405952 $ 310915 § 218,733 $ 177,090
Resident fees and services ., ......... 282,226 — —_ — —
Interest expense .............uens 204,218 136,544 100,431 61,979 57,498
Property-level operating expenses . . .. 198,125 3, 1M 2,576 1,337 —
General, administrative and
professional fees................ 36,425 26,136 25,075 18,124 16,432
Income from continuing operaticns
applicable to common shares . .. ... 141,496 125,964 119,122 93,537 89,935
Discontinued operations . ........... 135,623 5,466 11,461 27,363 72,818
Net income applicable to common
shares ......... oo 277,119 131,430 130,583 120,900 162,753
Per Share Data
Income from continuing operations
applicable to common shares,
basic ... $ 115 § 121 $ 125 § 112 % 1.13
Net income applicable to common
shares, basic ................... $ 226 % 126 % 137 § 145 % 2.05
Income from continuing operations
applicable to common shares,
diluted .......... ...l $ 115 § 120 § 1.24 § LIl $ 1.12
Net income applicable to common
shares, diluted ................. $ 225 §$ 125 3 136 § 143 § 2.03
Dividends declared per common
share ...t $ 190 $ 158 % 144 § 130 §$ 1,07
Other Data
Net cash provided by operating
actvities ... ..o, $ 399810 $ 238867 $ 223,764 § 149,958 $ 137,366
Net cash (used in) provided by
investing activities .............. (1,173,376) (481,974) (615,041) (298,695) 159,701
Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities .............. 805,649 242,712 389,553 69,998  (217.418)
FFO applicable to common
shares{1) ......ovuvviiinnn, 377,656 249,668 213,203 150,322 152,631
Balance Sheet Data
Real estate investments, at cost ... .. $ 6,290,365 $3,707.837 $3,027,8906 $1512211 $1,090,181
Cash and cash equivalents .......... 28,334 1,246 1,641 3,363 82,104
Totalassets ..............ooonnnn 5,716,628 3,253,800 2,639,118 1,126,935 812,850
Senior notes payable and other debt . . 3,360,499 2,329,053 1,802,564 843,178 640,562

(1) We consider funds from operations (“FFO"™) an appropriate measure of performance of an equity REIT, and

we usc the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts (“NAREIT") definition of FFO. NAREIT
defines FFO as net income (computed in accordance with GAAP), excluding gains {or losses) from sales of
real estate property, plus real estate depreciation and amoxtization, and after adjustments for unconsolidated
partnerships and joint ventures. FFQ presented hercin is not necessarily comparable to FFQ presented by
other real estate companies due to the fact that not ali real estate companies use the same definition. FFO
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should not be considered as an alternative to net income (determined in accordance with GAAP) as an
indicator of our financial performance or as an alternative to cash flow from operating activities (determined
in accordance with GAAP) as a measure of our liquidity, nor is FFO indicative of sufficient cash flow 10
fund all of our needs. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations—Resulis of Operations—Funds from Operations” included in Item 7 of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

ITEM 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis provides information which management believes is relevant to an
assessment and understanding of the consolidated results of operations and financial condition of Ventas, Inc.
(together with its subsidiaries, unless otherwise indicated or except where the context otherwise requires, “we,”
“us” or “our”"). You should read this discussion in conjunction with our Consolidated Financial Statements and
the notes thereto included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. This Management’s Discussion and
Analysis will help you understand:

»

Key transactions that we completed in 2007;
Our critical accounting policies and estimates;
Qur results of operations for the last three years;
Our liquidity and capital resources; and

Our funds from operations.

Key Transactions in 20607

During 2007, we completed the following key transactions:

We completed the acquisition of all of the assets of Sunrise Senior Living Real Estate Investment Trust
(“Sunrise REIT™) for aggregate consideration of approximately $2.0 billion. As a result, we acquired a
100% interest in 18 seniors housing communities and a 75% to 85% interest in 59 additional seniors
housing communities located in 19 U.S. states and two Canadian provinces. In addition, we assumed all
rights and obligations of Sunrise REIT under two fixed price acquisition agreements with Sunrise Senior
Living, Inc. (together with its subsidiaries, “Sunrise”) and subsequently acquired an 80% interest in two
additional seniors housing communities located in Staten Island, New York and Vaughan, Ontario.

We issued and sold 26,910,000 shares of our commen stock in an underwritten public offering pursuant
to our shelf registration statement and received $1.05 billion in net proceeds from the sale, which we
used to redeem and repay the majority of our acquisition facility drawn to acquire the Sunrise REIT
assels.

We purchased eight medical office buildings (“MOBs™) during 2007 for approximately $150.4 million,

seven of which are owned through joint ventures with three different partners that provide management
and leasing scrvices for the properties. We now have MOB investments totaling over one million

square feet,

Kindred Healthcare, Inc. (together with its subsidiaries, “Kindred") renewed, through April 30, 2013, its
leases covering all 64 healthcare assets owned by us whosc base term would have expired on April 30,
2008.

We sold 21 skilled nursing facilities and one hospital to Kindred for $175.0 million in net cash proceeds.

We entered into a Cdn $90.0 million unsecured revelving credit facility (the “Canadian credit facility™)
that bears interest at a fluctuating “Bankers’ Acceptance” rate per annum plus an applicable percentage
based on our consolidated leverage, which was 0.75% as of December 31, 2007, [n January 2008, we
increased the borrowing capacity under this facility to Cdn $105.0 million.
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Critical Accounting Polictes and Estimates

Our Consolidated Financial Statements included in ltem 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K have been
prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP™), which requires us (o make
estimates and judgments about future events that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements and the
related disclosures. We base eslimates on our experience and on various other assumptions believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. These judgments affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reporied amounts of
revenue and expenses during the reporting periods. If our judgment or interpretation of the facts and
circumstances relating to various transactions or other matters had been different, it is possible that different
accounting would have been applied, resulting in a different presentation of our financial statements. From time
to time, we re-evaluate our estimates and assumptions. In the event estimates or assumptions prove to be
different from actual results, adjustments are made in subsequent periods to reflect more current estimates and
assumptions about matters that are inherently uncertain. We believe that the following critical accounting
policies, among others, affect our more significant estimates and judgments used in the preparation of our
financial statements. For more information regarding our critical accounting policies, please see “Note 2——
Accounting Policies” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report
on Form 10-K.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K include our accounts and the accounts of our wholly owned subsidiaries and joint venture entities
over which we e¢xercise control. All intercompany transactions and balances have been ecliminated in
consolidation, and net earnings are reduced by the portion of net eamings applicable to minority interests.

Long-Lived Assets and Intangibles

Investments in real estate assets are recorded at cost. We account for acquisitions using the purchase
method. The cost of the properties acquired is allocated among tangible and recognized intangible assets and
liabilities based wpon estimated fair values in accordance with the provisions of Staterment of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS") No. 141, “Business Combinations.” We estimate fair values of the components
of assets and liabilities acquired as of the acquisition date. Recognized intangibles include the value of acquired
lease contracts, management agreements and related customer relationships.

Our method for allocating the purchase price paid to acquire investments in real estate requires us to make
subjective assessments for determining fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired or assumed. This includes
determining the value of the buildings and improvements, land and improvements, ground leases, lenant
improvements, in-place tenant leases, above and/or below market leases, other intangibles embedded in contracis
and any debt assumed. Each of these estimates requires significant judgment and some of the estimates involve
complex calculations. These allocation assessments have a direct impact on our results of operations, as amounts
allocated to some assets and liabilities have different depreciation or amortization lives. Additionally, the
amortization of value assigned to above and/or below market leases is recorded as a component of revenue, as
compared to the amortization of in-place leases and other intangibles, which is included in depreciation and
amortization in our Consolidated Statements of Income included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

We cstimate the fair value of buildings on an as-if-vacant basis, and depreciate the building value over the
estimated remaining life of the building. We determine the allocated value of other fixed assets based upon the
replacement cost and depreciate such value over their estimated remaining useful lives. We determine the value
of land either based on real estate tax assessed values in relation to the total value of the asset, internal analyses
of recently acquired and existing comparable properties within our portfolio, The fair value of in-place leases, if
any, reflects (i) above and below market leases, if any, determined by discounting the difference between the
estimated current market rent and the in-place rentals, the resulting intangible asset or liability of which is
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amortized to revenue over the remaining life of the associated lease plus any fixed rate renewal periods, if
applicable, (ii} the estimated value of the cost to obtain tenants, including tenant allowances, tenant
improvements and leasing commissions, which is amortized over the remaining life of the associated lease, and
{iii) an estimated value of the absorption period to reflect the value of the rents and recovery costs foregone
during a reasonable lease-up period, as if the acquired space was vacant, which is amortized over the remaining
life of the associaled lease. We also estimate the value of tenant or other customer relationships acquired by
considering the narure and extent of existing business relationships with the tenant, growth prospects for
developing new business with the tenant, the tenant’s credit quality, expectations of lease renewals with the
tenant, and the potential for significant, additional future leasing arrangements with the tenant. We amontize such
value over the expected term of the associated arrangements or leases, which would include the remaining lives
of the related leases and any expected renewal periods. The fair value of long-term debt is calculated by
discounting the remaining contractual cash flows on each instrument at the current market rate for those
borrowings. Discount rates are approximated based on the rate we estimate we would incur to replace each
instrument on the date of acquisition. Any fair value adjustments related to long-term debt are recognized as
effective yield adjustments over the remaining term of the instrument.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

We periodically evaluate our long-lived assets, primarily consisting of our investments in real estate, for
impairment indicators in accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment and Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets.” If indicators of impairment are present, we evaluate the carrying value of the related real estate
investments in relation to the future undiscounted cash flows of the underlying operations and adjust the net book
value of leased properties and other long-lived assets to fair value if the sum of the expected future cash flows
and sales proceeds is less than book value. An impairment loss is recognized at the time we make any such
determination. Future events could occur which would cause us to conclude that impairment indicators exist and
an impairment loss is warranted. We did not record any impairment charges for the years ended December 31,
2007, 2006 and 2005.

Loans and Other Amounts Receivable from Third Parties

We evaluate the collectibility of loans and other amounts receivable from third partics based on a number of
factors, including (i) corporate and facility-level financial and operations reports, (ii) compliance with the
financial covenants set forth in the borrowing or lease agreement, (iii) the financial stability of the applicable
borrower or tenant and any guarantor and (iv) the payment history of the borrower or tenant. Our level of
reserves, if any, for loans and other amounts receivable from third parties fluctuates depending upon all of these
factors.

Revenue Recognition

Certain of our leases, excluding our master lease agreements with Kindred (the “Kindred Master Leases™),
but including the majority of our leases with Brookdale Senior Living Inc. (together with its subsidiaries, which
include Brookdale Living Communities, Inc. and Alterra Healthcare Corporation, “Brookdale Senior Liviog™),
provide for periodic and determinable increases in basc rent. Base rental revenues under these leases are
recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the applicable lease. Income on our straight-line revenue is
recognized when collectibility is reasonably assured. In the event we determine that collectibility of straight-line
revenue is not reasonably assured, we establish an allowance for estimated losses. Recognizing rental income on
a straight-line basis results in recognized revenue exceeding cash amounts contractually due from our tenants
during the first half of the term for leases that have straight-line treatment.

Certain of our other leases, including the Kindred Master Leases, provide for an annual increase in rental
payments only if certain revenue parameters or other contingencies are met. We recognize the increased rental
revenue under these leases only if the revenue parameters or other contingencies are met rather than on a straight-
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line basis over the term of the applicable lease. We recognize income from rent, lease termination fees and other
income once all of the following criteria are met in accordance with Securities and Exchange Commission (the
“Commission™) Staff Accounting Bulletin 104: (i) the agreememt has been fully executed and delivered;
(ii) services have been rendered; (iii) the amount is fixed or determinable; and (iv) collectibility is reasonably
assured.

Resident fees and services are recognized monthly as services are provided. Move in fees, which are
included in resident fees and services, are recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the applicable lease
agreement. Lease agreements with residents generally have a term of one year and are cancelable by the resident
with 30 days' notice.

Gain on Sale of Assets

We recognize sales of assets only upon the closing of the transaction with the purchaser. Payments received
from purchasers prior to closing are recorded as deposits and classified a3 other assets on our Consolidated
Balance Sheets included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Gains on assets sold are recoghized
using the full accrual method upon closing when the collectibility of the sales price is reasonably assured, we are
not obligated to perform significant activities after the sale to earn the profit, we have received adequate initial
investment from the buyer, and other profit recognition criteria have been satisfied. Gains may be deferred in
whole or in part until the sales satisfy the requirements of gain recognition on sales of real estate under SFAS
No. 66, “Accounting for Sales of Real Estate,” ’

Federal Income Tax

Since we have clected to be treated as a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) under the applicable
provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code™), prior to the second quarter of 2007
we made no provision for federal income tax purposes and we will continue to make no provisien for REIT
income and expense. As a result of the Sunrise REIT acquisition, income tax expense or benefit is now being
recorded with respect to certain entities which are taxed as “taxable REIT subsidiaries” under provisions similar
to those applicable to regular corporations and not under the REIT provisions.

Deferred income taxes are accounted for using the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for the expected future tax consequences of events that have been included in the
financia! statements or tax returns. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on
the differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in
effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. An increase or decrease in the deferred tax
liability that results from a change in circumstances, and which causes a change in our judgment about expected
future tax consequences of events, would be included in the tax provision when the changes in circumstances and
our judgment occurs. Deferred income taxes also reflect the impact of operating loss and tax credit
carryforwards. A valuation allowance is provided if we believe it is more likely than not that all or some portion
of the deferred tax asset will not be realized. An increase or decrease in the valuation allowance that results from
a change in circumstunces, and which cavses a change in our judgment about the realizability of the related
deferred tax asset, would be included in the tax provision when the changes in circumstances and our judgment
occurs,

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issued Interpretation No. 48,
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes” (“FIN 48”). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for income taxes
when it is uncertain how an income or expense item should be treated on an income tax return. FIN 48 describes
when and in what amount an uncertain tax item should be recorded in the financial siatements and provides
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guidance on recording interest and penaltics and accounting and reporting for income taxes in interim periods.
We adopted FIN 48 on January 1, 2007, The adoption did not have a material impact on our Consolidated
Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” This statement defines
fair value and provides guidance for measuring fair value and the necessary disclosures. SFAS No. 157 does not
require any new fair value measurements, but rather applies to all other accounting pronouncements that require
or permit fair value measurements. We adopted SFAS No. 157 on January 1, 2008. The adoption did not have a
material impact on our Consolidated Financial Staternents.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), “Business Combinations.” SFAS No. 141{R)
requires the acquiring entity in a business combination to measure the assets acquired, liabilities assumed
(including contingencies) and any noncontrolling interests at their fair values on the acquisition date. The
statement also requires that acquisition-related transaction costs be expensed as incurred and acquired research
and development value be capitalized. In addition, acquisition-related restructuring costs are to be capitalized
only if they meet certain criteria. SFAS No. 141(R) will be effective for us beginning on January 1, 2009. Early
adoption is prohibited. We have not yet determined the impact, if any, the adoption of this new accounting
pronouncement is expected to have on our Consolidated Financial Statements.

In December 2007, the FASB also issued SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated
Financial Statements, an amendment of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51.” SFAS No. 160 requires the
classification of noncontrolling interests (formerly, minority interests) as a component of consolidated equity. In
addition, net income will include the total income of all consolidated subsidiaries with the attribution of carnings
and other comprehensive income between controlling and noncontrolling interests reported as a separate
disclosure on the face of the consolidated income statement. The calculation of earnings per share will continue
to be based on income amounts attributable to the parent. SFAS No. 160 also addresses accounting and reporting
for a change in control of a subsidiary. SFAS No. 160 will be effective for us beginning on January 1, 2009.
Early adoption is prohibited. This statement is required to be adopted prospectively, except for the presentation
and disclosure requirements, which are required to be adopted retrospectively. We have not yet determined the
impact, if any, the adoption of this new accounting pronouncement is expected to have on our Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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Results of Operations

The tables below show our results of operations for each year and the absolute dollar and percentage

changes in those results from year to year (dollars in thousands).

Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

Year Ended
December 11, Change
2007 2006 $ %
Revenues: '
Rental INCOME . ... it vviiies e iaeinreererarernanrnenn $483985 $405952 § 78,033 19.2%
Resident fees and services ............. .. cciiiiiiiininns 282,226 — 282,226 nm
Interest income from loansreceivable ..................... 2,586 7,014 (4,428) (63.1)
Interest and other income ............oiiiiieneiiininnass 2,994 2,886 108 37
Total FEVENUES . . o coiet e et v v i s 771,791 415852 355939 856
Expenses:
1310 1 204,218 136,544 67,674 496
Depreciation and amortizalion ........vvvvvecnaiiinanen 234061 117,172 116,889 998
Property-level operating expenses .............c..cioinn. 198,125 3,170 194954 nm
General, administrative and professional fees (including
non-cash stock-based compensation expense of $7,493 and
$3,046 for the years ended 2007 and 2006, respectively) .... 36,425 26,136 10,289 394
(Gain) loss on extinguishmentofdebt ..................... (88) 1,273 (1,361) nm
REMIESELCOSIS .. oii et in et innssaansaranns -_— 7,361 (7,361) om
Reversal of contingent liability . .............covien ot —_ (1,769) 1,769 nm
FOreign Currency gain . ......ooveetinnrrnnnnrrnnerescnns (24,280) —_ (24.280) nm
Merger-related eXpenses ........vvvviiiiiierriiaiiaen 2,979 — 2,979 nm
TOWl EXPENSES . ..ot vv v ienecvsaare i ernaerranas 651,440 289,888 361,552 >100
Income before income taxes, minority interest and discontinued
OPEFALIONS ..o\ vvvvesvanc e aenssirsnannansrraoneesran 120,351 125,964 (5.613) (4.5)
Incometaxbenefit......... .ot e 28,042 — 28,042 nm
Income before minority interest and discontinued operations ... ... 148,393 125964 22,429 178
Minority interest, netoftax ......... .. i 1,698 — 1,698 nm
Income from continuing operations . ............ . o iiiee 146,695 125964 20,731 16.5
Discontinued OPErations ... ...vvinrrruriiearnnererreransens 135,623 5466 130,157 nm
Netincome .......coimi it 282,318 131,430 150,888 »> 100
Preferred stock dividends and issuance ¢osts . .......... ... 00 5,199 — 5,199 am
Net income applicable to common shares . ..................... £277.119 > 100%

nm—not meaningful

Revenues

$131,430 $145,689

The increase in our 2007 rental income, excluding rental income allocated to discontinued operations,
primarily reflects (i) $26.4 million of additional rent resulting from the annual escalator in the rent paid under the
Kindred Master Leases cffective May 1, 2007 and the Kindred rent reset that was effective July 19, 2006,
(ii) $7.6 million in additional rent relating to the properties acquired during 2007 (excluding the Sunrise REIT
properties), (iii) $41.) million in additional rent relating to the full year effect in 2007 of properties acquired
during 2006, and various other escalations in the rent paid on our existing properties. See “Note 5—
Acquisitions™ of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on

Form 10-K.
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Resident fees and services are a direct result of the Sunrise REIT acquisition and are attributed to the period
from April 26, 2007 through December 31, 2007. See “Note S—Acquisitions” of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. These amounts consist of all
amounts eamed from residents at our seniors housing communities that are managed by Sunrise, including rental
fees related to resident leases, extended health care fees and other ancillary service income.

Interest income from loans receivable, which includes amortization of deferred fees, decreased $4.4 million
in 2007 primarily due to the repayment of a bridge loan made in 2006 to affiliates of the seller of the Senior Care
properties. The bridge loan bore interest at a rate of approximately 10.4% and was repaid upon consummation of
the Senior Care acquisition in November 2006. See “Note 5—-Acquisitions” of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We recognized approximately $3.4
million of interest income from this loan during 2006. Additionally, three of the six first morngage loans we
issued during 2005 were repaid in May 2007, representing a decrease in interest income from loans receivable of
approximately $0.8 million.

Expenses

Interest expense included in discontinued operations was $2.1 million and $4.5 million for the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Total interest expense, including interest allocated 1o discontinued
operations, increased $65.2 million in 2007 over 2006, primarily due to $71.8 million of additional interest from
higher loan balances as a result of our 2007 acquisition and loan activity, partially offset by a $9.2 million
reduction in interest from lower effective interest rates. In 2007, we also recognized a $2.6 million expense for
upfront fees on bridge financing related to the Sunrise REIT acquisition. Interest expense includes $5.5 million
and $3.3 million of amortized deferred financing costs for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. Our effective interest rate decreased to 7.0% for the year ended December 31, 2007, from 7.3% for
the year ended December 31, 2006.

Depreciation and amortization expense increased primarily due to depreciation relating to the properties
acquired during 2007 and 2006. Additionally, we incurred amortization expense of approximately $56.1 million
related to in-place lease intangibles from the Sunrise REIT acquisition. See “Note 5—Acquisitions” of the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Propeny-level operating expenses increased primarily due to the Suarise REIT acquisition. Property-level
operating expenses include all expenses related to our medical officc building operations and all amounts
incurred for the operations of our seniors housing communities managed by Sunrise for the period from April 26,
2007 through December 31, 2007, such as labor, food, utilities, marketing, management and other property
operating cosls.

The increase in general, administrative and professional fees is due primarily to increased stock-based
compensation and increases in other general and administrative items resulting from our enterprise growth.

In connection with the rent reset process under the Kindred Master Leases, we incurred approximately $7.4
million of one-time costs which we expensed during 2006. These costs included fees of the final appraisers and
third party experts, consulting fees and legal fees and expenses. No similar costs were incurred during 2007.

During 2006, we were notified by the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) that it had completed its audit of our
2001 federal tax return with no additional tax being due. Accordingly, we reversed into income a previously
recorded $1.8 million tax liability related to uncertainties surrounding the outcome of this audit. No similar
activity occurred during 2007,

The gain on extinguishment of debt in 2007 represents the purchase of $5.0 million principal amount of our
outstanding 7Ye% senior notes duc 2015 in an open market transaction for a discount. The loss on
extinguishment of debt in 2006 represents the write-off of unamortized deferred financing costs related to the
refinancing of our previous secured revolving credit facility during the second quarter of 2006.
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The foreign currency gain for the year ended December 31, 2007 primanly relates to the Canadian call
option contracts that we entered into in conjunction with the Sunrise REIT acquisition. See “Note 2—Accounting
Policies” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form
10-K. No similar contracts were in place for the comparable 2006 period.

Merger-related expenses were incurred in connection with the Sunrise REIT acquisition and include
incremental costs directly related to the acquisition and expenses relating to our lawsuit against HCP, Inc.

Income tax benefit represents a deferred benefit which is due solely to our taxable REIT subsidiaries as a
direct result of the Sunrise REIT acquisition. See “Note 12—Income Taxes” of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Minority interest, net of tax primarily represents Sunrise’s share of net income from the Sunrise REIT
properties based on its ownership percentage in 61 of our seniors housing communities.

Prefemred stock dividends and issuance costs relate to the issuance of 700,000 shares of our Series A Senior
Preferred Stock to fund a portion of the Sunrise REIT acquisition, all of which were redeemed in May 2007 using
the proceeds from the sale of our common stock. See “Note 5—Acquisitions” of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Discontinued Operarions

The increase in discontinued operations is due to the $3.5 million lease termination fee and the $129.5
million gain on sale of real estate assets recognized in the second quarter of 2007 resulting primarily from the
sale of 22 properties 1o Kindred. See “Note 6—Dispositions” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Years Ended December 31, 2006 and 2005

Year Ended
December 31, Change
2006 2005 $ %
Revenues:
Rental iNCOME ... ..iirerireiaietrearaniernennennsss $405,952 $310,915 $95,037 30.6%
Interest income from loans receivable .. ........ ..ol 7.014 5,001 2,013 403
Interestandotherincome . ... ... vivii i 2,886 3,268 (382) (11.7)
Tolal TEVEOUES ... ieinerin e rrnimecanacsraasnns 415,852 319,184 96,668 30.3
Expenses:
77 2 - 136,544 100,431 36,113 360
Depreciation and amortization .. ............ .. eaiiiae, 117,172 85319 31853 373
Propenty-level operating eXpenses . . ......covivianiatiiennn. 3,17 2,576 595 231
General, administrative and professional fees (including non-cash
stock-based compensation expense of $3,046 and $1,971 for the
years ended 2006 and 2005, respectively) .......... ... .. .. 26,136 25075 1,061 42
Loss on extinguishmentof debt . .................... ..., 1,273 1,376 (103) (1.5
RENLIesetCosIS ... .o uvnuriirnnnanriannnisnneannrenunos 7,361 — 7361  nm
Reversal of contingent liability ..................ociiiat (1,769) — (1,769} nm
Net gainon swapbreakage ................ccooovieiniianes — (981) 981 mm
Net proceeds from litigation settlement . ..................... — (15,909) 15909 mm
Contribution to charitable foundation .................... ... —_— 2,000 (2,000 nm
TOal EXPENSES . ... cuvevneirrenne i eiarrarneiens 289,888 199,887 90,001 450
Income before net loss on real estate disposals and discontinued .

OPCIALONS . ..\t eenrenrer st i annenneannanrssnsanenes 125,964 119,297 6,667 56
Netlossonreal estate disposals . .. ..o v iiians —_ (175) 175 nm
Income from continuing OPErations . .......ccuvvivvrrnresiiaeoans 125964 119,122 6842 57
Discontinued OPErations . . ... ...cuiivvreeerrrrrersaaisrereres 5.466 11,461 (5995) nm
Net income applicable to common shares ............covoviuinns $131,430 $130,583 $ 847 0.6%
nm—not meaningful

Revenues

Rental income included in discontinued operations was $12.5 million and $14.6 million for the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The increase in our 2006 rental income, including rental income
allocated to discontinued operations, reflects the recognition of (i) $11.3 million in additional rent relating to the
properties acquired during 2006 ($7.0 million relates to the Senior Care acquisition), (ii) $58.9 million in
additional rent relating 1o the full year effect in 2006 of properties ecquired during 2005 ($46.4 million relates to
the Provident Senior Living Trust acquisition), (sce “Note S—Acquisitions” of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements included in liem 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K), (iii) $15 million of reatal income
resulting from the rent reset under the Kindred Master Leases, (iv) a $6.8 miltion increase in rent from Kindred
resulting from the 3.5% annual escalator under the Kindred Master Leases effective May 1, 2000 (prior to the
rent reset) and (v) $1.7 million of additional rental income resulting from rent escalations on various other
properties.

Interest income from loans receivable, which includes amortization of deferred fees, increased $2.0 million
in 2006 primarily as a result of a bridge loan issued to affiliates of the seller of the Senior Care properties, which
bore interest at a rate of approximately 10.4% during the time the loan remained outstanding. We recognized
approximately $3.4 million of interest income from this loan, which was repaid upon consummation of the
Senior Care transaction in November 2006. This was partially offset by a net decrease of $1.7 millien from

52




interest income in connection with a $17.0 million mezzanine loan made to Trans Healthcare, Inc. in 2002, as
this loan was repaid in full in March 2006. See “Note 8—Loans Receivable” of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statemnents included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Expenses

Interest expense includes $3.3 million and $3.9 million of amortized deferred financing costs for the years
ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Interest expense included in discontinued operations was $4.5
million and $5.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Total interest expense,
including interest allocated to discontinued operations, increased $34.9 million in 2006 over 2005, primarily due
1o $40.7 million of additional interest expense due to increased debt to fund acquisitions made dvring 2006,
partially offset by a $5.8 million decrease from lower cffective interest rates. Our effective interest rate decreased
to 7.3% for the year ended December 31, 2006, from 7.6% for the year ended December 31, 2005.

Depreciation and amortization expense increased primarily due to the properties acquired during 2006 and
2005. See “Note 5—Acquisitions” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The increase in general, administrative and professional fees is attributable primarily to the expensing of
stock options as a result of our adopiion of SFAS Na. 123(R)}, “Share Based Paymeny,” at the beginning of 2006.

In April 2006, we refinanced our previous $300.0 million secured revolving credit facility and entered into a
$500.0 million unsecured revolving credit facility, resulting in & loss from extinguishment of debt of $1.3 million
primarily related to the write-off of unamortized deferred financing costs. In December 2005, we paid off our
commercial mortgage backed securities (“CMBS") loan and incurred 2 loss on extinguishment of debt of $1.4
million primarily related to the write-off of unamortized deferved financing costs.

In connection with the Kindred rent reset process, we incurred approximately $7.4 million of one-time costs
which we expensed during 2006. These costs included fees of the final appraisers and third-party expents,
consulting fees and legal fees and expenses.

During 2006, we were notified by the IRS that it had completed its audit of our 2001 federal tax return with
no additional tax being due. Accordingly, we reversed into income a previously recorded $1.8 million tax
liability related to uncertainties surrounding the outcome of this audit. See “Note 13—Commitments and
Contingencies™ of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

As a result of anticipated lower variable rate debt balances due to the payoff of our CMBS loan in December
2005, we entered into an agreement with the counterparty 10 our interest rate swap 1o reduce the notional amount
of the swap to $100.0 million, from $330.0 million, for its remaining term in exchange for a payment to the
counterparty of approXimately $2.3 million. In addition, we recognized $3.3 million of a previously deferred gain
recorded in connection with our 1999 transaction to shorten the maturity of a separate interest rate swap.

During 2005, we settled our previously disclosed litigation against Sullivan & Cromwell LLP and received
net proceeds of $15.9 million, afier payment of expenses in connection with the settlement. See “Note 15—
Litigation” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report oo Form
10-K.

With $2.0 million of the net proceeds received from the litigation settlement, we established and funded the
Ventas Charitable Foundation, Inc. (the “Foundation™) in 2005, The Foundation is used to support charitable and
philanthropic causes important to our employees and to the communities in which we operate.

Discontinued Operations

The decrease in discontinued operations is a result of the sale of one property in 2005 for £9.9 million in net
cash proceeds and a recognized net gain on the sale of $5.1 million. In addition, the tenant paid us lease
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termination fees of approximately $0.2 million. Discontinued operations in 2005 includes the net income of 23
properties sold, whereas discontinued operations in 2006 includes the net income from 22 properties sold. See
“Note 6—Dispositions” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

Funds from Operations

Qur funds from operations (“FFO") for the five years ended December 31, 2007 are summarized in the
following table:

For the Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
{In thousands)
Net income applicable to common shares ......... $277,119 $131430 $130,583 $120,900 $162,753
Adjustments:
Real estate depreciation and amortization .. ... 232,952 115,788 84,877 45,943 36,681
Real estale depreciation related to minority
11112 1= (3,749 -— — — —
Loss on real estate disposals ................ —_— — 175 — —
Discontinued operations: .............. ...
Gain on sale of real estate assets ......... (129.478) — (5.114) (19.428) (51,781)
Depreciation on real estate assets ........ B12 2450 2,682 2,907 4,978
FFO applicable to common shares ............... 377,656 249,668 213,203 150,322 152,631
Preferred stock dividends and issuance costs ... .. .. 5,199 — — — —
FRO ettt $ 382,855 $249,668 $213,203 $150,322 $152,631

Historical cost accounting for real estate assets implicitly assumes that the value of real cstate assets
diminishes predictably over time. Since real estate values, instead, have historically risen or fallen with market
conditions, many industry investors have considered presentations of operating results for real estate companics
that use historical cost accounting to be insufficient by themselves. To overcome this problem, we consider FFO
an appropriate measure of performance of an equity REIT and we use the National Association of Real Estate
Investment Trusts (“NAREIT™) definition of FFO. NAREIT defines FFO as net income (computed in accordance
with GAAP), excluding gains (or losses) from sales of real estate property, plus real estate depreciation and
amortization, and after adjustments for unconsolidated parmerships and joint ventures.

FFO presented herein is not necessarily comparable to FFO presented by other real estate companics due to
the fact that not all real estate companies use the same definition. FFO should not be considered as an alternative
to net income (determined in accordance with GAAP) as an indicator of our financial performance or as an
alternative to cash flow from operating aclivities (determined in accordance with GAAP) as a measure of our
liquidity, nor is FFO necessarily indicative of sufficient cash flow to fund all of our needs. We believe that in
order to facilitate a clear understanding of our consolidated historical operating results, FFQ should be examined
in conjunction with net income as presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements and data included
clsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Asset/Liability Management

AssetNliability management is a key element of our overall risk management program. The objective of
asset/liability management is to support the achievement of business strategies while maintaining appropriate risk
levels. The assevliability management process focuses on a variety of risks, including market risk (primarily
interest rate risk and foreign currency exchange risk} and credit risk. Effective management of these risks is an
important determinant of the absolute levels and variability of FFO and net worth. The following discussion
addresses our integrated management of assets and liabilities, including the use of derivative financial
instruments. We do not use derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.
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Market Risk

We receive a significant portion of our revenue by leasing our assets under long-term triple-net leases in
which the rental rate is generally fixed with annual escalators, subject to certain limitations. We also eam
revenue from our senior living operations and our real estate loan investments. Our obligations under our
unsecured revolving credit facility and our Canadian credit facility are floating rate obligations whose interest
rate and related monthly interest payments vary with the movement in LIBOR and Bankers’ Acceptance,

respectively.

The general fixed nature of our assets subject to long-term triple-net leases and the variable nature of our
obligations create interest rate risk. If interest rates were to rise significantly, our lease and other revenue might
not be sufficient to meet our debt obligations. In order to mitigate this risk, in September 2001, we entered into
an interest rate swap agreement in the original notional amount of $450.0 million to hedge floating rate debt for
the period between July 1, 2003 and June 30, 2008 (the “Swap™). The Swap is treated as a cash flow hedge for
accounting purposes and is with a highly rated counterparty on which we pay a fixed rate of 5.385% and receive
LIBOR from the counterparty. In December 2003, due to our lower expected future variable rate debt balances as
a result of the sale of ten properties, we reduced the notional amount of the Swap for the period from
December 11, 2003 through June 29, 2006 from $450.0 million to $330.0 million. In December 2005, due to our
lower expected future variable rate debt balances as a result of the payoff of our CMBS loan, we further reduced
the notional amount of the Swap to $100.0 million for the remaining term of the Swap. See “Note 3—Borrowing
Arrangements” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. There are no collateral requirements under the Swap, As of December 31, 2007, the notional amount
of the Swap was $100.0 million, which is scheduled to expire on June 30, 2008.

To highlight the sensitivity of the Swap and our fixed rate debt to changes in interest rates, the following
summary shows the effects of a hypothetical instantaneous change of 100 basis points (BPS} in interest rates as
of December 31, 2007 and 2006:

Aa of December 31,
2007 2006
Fixed Rate Fixed Rate
Swap Debt Swap Debt
' (In thousands)

Notional amount ... ...ovviinrveirinreerasnnnsnneons $100,000 N/A  $100,000 N/A
Grossbook value ........ccviiviiininnrinninernnnnn N/A  $(2,879,907) N/A  $(2,052,293)
Fairvalue (1) ..o iiiiiiiiaiiii iy (503) (3,002,090) (429) (2,190,949)
Fair value reflecting change in interest rates: (1)

SO0 BPS . e i e, (910) (3,134,816) (1,725) (2,301,226)

+H100BPS ... e 97 (2,877,929) B30 (2,088,514)

(1) The change in fair value of fixed rate debt was duc to the assumption of approximately $831.9 million of
fixed rate debt as a result of our acquisitions during the year ended December 31, 2067 and overall changes
in interest rates.

N/A-—Not applicable.

We paid $0.2 million under the Swap during the year ended December 31, 2007. Assuming that interest
rates do not change, we estimate that we will pay $0.9 million on the Swap during the year ending December 31,
2008,

We had approximately $467.8 million and $284,7 million of variable rate debt outstanding as of
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The increase in our outstanding variable rate debt from December 31,
2006 is primarily attribuiable o additional net borrowings under our unsecured revolving credit facility and our
Canadian credit facility of $92.3 million and $89.7 million, respectively, and the assumption of additional
variable debt from the propertics managed by Sunrise totaling $121.4 million as of December 31, 2007, offset by
the repayment of $114.8 million in variable mortgage debt in January 2007 assumed as part of the Sentor Care
acquisition. The Swap currently effectively hedges $100.0 million of our outstanding variable rate debt. Any
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amounts of variable rate debt in excess of $100.0 million are subject to interest rate changes. However, pursuant
to the terms of certain leases with one of our tenants, if interest rates increase on certain debt that we have
totaling $98.1 million as of December 31, 2007, our tenant is required to pay us additional rent (on a
dollar-for-dollar basis) in an amount equal to the increase in interest expense resulting from the increased interest
rates. Therefore, the increase in interest expense related to this debt is equally offset by an increase in additional
rent due to us from the tenant. Assuming a one percentage point increase in the interest rate related to the
variable-rate debt, and assuming no change in the outstanding balance as of Decernber 31, 2007, interest expense
for 2008 would increase by approximately $2.7 million, or $0.02 per common share on a diluted basis. The fair
value of our fixed and variable rate debt is based on current interest rates at which similar borrowings could be
made by us,

We initially acquired eleven seniors housing communities in the Canadian provinces of Ontario and British
Columbia as part of the Sunrise REIT acquisition. In addition, we acquired for a fixed price another newly
developed community in Canada in December 2007. As a result, we are subject to fluciuations in U.S. and
Canadian exchange rates which may, from time to time, have an impact on our financial position and results of
operations. As we increase our international presence through investments in, and/or acquisitions or development
of, seniors housing and/or healthcare-related assets outside the United States, we may also decide to transact
additionat business in currencies other than U.S. or Canadian dollars. Although we may decide to pursue hedging
alternatives (including additional borrowings in local cumrencies) to protect against foreign currency fluctuations,
we cannot assure you that any such fluctuations will not have a material adverse cffect on our business, financial
condition, results of operation and liquidity, on our ability to service our indebtedness and other obligations and
on our ability to make distributions to our stockholders, as required for us to continue to qualify as a REIT.

We may engage in additional hedging strategies in the future, depending on management’s analysis of the
interest rate and foreign currency exchange rate environments and the costs and risks of such strategics. Our
market risk sensitive instruments are not entered into for trading purposes.

Credit Risk

As a result of our spin off of Kindred in May 1998 and the Provident acquisition in June 2005, we have a
significant concentration of credit risk with Kindred and Brockdale Senior Living. For the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006, Kindred accounted for $240.6 million, or 30.8% of our total revenues, and $220.9
million, or 51.6% of our total revenues, respectively, and Brookdale Senior Living accounted for $122.8 million,
or 15.7% of our total revenues, and $122.7 million, or 28.6% of our total revenues, respectively. Accordingly, the
financial condition of Kindred and Brookdale Senior Living and their ability to meet our rent obligations will
largely determine our rental revenues and our ability to make distributions to our stockholders. In addition, any
failure by Kindred or Brookdale Senior Living 10 effectively conduct its operations could have a material adverse
cffect on its business repulation or on its ability to enlist and maintain patients in its facilities. See “Risk
Factors—Risks Arising from Our Business—We are dependent on Kindred and Brookdale Senior Living; ¢ither
of Kindred's or Brookdale Senior Living’s inability or unwillingness to salisfy its obligations under its
agreements with us could significantly harm us and our ability to service our indebtedness and other obligations
and 10 make distributions to our stockholders as required for us to continue to qualify as a REIT" included in Pant
1, Item 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and “Note 4—Concentration of Credit Risk” of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We monitor our
credit risk under our lease agreements with our tenants by, among other things, (i) reviewing and analyzing
information regarding the healthcare industry generally, publicly available information regarding tenants, and
information provided by the tenants and borrowers under our lease and other agreements, and (ii) having periodic
discussions with tenants, borrowers and their representatives.

Liguidity and Capital Resources

During 2007, our principal sources of liguidity were proceeds from a bridge loan, preferred equity issuance,
dispositions, common stock offering, cash flows from operations and borrowings under our unsecured revolving
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credit facility and our Canadian credit facility. We anticipate that cash flows from operations over the next
twelve months will be adequate to fund our business operations, dividends to stockholders and debt amortization.
Capital requirements for acquisitions, however, may require funding from borrowings, assumption of debt from
the seller, and issvance of secured or unsecured long-term debt or other securities.

The $28.3 million of cash and cash equivalents held at December 31, 2007 consists primarily of cash related
10 our seniors housing communities that is deposited and held in property-level accounts, Funds maintained in
the property-level accounts are used primarily for the payment of property-level expenses and cerain capital
expenditures. Qur ownership share of property-level cash in excess of stipulated amounts set forth in the Sunrise
management agreements is currently being distributed to us monthly.

We intend to continue to fund future investments through cash flows from operations, borrowings under our
revolving credit facilities, assumption of indebtedness, disposition of assets (in whole or in part through joint
venture arrangements with third parties) and issuance of secured or unsecured long-term debt or other securities.
As of December 31, 2007, we had escrow deposits and restricted cash of $54.1 million and unused credit
availability of $446.0 million under our unsecured revolving credit facility and Cdn $0.9 million under the
Canadian credit facility.

Revolving Credit Facilities

Our unsecured revolving credit facility borrowing capacity is $600.0 million. Generally, borrowings
outstanding under our unsecured revolving credit facility bear interest at a fluctuating LIBOR-based rate per
annum plus an applicable percentage based on our consolidated leverage. The applicable percentage was 0.75%
at December 31, 2007.

On July 27, 2007, we amended our unsecured revolving credit facility to include a $150.0 million
“accordion” feature that permits us to expand our borrowing capacity to a total of $750.0 million upon
satisfaction of certain conditions. Pricing under the unsecured revolving credit facility did not change and we did
not record any material expenses or charges in connection with the amendment.

On August 24, 2007, we entered into the Canadian credit facility. Generally, borrowings outstanding under
the Canadian credit facility bear interest at a fluctuating “Bankers’ Acceptance” rate per annum plus an
applicable percentage based on our consolidated leverage. As of December 31, 2007, the applicable percentage
was 0.75%.

On January 24, 2008, we amended the Canadian credit facility to expand our borrowing capacity to a total
of Cdn $105.0 million. We also extended the original maturity date from February 24, 2008 to May 24, 2008. We
may further extend the maturity date for an additional three months subject to the satisfaction of certain
conditions.

Convertible Senior Notes

In December 2006, we completed the offering of $230.0 million aggregate principal amount of our 3%:%
Convertible Senior Notes due 2011 (the *Convertible Notes”). The Convertible Notes are convertible at the
option of the holder (i) prior to September 15, 2011, upon the occurrence of specified events and (ii) on or after
September 15, 2011, at any time prior to the close of business on the second business day prior to the stated
maturity, in each case into cash up to the principal amount of the Convertible Notes and cash or shares of our
common stock, at our election, in respect of any conversion value in excess of the principal amount at an initia
conversion rate of 22.1867 shares per $1,000 principal amount of notes (which equates 10 an initial conversion
price of approximately $45.07 per share). The conversion rate is subject to adjustment in certain circumstances,
including the payment of a quarterly dividend in excess of $0.395 per share. As of December 31, 2007, the
adjusted conversion rate was 22,3615 shares per $1,000 principal amount of notes (which equates to a conversion
price of approximately $44.72 per share). To the extent the market price of our common stock exceeds the
conversion price, our earnings per share will be diluted,

.
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Pursuant to the registration rights agreement entered into in connection with the Convertible Notes offering,
we filed a registration statement covering resales by the holders of shares of our common stock, if any, issued
upon conversion of the Convertible Notes. We will not receive any proceeds in connection with any such resales.

As of December 31, 2007, $230.0 million principal amount of Convertible Notes were outstanding. Certain
of our subsidiaries have fully and unconditionally guaranteed the Convertible Notes.

Senior Notes Offerings

In September 2006, we completed the offering of $225.0 million aggregate principal amount of 6¥1%
Senior Notes due 2017 (the “2017 Senior Notes”) of Ventas Realty, Limited Partnership and Ventas Capital
Corporation {collectively, the “Issuers”) at a 5/8% discount to par value.

In December 2005, we completed the offering of $200.0 million aggregate principal amount of 6 ¥2% Senior
Notes due 2016 (the “2016 Senior Notes™) of the Issuers at a 1/2% discount to par value.

In June 2005, we completed the offering of $175.0 million aggregate principal amount of 6%:% Senior
Notes due 2010 (the “2010 Senior Notes”) of the Issuers, and $175.0 million aggregate principal amount of
7Va% Senior Notes due 2015 (the “2015 Senior Notes™) of the Issuers. In June 2005, we also completed the
offering of $50.0 million aggregate principal amount of 6¥s% Senior Notes due 2014 (the “2014 Senior Notes™)
of the Issuers, which was in addition to the $125.0 million aggregate principal amount of 2014 Senior Notes
originally issued in October 2004. The additional $50.0 million aggregate principal amount of the 2014 Senior
Notes was issued at a 1% discount to par value. The additional $50.0 million aggregate principal amount and the
original $125.0 million aggregate principal amount of the 2014 Senior Notes are governed by the same indenture.
On August 3, 2007, we purchased $5.0 mitlion prircipal amount of our outstanding 2015 Senior Notes in an open
market transaction. '

Pursuant to registration rights agreements entered into in connection with the 2010 Senior Notes, 2015
Senior Notes and additional 2014 Senior Notes offerings, on October 28, 2005, we completed offers to exchange
the 2010 Senior Notes, 2015 Senior Notes and additional 2014 Senior Notes with new series of notes that are
registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and are otherwise substantially
identical to the original 2010 Senior Notes, 2015 Senior Notes and 2014 Scnior Notes, except that certain transfer
restrictions, registration rights and liquidated damages do not apply to the new notes. We did not receive any
additional proceeds in connection with the exchange offers.

Pursuant to the registration rights agreements entered into in connection with the 2016 Senior Notes
offerings, on April 7, 2006, we completed an offer to exchange the 2016 Senior Notes with a new series of notes
that are registered under the Securities Act and are otherwise substantially identical to the original 2016 Senior
Notes, except that certain transfer restrictions, registration rights and liquidated damages do not apply to the new
notes. We did not receive any additional proceeds in connection with the exchange offer.

As of December 31, 2007, $174.2 million principal amount of 8%:% Senior Notes duc 2009 {the “2009
Senior Notes”) of the Issuers, $175.0 million principal amount of 2010 Senior Notes, $191.8 million principal
amnount of 9% Senior Notes due 2012 (the “2012 Senior Notes™) of the Issuers, $175.0 million principal amount
of 2014 Senior Notes, $170.0 million principal amount of 2015 Senior Notes, $200.0 million principal amount of
2016 Senior Notes and $225.0 million principal amount of the 2017 Senior Notes (collectively, the “Senior
Notes”) were outstanding. We and certain of our subsidiaries have fully and unconditionally guaranteed the
Senior Notes.

The agreements governing our revolv'ing credit facilities, the Senior Notes and the Convertible Notes subject
us to a number of restrictive covenants. See “Note 9—Borrowing Arrangements” of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Dividends

In order to centinue to qualify as a REIT, we must make annual distributions to our stockholders of at least
90% of REIT taxable income (excluding net capital gain). We declared dividends greater than 100% of estimated
taxable income for 2007 and intend to pay a dividend greater than 100% of taxable income for 2008,

We expect that REIT taxable income wilt be less than cash flow due to the allowance of depreciation and
other non-cash deductions in computing REIT taxable income. Although we anticipate that we generally will
have sufficient cash or liquid assets to enable us to satisfy the 90% distribution requirement, it is possible that
from time to time we may not have sufficient cash or other liquid assets to meet the 90% distribution requirement
or we may decide to retain cash or distribute such greater amount as may be necessary to avoid income and
excise taxation. If we do not have sufficient cash or liquid assets to enable us to satisfy the 90% distribution
requirement, or if we desire 1o retain cash, we may borrow funds, issuc additional equity securities, pay taxable
stock dividends, if possible, distribute other property or securities or engage in a transaction intended to enable us
to meet the REIT distribution requirements.

Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures to maintain and improve our triple-net leased properties generally will be incurred by
our tenants. Accordingly, we do not believe that we will incur any major expenditures in connection with these
triple-net leased properties. After the terms of the triple-net leases expire, or in the event that the tenants are
unable or unwilling to meet their obligations under the triple-net icases, we anticipate that any expenditures
relating to the maintenance of these triple-net leased properties for which we may become responsible will be
funded by cash flows from operations or through additional borrowings. With respect to our senior living
communities managed by Sunrise and our MOBs, we believe that capital expenditures will be funded by the cash
flows from the properties or through additional borrowings. To the extent that unanticipated expenditures or
significant borrowings are required, our liquidity may be affected adversely. Our ability to borrow funds may be
restricted in certain circumstances by the terms of our revolving credit facilities and the indentures governing our
outstanding senior notes.

Equity Offerings

In May 2007, we completed the sale of 26,910,000 shares of our common stock in an underwritten public
offering pursuant to our current shelf registration statement. We received $1.05 billion in net proceeds from the
sale, which we used along with the proceeds of the disposition of the Kindred assets (sec “Note 6—~Dispositions”
of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K) and
borrowings under our unsecured revolving credit facility to redeem all of our outstanding Series A Senior
Preferred Stock and to repay our indebtedness under the senior interim loan used to fund a portion of the Sunrise
REIT acquisition.

Our automatic universal shelf registration statement, filed with the Commission in April 2006, relates to the
sale, from time to time, of an indeterminate amount of debt securities and related guarantees, common stock,
preferred stock, depositary shares and warrants. The registration statement replaced our previous universal shelf
registration statement, under which approximately $500.0 million of securities remained available for offering.

In July 2005, we completed the sale of 3,247,000 shares of our common stock in an underwritten public
offering pursuant to our previous shelf registration statement. We received $97.0 million in net proceeds from the
sale, which we used to repay indebtedness under our previous secured revolving credit facility and for general
corporate purposes, including the funding of acquisitions.

In February 2008, we completed the sale of 4,485,000 shares of our common stock in an underwritten public
offering pursuant to our current shelf registration statement. We received $191.9 million in net proceeds, before
expenses but after the underwriting discount, from the sale, which we used in part to repay indebtedness and will
use for working capital and other general corporate purposes, including to fund future acquisitions, if any.
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Other

During 2007 and 2006, we assumed facility-level mortgage debt in connection with certain property
acquisitions, including the Sunrise REIT and Senior Care acquisitions. See “Note S—Acquisitions” of the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Quistanding
facility-level mortgage debt was approximately $1.6 billion and $734.0 million as of December 31, 2007 and
2006, respectively.

We received proceeds on the exercises of stock options in the amounts of $9.8 million and $6.6 million for
the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Future proceeds on the exercises of stock options
will be primarily affected by the future performance of our stock price and the number of options outstanding.
Options outstanding have decreased to 950,395 as of December 31, 2007, from 1,156,051 as of December 3,
2006.

We generated net proceeds from our Distribution Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan of $1.! millicn and
$0.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. In March 2003, we began offering a
1% discount on the purchase price of our stock to shareholders who reinvest their dividends and/or make optional
cash purchases of common stock through the plan. Each month or quarter, as applicable, we may lower or
eliminate the discount without prior notice, thereby affecting the future proceeds that we receive from this plan.

We have outstanding loans made at various times from 1998 through 2002 to certain current and former
executive officers in the aggregate principal amount of approximately $2.1 million as of December 31, 2007,
down from $2.5 million at December 31, 2006. The loans are payable over ten years beginning, in each case, on
the date such loan was made. See “Note 17—Related Party Transactions” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Cash Flows
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities totaled $399.8 million and $238.9 million for the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The increase is duc to FFQ that was higher for the year ended
December 31, 2007 as a result of our real estate acquisitions (primarily the Sunrise REIT acquisition), rent
escalations in our leases with tenants and additional rent resulting from the rent reset under the Kindred Master
Leases, and changes in operating assets and liabilities at December 31, 2007,

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities was $1.2 billion and $482.0 million for the years ended December 31,
2007 and 2006, respeciively, These activitics consisted primarily of our investments in real estate, offset by
proceeds from our mortgage loans, the sale of securities and the sale of assets during the applicable periods. The
increase from 2006 is due primarily 1o the Sunrise REIT acquisition.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities totaled $805.6 million for thc year ended December 31,
2007. Proceeds primarily consisted of $1.2 billion in bridge financing, $1.05 billion from the issuance of
common stock, $176.6 million of net borrowings on our unsccured revolving credit facility and our Canadian
credit facility and $53.8 million from the issuance of other debt. The uses primarily included (i) $1.2 billion for
repayment of the bridge financing, (i) $286.2 million of cash dividend payments to common and preferred
stockholders and (iii) $184.6 million of aggregate principal payments on mortgage obligations.

Net cash provided by financing activities totaled $242.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2006,
down from $389.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. The proceeds included $449.0 million from the
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issuance of Senior Notes, Convertible Notes and other debt and $7.5 million from the issuance of common stock
upon the exercise of stock options and from our Distribution Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan. The uses
primarily included (i) aggregate principal payments on morigage obligations of $16.1 million, (ii) $160.6 million
of cash dividend payments, (iii) payments of deferred financing costs of $4.9 million associated with the issuance
of Senior Notes and (iv) net change in borrowings on our unsccured revolving credit facility and our previous
secured revolving credit facility of $32.2 million.

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes the effect that minimum debt (which includes principal and interest
payments) and other malerial noncancelable commitments are expected to have on our cash flow in future
periods as of December 31, 2007,

Less than 1 More than 5
Total year 1-3years{(d) 35 years(5) years (6)
(In thousands)

Long-term debt obligations (1}2) .......... $4,479,754 $399419 81,181,314 $1,083,712 31,815,309

Obligations under interest rate swap (2) .. ... 567 567 P — —_—

Acquisition commitments (3) ............. 34,150 34,150 — —_ —_
Operating and ground lease obligations ..... 90,066 1,694 2,938 2,202 83,232
Total ... e $4.604,537 $435,830 $1,184,252 $1,085914 $1,898,541

(1) Amounts represent contractual amounts due, including interest.

(2) Interest on variable rate debt and obligations under our interest rate swap were based on forward rates
obtained as of December 31, 2007,

(3) Includes commitments for the purchase of onc seniors housing community that closed in January 2008 and
one surgery center/MOB that is currently expected to close in the second quarter of 2008.

(4) Includes outstanding principal amounts of $174.2 million of the 2009 Senior Notes and $149.3 million
under our unsecured yevolving credit facility that matures in 2009 (with an option to extend for one year
subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions).

(5) Includes outstanding principal amounts of $175.0 million of the 2010 Senior Notes and $230.0 million of
the Convertible Notes.

(6) Includes outstanding principal amounts of $191.8 million of the 2012 Senior Notes, $175.0 million of the
2014 Senior Notes, $170.0 million of the 2015 Senior Notes, $200.0 million of the 2016 Senior Notes and
$225.0 million of the 2017 Senior Notes.

As of December 31, 2007, we had $9.4 million of unrecognized tax benefits under the provisions of FIN 43
that have been excluded from the table above, as we are unable to make a reasonable reliable estimate of the
period of cash settlement, if any, with the respective tax authority.

In connection with the Kindred spin off, we assigned our former third-party lease obligations and third-party
guarantee agreements to Kindred. As of December 31, 2007, we belicve that the aggregate exposure under our
third-party lease obligations was approximately $16.0 million and that we have no material exposure under the
third-party guarantee agreements. Kindred has agreed to indemnify and hold us harmless from and against all
claims against us arising out of the third-party leases, and we do not expect to incur any liability under those
leases. However, we cannot assure you that Kindred will have sufficient asscts, income and access to financing to
enable it to satisfy, or that it will continue to honor its obligations under the indemnity agreement relating to the
third-party leases. See “Note 13—-Commitments and Contingencies” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The information set forth in Item 7 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K under “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Asset/Liability Management” is incorporated by
reference into this Item 7A.
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MANAGEMENT REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management of Ventas, Inc. (the “Company”) is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate
interal control over financial reporting, as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended. Management, with the participation of the Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on the
framework established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Based on this evaluation, management has determined that
the Company's intenal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007 was effective.

On April 26, 2007, the Company acquired Sunrise Senior Living Real Estate Investment Trust (“Sunrise
RETT"). As a result of the Sunrise REIT acquisition, the Company is party to management agreements with
Sunrise Senior Living, Inc. (“Sunrise™) pursuant to which Sunrise provides comprehensive accounting and
property management services for each of the Sunrise REIT properties, as well as two additional properties the
Company acquired subsequent to the Sunnise REIT acquisition (collectively, the “Sunrise Properties”). As
permitted under Securities and Exchange Commission guidelines, the Company excluded from the assessment of
the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, internal control over
financial reporting of the Sunrise Properties’ assets and operations. Net assets and total revenues relaied to the
Sunrise Properties represented 38.1% and 36.6%, respectively, of the Company’s related consolidated financial
statement amounts as of and for the year ended December 31, 2007.

The effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007 has

been audited by Emst & Young LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report
included herein.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Stockholders and Board of Directors
Ventas, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Ventas, Inc. as of December 31, 2007 and
2006, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2007. Our audits also include the financial statement schedule
listed in the index. These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of Ventas, Inc.’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We belicve that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of Ventas, Inc. at December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the consolidated results of its operations
and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007, in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when
considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects
the information set forth thercin.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2006 Ventas, Inc. changed its method of
accounting for stock-based compensation.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), Ventas, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on
critcria established in Intcnal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 27, 2008, expressed an unqualified

opinion thereon,
Sanet + MLLP

Chicago, Hlinios
February 27, 2008




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Stockholders and Board of Directors
Ventas, Inc.

We have audited Ventas, Inc.’s intemal contro! over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on
criteria established in “Internal Control—Integrated Framework” issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). Ventas, Inc.'s management is responsible for
maintaining effective internal control over financial reponting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management Report on Internal Control
over Financial Reporting. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Thosc standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Qur audit
included obiaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a materjal
weakness exists, testing and cvaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal contro! based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's intemnal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide rcasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evalvation of effectiveness to future periods are subject 1o the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

As indicated in the accompanying Management Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting,
management’s assessment of and conclusion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting did
not include internal control over financial reporting of the Sunrise Properties’ assets and operations, which is
included in the 2007 consolidated financial siatements of Ventas, Inc. and constituted 38.1% and 36.6%, of net
assets and total revenues, respectively, of the Company’s related consolidated financial statement amounts as of
and for the year ended December 31, 2007. Our audit of intemnal control over financial reporting of Ventas, Inc.
also did not include an evaluation of the internal control over financial reporting of the Sunrise Properties’ assels
and operations.

In our opinion, Ventas, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 20(7, based on the COSO criteria.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Ventas, Inc. as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the
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related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended Decemnber 31, 2007, Qur audits also include the financial statement schedule listed in the index.
Our report dated February 27, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Sanct ¥ MLLP

Chicago, Illinois
February 27, 2008
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VENTAS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006
(In thounsands, except per share amounts)

Assets
Real estate investments:

Accumulated depreciation . ... ...oov it i i i i i

Netreal e8tate property .. ...coviiintinena e niiiiariasarias
Loans receivable, et . ... . ..ot e e e s

Netrealestateinvestments ........ .. ...t iiinricnnrnnnnnns
Cashandcashequivalents ... .. .. ... it iiesinaeas
Escrow deposits and restrictedcash ....... ... .. i i e
Deferred financing cosis, net . . ... e
Notes receivable-related parties . ............c.iiiiiiininrrriarranariineneaas
1 1T L

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity

Liabilities:
Senior notes payable andotherdebt ............... ... .. ...l
Deferred revenue ... .. ...ttt it i
Accrueddividend ... .. . e e
Accrued IDlerest . ... i h it it it i b et it
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities . ................... .00l 0
Deferred iNCOME TAXES . ... vvvveenerve it enentrnnranennenanan [P

Total liabilities . .......cut i it i s
1% 11T 1o 8 1] - O
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, 10,000 shares authorized, unissued .. ......................
Common stock, $0.25 par value; 300,000 and 180,000 shares authorized at
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively; 133,665 and 106,137 shares
issued at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively ..............cenvntn
Capitalinexcessof parvalue ........ ...t
Accumulated other comprehensiveincome .......... . coviiiiiiiiiiaes
Retained earnings (deficit) .............coiiiiiiiiiiiinniiiiaa
Treasury stock, 14 and O shares at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively . . .

Total stockholders’ equity .............co i
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ............. ... .. oot

See accompanying notes.
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$ 572,092 § 357,804
5,718,273 3,350,033

6,290,365 3,707,837
(816,352)  (659,584)

5474013 3,048,253
19,998 35,647

5494011 3,083,900
28,334 1,246
54,077 80,039
22,836 18,415

2,092 2,466
115,278 67,734

$5,716,628 $3,253,800

$3,360,499 $2,329,053
9,065 8,194

— 41,949
20,790 19,929
173,576 114,012
297,590 30,394

3,861,520 2,543,531
31,454 393

33,416 26,545
1,821,294 ° 766,470

17,416 1,037
(47,846) (84,176)
{626) —

1,823,654 709,876
$5,716,628 $3,253,800




VENTAS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Revenues:

Resident fees and Servics .. ... .. it ittt ittt st
Interest income from Joans receivable ... ... ... i
Interest and OtheT IDCOIME ..\ vv v et iie et iee it i ianssranscrarontassasrannnnnns

TotAl FEVENUES .. ..ttt iieinnanrnnnerasnrnsermasrcaaranisanssanasisnns
Expenses: .
2 T e
Depreciation and amortization . .......vveerienriasrirrriiestrsneiiiiiaiiians
Property-level Operating CXPENSES .. .0 vvvvnieineririrrranrrrarracnnanniacnatisis
Genernl, administrative and professional fees (including non-cash stock-based
compensation expense of $7,493, $3,046 and $1,971 for the years ended December 31,
2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively) ... .....viiririii i it i i ey
FOreign CUtTEney BRI .. .o ov v v r v et ce ot ia e s et
RENETEEET COBIS . o oot vtve e nnras s scnabiorssanarranassrasannearsassnnsss
Reversal of contingent liability ......... ... ... i
(Gain) loss on extinguishment of debt ... ....ouiiiiiiiiiiii i
Netgainonswapbreakage . . .. ..ottt
Net proceeds from Litigation semlement .. ... ... oo ininieriiiaiiiaarasiannnas
Contribution to charitable foundation ..........covveiiiiiioiiirvacrreannieaaasns
Merger-related eXPENSES . ... v it st et

TOl EXPENSES .\t inineriianartaanirr s s et et atar ey

Income before net loss on real estate disposals, income taxes, minority interest and discontinued
OPETBHOMS .. . .evvrn st e et saanasaneannnsrarssemsstsesntesarsnasarrnnatsanees
Net loss on real estate disposals .. ... ...ouiviirnaeiort i rioeianeriniiirir s

Income before income taxes, minority interest and discontinued operations .................
INCOmE AR BEREIIt ... ..t i s e a et e et

Income befote minority interest and discontinued operations .........ccoviii e e
Minority interest, RELOfIAX ... ..ottt e st e

Income from cONtNUING OPETALONS . ...\ vue vt vve v ieeeieriaenaranrsanraaesanss oo
Discontinued OPErAHONS . . ..o vieiuerianrriasnt s s aara s

O D OOIIE . . oottt vt s s s aesstnassranecoeaceaaeetaaraasssnsssnnesrnnernnns
Preferred stock dividends and issuance costs ... ... oo iiiiian it at e

Net income applicable to common shares .. ... ... ... .. e
Earnings per cominon share:
Basic:
Ircome from continuing operations applicable to common shares .................
Discontinued OPEraHONS o, ...ttt ivnnsiieasiarreasrrrerererissaesasnaans

Net income applicable to common shares ..........veveineniiraricnracaaros,
Diluted:

Income from continuing operations applicable to common shares .................

Discontinued OPEIAtONS ... ...t iarerrrrrarearscrrnrerrocssrannross

Net income applicable to common shares .. ... ... ...oiiiiiiiiiinranaaninis

Weighted average shares used in computing earnings per common share:
& 3T T

See accompanying notes.
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2007 2006 2005
$483,985 405,952 $310915
282,226 — —
2,586 7,014 5,001
2,994 2,886 3,268
771,791 415852 319,184
204218 136544 100,431
234061 117,172 85319
198,125 3,171 2.576
36425 26136 25075
(24,280) - —
— 7,361 —
— (1,769) —
(88) 1273 1,376
—_ — (981)
—_— — (15909
— - 2,000
29719 — —
651440 289,888 199,887
120,351 125964 119,297
— — (175)
120,351 125964 119,122
28,042 — —
148,393 125964 119,122
1.698 _ —
146,695 125964 119,122
135,623 5466 11461
282318 131430 130,583
5,199 — —
$277.119 $131.430 $130.583
$ 115 % 121 $ 125
1.11 0.05 0.12
$ 226 % 126 § 137
$ LIS S 120 § 124
1.10 0.05 0.12
$ 225§ 125 & 136
122,597 104,206 95,037
123012 104,731 95,775




VENTAS, INC,

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Balance at January 1, 2005 ........000eu

Comprehensive Income:
Net income applicable to common

Unrealized gain on interest rate swep .....
Reclassification adjustment for realized
loss on interest rate swap included in net
income during the year ..............

Comprehensiveincome . ..............0e.
Dividends to common stockholders-—$1 .44
pershare ... ............ ...,
Issuance of common stock .............
Issuance of common stock for stock
Plans ... i
Grant of restricted stock, net of
forfeitures ... ......ccoviiiiuiinns
Amoriization of restricted stock gmnts . . ..

Balance a1 December 31,2005 ............

Comprehensive Income:
Net income applicable to commen
shares .. ... ... i
Unrcalized gain on interesi rate swap .....
Reclassification adjustment for realized
gain on interest rate swap included in net
incomeduring theyear ..............
Unrealized gain on marketable securities .,

Comprebensiveincome . .....oooievennas
Dividends to common stockholders—$1.53
PErshare .......covvivvnninnennien
Issuance of common stock .............
{ssuance of commeon stock for stock
Plans ... e
Grant of restricted stock, net of
forfeiares ..........c0vuviiaennens
Reclassification of unearned compensation
on restricted stock to capital in excess of
parvalue ... i

Balance at December 31,2006 ............

Comprehensive Income:
Net income applicable to common
Shares .. ... ..
Forcign currency translation ...........,
Unrealized loss on intcrest rate swaps . . . ..
Reclassification adjustment for realized
gain on interest rate swap included in net
income during the year ..............
Realized gain on marketble securities | . ..

Comprebensive income .. ................
Dividends to common stockholders—$1.90
pershare ... ... iiieieii
Issuance of commonstock .............
Issuance of common stock for stock

Unearned Accumulated
Common Capital in  Compensation Other

Stock Par Excess of on Restricied Comprehensive Earnings Treasury
Stock Total

Retalned

Value Par Volue Stock Income (Loss) (Deficit)
$21283 § 208,903 § (633) $(9.114)  § (43.297) ${14.918) $ 160,224
— — — — 130,583 — 130.583
_ — — 5,754 - — 5,754
—_ — —_— 327 —_ —_ 3z
— —_ —_ -— _ —_— 139,554
— — — — (135.,688) — {135,688)
4,561 485,285 _ —_ - _ 489,846
Lx) (1.368) —_ -_ - 13,048 11,763
— (070 (1,330) — — 1,870 370
— —_ 1,250 —_ —_ —_ 1,250
25927 652,650 (713) (143) (50,402) _ 667,319
— — — -_ 131,430 —_ 131,430
— — —_ 810 -_— -_— 810
— — —_ (a59) — - (359
—_ —_— -— 729 _ —_ 729
—_ —_ —_ —_ _ —_ 132,610
— —_— —_ —_ (165,204) — (165,204)
427 64,573 _ —_ _ —_ 5,000
191 9,545 -_— — — 170 9,906
— 415 — —_ —_— (170) 245
— 13} 73 —_ — — —
26,545 766470 — 1,037 (84,176) -— 709876
— —_— —_ — 277,119 —_ 277,119
- — — 18.65) —_ — 18,651
— — — (995) — - (995)
—_ _ — (548) -— - (548)
—_ — — (729) — — (129)
—_— —_ — — — _ 203,498
—_ —_— —_ —_ (240,789 — {240,789)
6,727 1,038,986 —_ —_ —_ —_ 1,045,713
144 15,395 — - - 434 15973
— 443 — — — (1,060} (617)
$33416 $1,821,2% 5 — $17416 $(47.846) § (6206) $1,823,654

See accompanying notes.
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VENTAS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

(In thousands)
2007 2006 2005 .
Cash flows from operating activitics: :
NELEDOOIIE « c 4ttt vntir s e aiateateroansanasntonsanseneseroeosssrartisaresssnssnsos $ 282318 $131,430 § 130583
Adjustmeats to reconcile net income 1o net cash provided by operating activities: '
Depreciation and amaortization (including amounts in discominued operations) .............. 235,045 119,653 88,002 '
Amortization of deferred revenue and lease imangibles,net ............ i (9.819) (2.412) (3.497)
OtheT BMOTHZAHON EXAPEISES L .\ v v vnrinensnianesininrrarresrnrrtessararsssaens 2456 3,253 389
Stock-based compensation . ... iiiieiiei i e aen e 7.493 3,046 1,971 :
Straight-lining of retal INCOMRE ... ... iir i rmr st (17.311)  (19963)  (14.287) '
Reversal of contingent Lisbility .........ociiiiviineervivnrnrrrioiiieesaniiaaennas : — (1,769) -
Loss on extinguishmentof debt . .........oviiiviiiiiiiii i Petateerassaean —_ 1,273 1,358
Gain on sale of assets (including amounts in discontinucd operations) . ............ccovu.e {129,478) —— (4,939
Net gain on sale of marketable eqoity securities . ............coeiiiiniiiiniinn (864) (L3719 —
Net gainonswapbreakage ..........iieeiiiienennioraeeneriisasiariarnianseres — —_ (981)
Lossonbridge fINANCINE .00 vvuvierviiernrnrnaranaiinnioanns, Cebavar e 2,550 _— —_ '
Incometax benefit ... .....oviiiiiiii i e eeraissear ey (28,042) — —_
(0,17 pp) 488 (2,698)
Changes in operating asscis and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in escrow deposits and restricted cash .. ... oo 40,244 (29,789) 10,120
Decrease (IDCTease) in GLhEr 8SSEI8 . . ... ovveinevrtsoaraserrneraeneareisarersas 5,468 (11,895 (5,396)
(Decrease) increase in accroed INtETESt .. .. vvvviiivniirnrianneiirasnns Cherarerran (4,906) 5511 5,675
Increase in accounts payable and other liabiliies ............ ... 14,434 41,420 13,962
Net cash provided by operating 8CtVItES .. ........oiiiiiriii it 399,810 238,867 223,764
Cash flows from investing activities:
Net investment in real SRt PIOPETTY ... ooovutrrevnerorroncnreasracanaranacsiniearsns (1,348,354) (490311) (589.527)
Proceeds from real e3tate disposals .. ......cieniiiieieirirrrrerr et 157,400 — 1,416
Ivestment in Joans reoeIvabIE . .. . oottt i e ia e — (191,068)  (47,333)
Proceeds from sale of securities . ........o. ivviiaineas v . 1,773 —_ —
Proceeds from 10ans receivabe ... ....oveiiitiiai it 15,803 195411 20274
Capital eXpEndifUres . . ...\ v . v v ee st (6.372) (368) (25)
Escrow funds returned from an Intemal Revenue Code Section 1031 cxchange ............... — 9,902 —_
Purchase of markerable cquity SECUNIES . ... ... vvviveiuiarrrnenannencra et arrres —_ {5.530) —_
L 11V I I 37 (10} 154
Net cash used in investng activilies ... ... ..viveeeinmr it inieanees (1,173376) (431,974) (615,041) '
Cash flows from financing activities: -
Net change in borrowings under unsecured revolving credit facility ...............o00ih . 92,300 51,000 —_
Net change in borrowings under sacured revolving credit facility .........ovciiiiainn, - (89,200) 50,200
Net change in borrowings under Canadian credit facility ........ ik asai e 84,286 — —_
Issuance of bridge IRANCING ... ..oviiiiienvrr o Ceevaees 1,230,000 — —_
Repayment of bridge financing .........cevenirirrnrrmaiiiiiiiiiiiiiiia i {1.230,000) —_ —_
Proceeds from debt ....... e et hent e ae et e sy 53,832 449,005 600,000
Repayment 0f Gebh . . v v et ee ettt e (184,613)  (16,084) (231,988)
Debt and preferred stock issuance costs ... e b e e eerseannas {4,300) - —
Payment of deferred financing COSIS .. .o.vuvveeuencnarertsoaeraiistnssirroriaaanans {1.856) (4.876) 9.279)
Issuance of common stock .. ... ..o i i e b ree i 1,045,713 83 101,964 '
Payment of swap breakage fee ... ... ... . i _— - (2,320)
Cash distribution to preferred stockholders ... ..ouvv v iiai ot s (3.449) — —
Cash dismibution tocommon stockholders . ........oiirriiiiiiiiiiii ittt (282,739) (160.598) (125,843)
o 71 S T 12475 6,634 6,819
Net cash provided by financing 8ctivities .. .......cooviiveiiiiiiiiiaiirarannn. 805,649 242712 389,553
Net increase {(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ... ..o 32,083 (395) (1,724)
Effect of foreign currency translation on cash and cash equivalents .........cociveivaeiaenns. (4,995) -_ —
Cash and cash equivalents 8t beginning of Year ....... ..o oiiiiiiniiniiiiiiirararnraacns 1,246 1,644 3,365
Cash and cash equivalents atend of YEar . .. ...t iiiiii i it $ 2834 5§ 1246 § 1641
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Coutinued)

For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
(In thousands)

2007

2006 2005

Supplemental disclosure of cash Aow information:

Interest paid including swap payments and FECEIPES .. ... .o iiiuiiiiieiii i § 207478
Supplemental schedule of non~cesh activities:

Asscts and lisbilities assumed from acquisitions:

Real cstate INVESTMENLS ... ...t te e et ttiastaatesesaaeisetnnsarcttonsancassns $1.199,787
OtheT 2SSEIS BOQUETEA . .. ..o\ v e siecesesctnassnseesesaariseiassansreiniosnassins 157,865
T T 970301
IO CTTEE LS ...\t ve e ese e s eaen s sacsranrontratarsastoesasesassisansraserns 306,225
MUDOTILY INIETEST . .. ou v vt vt ie vt brn e s e sarnnsarainasacncnenanaasanans 32,730
T L IS . . v v vt e er et amsrnarane ot asoasasarnsontasarsansrrsstsssarnasrne 48,396
Issnance Of COMMON SI0CK .. .0t vn vt i rar s ar e rcccmetia st tst et sassnnsnrsssarsssans —_

See accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1—Description of Business

Ventas, Inc. (together with its subsidiaries, unless otherwise indicated or except where the context otherwise
requires, “we,” “us” or “our”) is a real estate investment trust (“REIT™) with a geographically diverse portfolio of
seniors housing and healthcare-related properties in the United States and Canada. As of December 31, 2007, this
portfolio consisted of 519 assets: 253 seniors housing communities, 197 skilled nursing facilities, 42 hospitals
and 27 medical office and other properties in 43 states and two Canadian provinces, including 77 seniors housing
communities we acquired from Sunrise Senior Living Real Estate lavestment Trust (“Sunrise REIT”) on
April 26, 2007. See “Note 5—Acquisitions.” With the exception of our medical office buildings (“MOBs") and
79 of our seniors housing communities that are managed by Sunrise Senior Living, Inc. (together with its
subsidiaries, “Sunrise™) pursuant to long-term management agreements, we lease these properties to healthcare
operating companies under “triple-net” or “absolute net” leases, which require the tenants to pay all property-
related expenses. Kindred Healthcare, Inc. (together with its subsidiaries, “Kindred™) leased 203 of our properties
and Brookdale Senior Living Inc. (together with its subsidiaries, which include Brookdale Living Communitics,
Inc. ("Brookdale™) and Alterra Healthcare Corporation (“Alterra™), *Brookdale Senior Living™) leased 83 of our
properties as of December 31, 2007. We also had real estate loan investments relating to seniors housing and
healthcare-related third parties as of December 31, 2007.

We conduct substantially all of our business through our wholly owned subsidiaries, Ventas Realty, Limited
Partnership (“Ventas Realty”), PSLT OP, L.P. and Ventas SSL, Inc.,, and ElderTrust Operating Limited
Partnership (“"ETOP"), in which we own substantially all of the partnership units. Our primary business consists
of financing, owning and leasing seniors housing and healthcare-related properties and leasing or subleasing
those properties to third parties or operating those properties through independent third party managers.

Note 2—Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements include our accounts and the accounts of our wholly
owned subsidiaries and joint venture cntities over which we exercise control. All intercompany transactions and
balances have been eliminated in consolidation, and net earnings are reduced by the portion of net earnings
applicable to minority inferests.

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and Liabilities,
the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of rental revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Long-Lived Assets and Intangibles

Investments in real estate assets are recorded at cost. We account for acquisitions using the purchase
method. The cost of the properties acquired is allocated among tangible and recognized intangible assets and
liabilities based upon estimated fair values in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 141, “Busincss Combinations.” We estimate fair values of the components
of assets and liabilities acquired as of the acquisition date. Recognized intangibles include the value of acquired
lease contracts, management agreements and related customer relationships.

Our method for determining fair value varies with the categorization of the asset or liability acquired. We
estimate the fair value of buildings on an as-if-vacant basis, and depreciate the building value over the
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estimated remaining life of the building. We determine the allocated value of other fixed assets based upon the
replacement cost and depreciate such value over their estimated remaining useful lives. We determine the value
of land either based on real estate tax assessed values in relation to the total value of the asset, internal analyses
of recently acquired and existing comparable properties within our portfolio. The fair value of in-place leases, if
any, reflects (i) above and below market leases, if any, determined by discounting the difference between the
estimated current market rent and the in-place rentals, the resulting intangible asset or liability of which is
amortized to revenue over the remaining life of the associated lease plus any fixed rate renewal periods, if
applicable, (i) the estimated value of the cost to obtain tenants, including tenant allowances, tenant
improvements and leasing commissions, which is amortized over the remaining life of the associated lease, and
(iii) an estimated value of the absorption period to reflect the value of the rents and recovery costs foregone
during a reasonable lease-up period, as if the acquired space was vacant, which is amortized over the remaining
life of the associated lcase. We also estimate the value of tenant or other customer relationships acquired by
considering the nature and extent of existing business relationships with the tenant, growth prospects for
developing new business with the tenant, the tenant’s credit quality, expeciations of lease repewals with the
tenant, and the potential for significant, additional future leasing arrangements with the tenant. We amortize such
value over the expected term of the associated arrangements or leases, which would include the remaining lives
of the related leases and any expected renewal periods. The fair value of long-term debt is calculated by
discounting the remaining contractual cash flows on each instrument at the current market rate for those
borrowings. Discount rates are approximated based on the rate we estimate we would incur to replace each
instrument on the date of acquisition. Any fair value adjustments related to long-term debt are recognized as
effective yield adjustmenis over the remaining term of the instrument.

Fixtures and equipment, with a net book value of $113.6 miltion and $108.8 million at December 31, 2007
and 2006, respectively, is included in net real estate property on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. Depreciation
is recorded on the straight-line basis, using estimated useful lives ranging from 20 to 50 years for buildings and
improvements and three to ten years for fixtures and equipment. Depreciation is discontinued when a property is
identified as held for sale.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

We periodically evaluate our long-lived assets, primarily consisting of our investments in real estate, for
impairment indicators in accordance with SFAS No. 144 “Accounting for the Impairment and Disposal of Long-
Lived Asscts.” If indicators of impairment are present, we evaluate the carrying value of the related real estate
investments in relation to the future undiscounted cash flows of the underlying operations. We adjust the net
book value of leased properties and other long-lived assets to fair value, if the sum of the expected future cash
flows and sales proceeds is less than book vatue. An impairment loss is recognized at the ime we make any such
determination. Future events could occur which would cause us to conclude that impairment indicators exist and
an impairment loss is warranted. We did not record any impairment charges for the years ended December 31,
2007, 2006 and 2005.

Loans and Other Amgunts Receivable from Third Parties

Loans receivable are stated at the unpaid principal balance net of any deferred origination fees. Net deferred
origination fees are comprised of loan fees collected from the borrower net of certain direct costs. Net deferred
origination fees are amortized over the contractua! life of the loan using the level yield method. Interest income
on the loans receivable is recorded as earmed. We evaluate the collectibility of loans and other amounts
receivable from third parties based on, 2 number of factors, including (i) corporate and facility-level financial and
operational reports, (ii) compliance with the financial covenants set forth in the borrowing or lease agreement,
(iii) the financial stability of the applicable borrower or tenant and any guarantor and (iv) the payment history of
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the borrower or tenant. Our level of reserves, if any, for loans and other amounts receivable from third parties
fluctuates depending upon all of these factors. No reserves were recorded against our loans receivable balance at
December 31, 2007 and 2006.

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments with a maturity date of three months or less when
purchased. These investments are stated at cost which approximates fair value.

Escrow Deposits and Restricted Cash

Escrow deposits consist of amounts held by us or lenders to provide for future real estate tax and insurance
expenditures and tenant improvements related to our operations and properties. Restricted cash represents
amounts paid to us for security deposits and other purposes.

Deferred Financing Costs

Deferred financing costs are amortized as a component of interest expense over the terms of the related
borrowings using a method that approximates a level yield, and are net of accumulated amortization of
approximately $13.5 million and $7.5 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Amortized costs of
approximately $5.5 million, $3.3 million and $3.9 million were included in interest expensc for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Marketable Equity Securities

We record marketable equity securities as available-for-sale in accordance with SFAS No. 115, *Accounting
for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities.” These securities are recorded at fair market value, with
unrealized gains and losses recorded in stockholder’s equity as a component of accumulated other comprehensive
income on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Gains or losses on securities sold are based on the specific
identification method and reported in interest and other income on our Consolidated Statements of Income.
During the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, we realized gains related to the sale of various equity
securities of $0.9 million and $1.4 million, respectively. There were no gains or losses realized for the year ended
December 31, 2005.

Derivative Instruments

We use derivative instruments to protect against the risk of interest rate movements on future cash flows
under our variable rate debt agreements and the risk of foreign currency exchange rate movements. In accordance
with SFAS No. 133 “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activitics,” as amended, derivative
instruments are reported at fair value on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. Changes in the fair value of
derivatives are recognized as adjustments to net income if the derivative does not qualify for hedge accounting. If
the derivative is deemed to be eligible for hedge accounting, such changes are reported in accumulated other
comprehensive income, exclusive of ineffectiveness amounts, which are recognized as adjustments to net
income. As of December 31, 2007, a $0.5 million net unrealized loss on our interest ratc swap is included in
accumulated other comprehensive income.

In January 2007, we entered into two Canadian call options in conjunction with our agreement to acquire the
assets of Sunrise REIT. See “Note S—Acquisitions.” We paid an aggregate purchase price of $8.5 million for
these contracts, which had an aggregate notional call amount of Cdn $750.0 million at a Cdn $1.18 strike price.
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These contracts were settled on April 26, 2007, the acquisition date, and we received cash of $33.2 million upon
settlement. For the year ended December 31, 2007, we recognized gains refated to these call option contracts of
$24.7 million, which is included in our Consolidated Statements of Income as a foreign currency gain.

Fair Values of Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used in estimating fair value disclosures for financial
instruments.

* Cash and cash equivalents: The carrying smount of cash and cash equivalents reported in our
Consolidated Balance Sheets approximates fair value because of the short maturity of these instruments.

+ Loans receivable: The fair value of loans receivable is estimated by discounting the future cash flows
using the current interest rates at which similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit
ratings and for the same remaining maturities.

* Notes receivable-related parties: The fair value of the notes receivable-related parties is estimated using
a discounted cash flow analysis, using interest rates being offered for similar Joans to borrowers with
similar credit ratings.

* Interest rate swap agreement: The fair value of the interest rate swap agreement is based on rates being
offered for similar arrangements which consider forward yield curves and discount rates.

¢ Senior notes payable and other debt: The fair values of borrowings under fixed rate agreements are
estimated by discounting the future cash flows using current interest rates at which similar borrowings
could be made by us.

Revenue Recognition

Certain of our Jeases, excluding our master lease agreements with Kindred (the *Kindred Master Leases™)
but including the majority of our leases with Brookdale Senior Living, provide for periodic and determinable
increases in base rent. Base rental revenues under these leases are recognized on a straight-line basis over the
terms of the applicable lease. Income on our straight-line revenue is recognized when collectibility is reasonably
assured. In the event we determine that collectibility of straight-line revenue is not reasonably assured, we
establish an allowance for estimated losses. Recognizing rental income on a straight-line basis results in
recognized revenue exceeding cash amounts contractually due from our tenants during the first half of the term
for leases that have straight-line treatment, The cumulative excess is included in other assets, net of allowances,
on our Consolidated Balance Sheets and totaled $54.5 million and $37.1 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively.

Cenain of our other leases, including the Kindred Master Leases, provide for an annual increase in rental
payments only if certain revenue parameters or other contingencies are met. We recognize the increased rental
revenue under these leases only if the revenue parameters or other contingencies are met rather than on a straight-
line basis over the term of the applicable lease. We recognize income from rent, lease termination fees and other
income when all of the following criteria are met in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Commission
(the “Commission™) Staff Accounting Bulletin 104: (i) the agreement has been fully executed and delivered;
(ii) services have been rendered; (iii) the amount is fixed or determinable; and (iv) collectibility is reasonably
assured.

Residem fees and services are recognized monthly as services are provided. Move-in fees, which are
included in resident fees and services, are recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the applicable lease
agreement. Lease agreements with residents generally have a term of one year and are cancelable by the resident
with 30 days’ notice.
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Stock-Based Compensation

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issued SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-
Based Payment” (“SFAS No. 123(R)"), which is a revision to SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation” (“SFAS No. 123"). SFAS No. 123(R) supersedes Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB Opinion No. 25”). Generally, the approach in SFAS
No. 123(R) is similar to the approach described in SFAS No. 123, except that SFAS No. 123(R) requires all
share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee stock options, 10 be recognized in the income
statement based on their fair values. Pro forma disclosure is no longer an alternative under SFAS No. 123(R). We
adopted SFAS No. 123(R) on January 1, 2006. See “Note 11—Stock-Based Compensation.”

Gain on Sale of Assets

We recognize sales of assets only upon the closing of the transaction with the purchaser. Payments received
from purchasers prior 1o closing are recorded as deposits and classified as other assets on our Consolidated
Balance Sheets. Gains on assets sold are recognized using the full accrual method upon closing when the
collectibility of the sales price is reasonably assured, we are not obligated to perform significant activities after
the sale 1o earn the profit, we have received adequate initial investment from the buyer, and other profit
recognition criteria have been satisfied. Gains may be deferred in whole or in part until the sales satisfy the
requirements of gain recognition on sales of real estate under SFAS No. 66, “Accounting for Sales of Real
Estate.”

Federal Income Tax

Since we have elected to be treated as a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) under the applicable
provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code™), prior to the second quarter of 2007
we made no provision for federal income tax purposes and we will continue to make no provision for REIT
income and expense. As a result of the Sunrise REIT acquisition, income tax expense or benefit is now being
recorded with respect to certain entities which are taxed as “taxable REIT subsidiaries™ under provisions similar
to those applicable to regular corporations and not under the REIT provisions.

Deferred income taxes are accounted for using the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for the expected future tax consequences of evenls that have been included in the
financial statements or tax returns. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on
the differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in
effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. An increase or decrease in the deferred tax
liability that results from a change in circumstances, and which causes a change in our judgment about expected
future tax consequences of events, would be included in the tax provision when the changes in circumstances and
our judgment occurs. Deferred income taxes also reflect the impact of operating loss and tax credit
carryforwards. A valuation allowance is provided if we believe it is more likely than not that all or some portion
of the deferred tax asset will not be realized. An increase or decrease in the valuation allowance that results from
a change in circumstances, and which causes a change in our judgment about the realizability of the related
deferred tax asset, would be included in the tax provision when the changes in circumstances and our judgment
ocecurs,

Discontinued Operations

The results of operations and gain or loss on assets sold or held for sale are reflected in our Consolidated
Statements of Income as discontinued operations for all periods presented. Interest expense allocated to
discontinued operations has been estimated based on a proportional allocation of rental income among all of our
properties.
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Foreign Currency

Centain of our subsidiaries’ functional currencies are the local currencies of their respective countries. We
translate the results of operations of our foreign subsidiaries into U.S. doilars using average rates of exchange in
effect during the period, whereas balance sheet accounts are translated using exchange rates in effect at the end
of the period. Resolting currency translation adjustments arc recorded in accumulated other comprehensive
income, a component of stockholders’ equity, in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. Transaction gains and losses
are recorded in our Consolidated Statements of Income.

Segment Reporting

As of December 31, 2007, we operated through two reportable business segments: triple-net leased
properties and senior living operations. Our triple-net leased properties segment consists of financing, owning
and leasing seniors housing and healthcare-related properties in the United States and leasing or subleasing those
properiies to healthcare operating companies under “triple-net” or “absolute-net” leases, which require the
tenants to pay all property-related expenses. Our senior living operations segment consists of investments in
seniors housing communities located in the United States and Canada for which we engage Sunrise to manage
the operations.

We acquired the senior living operations segment on April 26, 2007, pussuant to the purchase of the Sunrisc
REIT properties. With the addition of these properties, we believed segment differentiation would be appropriate
based on the different economic and legal structures used to acquire and own those assets. Prior to the
acquisition, we operated through one reportable segment—investment in real estate—which included the
triple-net leased properties and our MOBs. Our MOB segment consists of leasing space primarily to physicians
and other healthcare-related businesses and engaging third parties to manage those operations. Due to our limited
operation of and allocation of capital to the MOBs, we separated them from the triple-net leased properties
segment. However, the MOB segment is not individually reported and is included in “All Other” because it does
not meet the quantitative thresholds of SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related
information” at the current time. See “Note 19—Segment Information.”

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes” (“FIN
48"). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for income taxes when it is uncertain how an income or expense item
should be treated on an income tax return. FIN 48 describes when and in what amount an uncertain tax item
should be recorded in the financial statements and provides guidance on recording interest and penalties and
accounting and reporting for income taxes in interim periods. We adopted FIN 48 on January 1, 2007, See *Note
12—Income Taxes."”

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” This statement defines
fair value and provides guidance for measuring fair value and the necessary disclosures. SFAS No. 157 does not
require any new fair valuc measurements, but rather applies to all other accounting pronouncements that require
or permit fair value measurements. We adopted SFAS No. 157 on January I, 2008. The adoption did not have a
material impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), “Business Combinations.” SFAS No. i41(R)
requires the acquiring entity in a business combination to measure the assets acquired, liabilities assumed
(including contingencies) and any noncontrolling interests at their fair values on the acquisition date. The
statement also requires that acquisition-related transaction costs be expensed as incurred and acquired research
and development value be capitalized. In addition, acquisition-related restructuring costs are to be capitalized
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only if they meet certain criteria. SFAS No. 141(R) will be cffective for us beginning on January 1, 2009. Early
adoption is prohibited.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements, an amendment of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, SFAS No. 160 requires the classification of
noncontrolling interests (formerly, minority interesis) as a component of consolidated equity. In addition, net
income will include the total income of all consolidated subsidiaries with the attribution of eamings and other
comprehensive income between controlling and noncontrolling interests reported as a separate disclosure on the
face of the consolidated income statement. The calculation of earnings per share will continue to be based on
income amounts attributable to the parent. SFAS No. 160 also addresses accounting and reporting for a change in
control of a subsidiary. SFAS No. 160 will be effective for us beginning on January 1, 2009. Early adopticn is
prohibited. This statement is required to be adopted prospectively, except for the presentation and disclosure
requirements, which are required to be adopted retrospectively.

Reclassifications
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

Note 3-—Revenues from Properties
Triple-Net Leased Properties

Approximately 30.8%, 51.6% and 59.8% of our total revenues (including amounts in discontinued
operations) for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, were derived from the four
Kindred Master Leases.

On June 7, 2005, we completed the acquisition of Provident Senior Living Trust (“Provident™) (see
“Note 5—Acquisitions™), which leased all of its properties to affiliates of Brookdale and Alterra. In September
2005, Brookdale was combined, through a series of mergers, with Alterra under a new holding company,
Brookdale Senior Living. Approximately 15.7%, 28.6% and 22.9% of our total revenues for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, were derived from our lease agreements with Brookdale Senior
Living.

Each of our leases with Kindred and Brookdale Senior Living is a triple-net lease pursuant to which the
tenant is required to pay all insurance, taxes, wtilities and maintenance and repairs related to the properties. In
addition, the tenants are required to comply with the terms of the mortgage financing documents, if any, affecting
the properties.

Each of Kindred and Brookdale Senior Living is subject to the reporting requirements of the Commission
and is required to file with the Commission annual reports containing audited financial information and quarterly
reports containing unaudited financial information. The information related to Kindred and Brookdale Senior
Living contained or referred to in this Annual Report on Form 10-K is derived from filings made by Kindred or
Brookdale Senior Living, as the case may be, with the Commission or other publicly available information, or
has been provided to us by Kindred or Brookdale Senior Living. We have not verified this information either
through an independent investigation or by reviewing Kindred's or Brookdale Senior Living’s public filings. We
have no reason 1o believe that this information is inaccurate in any material respect, but we cannol assure you
that all of this information is accurate. Kindred's and Brookdale Senior Living's filings with the Commission can
be found at the Commission’s website at www.sec.gov. We are providing this data for informational purposes
only, and you are encouraged to obtain Kindred’s and Brookdale Senior Living's publicly available filings from
the Commission.
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Kindred Master Leases. The properties leased to Kindred pursuant to the Kindred Master Leases are
grouped into renewal bundles, with each bundle containing a varying number of divérsified properties. All
properties within a bundle have primary terms ranging from ten to 15 years, commencing May 1, 1998, and,
provided certain conditions are satisfied, are subject to three five-year renewal terms.

Under each Kindred Master Lease, the aggregate anrual rent is referred to as Base Rent {(as defined in the
applicable Kindred Master Lease). Base Rent escalates on May | of each year at a specified rate over the Prior
Period Base Rent (as defined in the applicable Kindred Master Lease) contingent upon the satisfaction of the
specified facility revenue parameters. On October 6, 2006, final appraisers designated by us and Kindred
specified that the market annual rent escalator is 2.7% under Kindred Master Leases 1, 3 and 4, and is based on
year-over-year changes in.the Consumer Price Index, with a floor of 2.25% and a ceiling of 4%, under Kindred
Master Lease 2, in all cases contingent upon satisfaction of the aforementioned revenue parameters.

On April 27, 2007, Kindred renewed, through April 30, 2013, its leases covering all 64 healthcare assets
owned by us (seven of which we subsequently sold on June 30, 2007 (see “Note 6—Dispositions™)) whose base
term would have expired on April 30, 2008. Kindred retains two additional sequential five-year renewal options
for these assets.

Brookdale Senior Living Leases. QOur leases with Brookdale have primary terms of 15 years, commencing
cither January 28, 2004 (in the case of 15 “Grand Court” properties we acquired in early 2004) or October 19,
2004 (in the case of the properties we acquired in connection with the Provident acquisition), and, provided
certain conditions are satisfied, are subject to two ten-year renewal terms. Our leases with Alterra also have
primary terms of 15 years, commencing either October 20, 2004 or December 16, 2004 (both in the case of
properties we acquired in connection with the Provident acquisition), and, provided certain conditions are
satisfied, are subject to two five-year renewal terms.

Under the terms of the Brookdale leases assumed in connection with the Provident acquisition, Brookdale is
obligated to pay base rent, which escalates on January 1 of each year, by an amount equal to the lesser of (i) four
times the percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index during the immediately preceding year or (ii) 3%.
Under the terms of the Brookdale leases with respect to the “Grand Court” properties, Brookdale is obligated to
pay base rent, which escalates on February 1 of each year, by an amount equal to the greater of (i) 2% or (ii) 75%
of the increase in the Consumer:Price Index during the immediately preceding year. Under the terms of the
Alterra leases, Alterra is obligated to pay base rent, which escalates either on January § or November 1 of each
year by an amount equal to the lesser of (i) four times the percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index
during the immediately preceding year or (ii) 2.5%. We recognize rent revenue under the Brookdale and Alterra
leases on a straight-line basis. See “Note 13—Commitments and Contingencies.™ '
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The future contracted minimum rentals, excluding contingent rent escalations, but with straight-line rents
where applicable, for ali of our triple-net leases are as follows;

Brookdale
Sentor
Kindred Living Other Total
{In thousands)
2008 .. e $236,120 $ 119854 § 137,001 § 492,975
2000 .. e e i 232,729 119,673 136,177 488,579
2000 ... i i iy 157,676 119,677 136,358 413,711
1 N [ 122,806 119,680 136,638 379,124
2002 e b 125,302 119,684 136,042 381,028
Thereafter ... ..o ittt 42,048 817,770 901,238 1,761,056
Total ..ot e $916,681 $1,416338 §1,583,454 $3916,473

Senior Living Operations

As a result of the acquisition of the Sunrise REIT properties, we are party to management agreements with
Sunrise pursuant to which Sunrise currently provides comprehensive accounting and property management
services with respect to 79 of our seniors housing communitics. Each management agreement has a term of 30
years from its effective date, the earliest of which began in 2004. Total revenues attributable to senior living
operations managed by Sunrisc were $283.1 million for the period from April 26, 2007 through December 31,
2007, representing 36.2% of our total revenues (including amounts in discontinued operations) for the year ended
December 31, 2007,

Sunrise is subject to the reporting requirements of the Commission and is required to file with the
Commission annual reports containing audited financial information and quarterly reports containing unaudited
financial information. According to public disclosures, Sunrise has not been timely filing such required reports
and is currently experiencing certain legal, accounting and regulatory difficulties. On July 25, 2007, Sunrise
announced that its board of directors had decided to explore strategic alternatives intended to enhance
sharcholder value, including a possible sale of Sunrise. We cannot predict what impac, if any, the outcomes of
these uncertainties will have on Sunrise’s financial condition or ability to manage our senior living operations.
You are encouraged to obtain additional information related to Sunrise at the Commission’s website at
WWW.5€C.ZOV.

Note 4—Concentration of Credit Risk

As of December 31, 2007, approximately 39.7%, 22.0% and 14.9% of our properties, based on their original
cost, were operated by Sunrise, Brookdale Senior Living and Kindred, respectively, and approximately 76.9%
and 13.9% of our propertics, based on their original cost, were seniors housing communitics and skilled nursing
facilities, respectively. Our remaining properties consist of hospitals, MOBs and other healthcare-related assets.
These properties were located in 43 states, with properties in two states accounting for more than 10% of total
revenues during the year ended December 31, 2007, and two Canadian provinces. Properties in two states and
one state accounted for more than 10% of total revenues for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

Because we lease a substantial portion of our triple-nct leased properties to Kindred and Brookdale Senior

Living and they are each a significant source of our total revenues, their financial condition and ability and
willingness to satisfy their obligations under their respective leases and certain other agreements with us and their
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willingness to renew those leases upon expiration of the initial base terms thereof will significantly impact our
revenues and our ability to service our indebiedness and to make distributions to our stockholders. We cannot
assure you that Kindred or Brookdale Senior Living will have sufficient assets, income and access to financing to
enable it to satisfy its obligations under its respective leases and other agreements with us, and any inability or
unwillingness on its part to do so would have a material adverse cffect on our business, financial condition,
results of operation and liquidity, on our ability to service our indebtedness and on our ability 10 make
distributions to our stockholders, as required for us 1o continue to qualify as a REIT (a “Material Adverse
Effect”). We also cannot assure you that Kindred and/or Brookdale Senior Living will elect to renew their
respective leases with us upon expiration of the initial base terms or any renewal terms thereof.

Although we have various rights as owner under the Sunrise management agreements, we are relying on
Sunrise's personnel, good faith, expertise, historical performance, technical resources and information systems,
proprietary information and judgment 10 manage our seniors housing communities efficiently and effectively. We
are also relying on Sunrise 10 set resident fees and otherwise operate those properties pursuant to our
management agreements. A change in the senior management of Sunrise or any adverse developments in
Sunrise's business and affairs or financial strength could also have a Material Adverse Effect on us. In addition,
any inability or unwillingness on the part of Sunrise to satisfy its obligations under the management agreements
it has with us could have a Material Adverse Effect on us.

Note 5S—Acquisitions

The following is a summary of our more significant acquisitions in 2007, 2006 and 2005. The primary
reason for these acquisitions was to invest in seniors housing and healthcare-related properties with an expected
yield on investment, as well as to diversify our portfolio and revenue base and limit our dependence on any
single operator, geography or asset type for our revenue.

Sunrise REIT Acquisition

On April 26, 2007, we completed the acquisition of all of the assets of Sunrise REIT pursuant to the terms
of a purchase agreement dated as of January 14, 2007, as amended, among us, our wholly owned subsidiaries,
Ventas SSL Ontario I, Inc. (formerly 2124678 Ontario Inc., the “Securities Purchaser”) and Ventas SSL Ontario
1, Inc. (formerly 2124680 Oatario Inc., the “Asset Purchaser” and, together with the Securitics Purchaser, the
“Purchasers”), Sunrise REIT, Sunrise REIT Trust (“Sub Trust”) and Sunrise REIT GP Inc. (“Sunrise GP”), in its
capacity as gencral partner of Sunrise Canadian UPREIT, LP (“UPREIT"). The aggregate consideration for the
Sunrise REIT acquisition, including the assumption of debt, was approximately $2.0 billion.

At the effective time of the Sunrise REIT acquisition, the Securitics Purchaser purchased all of the interests
and assumed all of the liabilities of Sunrise REIT Canadian Holdings Inc. (“Canco”) and certain of Sunrise
REIT's intercompany notes held by Sub Trust, and the Asset Purchaser acquired all of Sunrise REIT's remaining
assets and liabilities from Sunrise REIT, Sub Trust and UPREIT. Immediately following the Sunrise REIT
acquisition, each unit of beneficial interest of Sunrise REIT outstanding immediately prior to the effective time
(except for a small number of non-tendered units) was redeemed for Cdn $16.50 in cash.

Through the Sunrise REIT acquisition, we acquired a 100% interest in 18 seniors housing communities and
a 75% to 85% interest in 59 additional seniors housing communities, with the minority interest in those 59
communities being owned by affiliates of Sunrise. Of the 77 communities, 66 are located in metropolitan areas of
19 U.S. states and eleven are Jocated in the Canadian provinces of Ontario and British Columbia.

As a resuhi of the Sunrise REIT acquisition, we are party to management agreements with Sunrise pursuant
to which Sunrise provides comprehensive accounting and property management services with respect to each of

81




VENTAS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

the Sunrise REIT properties. Each management agreement has a term of 30 years from its effective date, the
carliest of which began in 2004. Pursuant to the management agreements, we pay Sunrise a base management fee
of 6% of resident fees and similar revenues, subject to reduction based on below target performance for a pool of
properties. The minimum management fee assessable under these agreements is 5% of resident fees and similar
revenues of the propertics. We also pay incentive fees if a pool of properties exceeds aggregate performance
targets; provided, however, that total management fees, including incentive fees, shall not exceed 8% of resident
fees and similar revenues. The management agreements also specify that we (or the joint venture to which we are
party, as applicable) will reimburse Sunrise for direct or indirect costs necessary to manage our senjors housing
communities.

Under the terms of the letter agreement dated January 14, 2007 (the “ Letter Agreement”) between us and
Sunrise, we modified various management and other agreements and contractual relationships that existed
between Sunrise, on the one hand, and Sunrise REIT, on the other hand (the “Existing Agreements™). Pursuant to
the Letter Agreement, the Strategic Alliance Agreement dated as of December 23, 2004 between Sunrise and
Sunrise REIT was terminated effective upon the closing of the Sunrise REIT acquisition, except with respect to
certain limited provisions. Under the terms of the Letter Agreement, we have, among other things, a right of first
offer to acquire seniors housing communities developed by Sunrise in Canada. In addition, we have a right of
first offer to acquire seniors housing communities developed by Sunrise in the United States within a
demographically defined radius of any of the properties acquired by us in the Sunrise REIT acquisition. The
terms of the rights of first offer for properties in both the United States and Canada arc governcd generally by the
terms set forth in the Strategic Alliance Agreement and the fixed price acquisition agreement referred to in the
Stralegic Alliance Agreement, but subject to modification of those terms to address changes in circumstances and
other matters.

The Letter Agreement also (1) provides us assurances that Sunrise will cooperate with us in connection with
our compliance with the REIT rules under the Code, and in connection with our financial reporting obligations,
(2) contains restrictions on our rights to transfer our interest in the acquired properties to transferees who
compete with Sunrise or who do not meet certain requirements, and (3) provides that Sunrise consents to the
Sunrise REIT acquisition and waives certain rights under the Existing Agreements. Although not required, we
and Sunrise may enter into various amendments to the Existing Agreements to further address the matters set out
in the Letter Agreement.

As a result of the Sunrise REIT acquisition, we assumed all rights and obligations of Sunrise REIT under
two fixed price acquisition agreements with Sunrise. Under the terms of these fixed price acquisition agreements,
funds were advanced prior to the Sunrise REIT acquisition to Sunrise in connection with the development by
Sunrise of seniors housing communities in Staten Island, New York and Vaughan, Ontario. The fixed price
acquisition agreements granied to us an option to purchase a majority interest in cach of these properties,
independently, for a fixed price and on fixed terms, subject ¢o the satisfaction of certain conditions. The funds
advanced for a property under the fixed price acquisition agrecments are advances on the fixed purchase price for
the property and are applied 1o our purchase price for our interest at the closing of the acquisition.

We funded the Sunrise REIT acquisition through $530.0 million of borrowings under a senior interim loan,
an equity-backed facility providing for the issuance of 700,000 shares of our Series A Senior Preferred Stock,
with a liquidation preference of $1,000 per share, and the assumption of $861.1 million of existing mortgage
debt. In May 2007, we completed the sale of 26,910,000 shares of our common stock in an underwritien public
offering pursuant to our shelf registration statement. We received $1.05 billion in net proceeds from the sale,
which we used along with the proceeds of the disposition of certain of our Kindred assets (see “Note 6—
Dispositions™) and borrowings under our unsecured revolving credit facility to redeem all of our Series A Senior
Preferred Stock and 1o repay our indebiedness under the senior interim loan.
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For the year ended December 31, 2007, we expensed $5.2 million of preferred stock dividends and issuance
costs related to the Series A Senior Preferred Stock and $5.0 million of fees and interest associated with the
senior interim loan (the latter of which is included in interest expense in our Consolidated Statements of Income
for the year ended December 31, 2007).

On June 19, 2007, we acquired an 80% interest in the seniors housing community Jocated in Staten Island,
New York in accordance with the terms of the applicable fixed price acquisition agreement for approximately
$25.5 million, inclusive of our share of assumed debt of $15.3 million.

On December 11, 2007, we acquired an 80% interest in the seniors housing community located in Vaughan,
Ontario in accordance with the terms of the applicable fixed price acquisition agreemen: for approximately Cdn
$43.6 million, inclusive of our share of assumed construction debt of Cdn $23.3 million. The joint venture has
the ability to borrow an additional Cdn $11.7 million under the existing construction loan for capital
improvements.

We incurred $3.0 million of merger-related expenses (that were not capitalized) in connection with the
Sunrise REIT acquisition during the year ended December 31, 2007. Merger-related expenses include
incrementat costs directly related to the acquisition and expenses relating to our lawsuit against HCP, Inc
("*HCP™).

Other 2007 Acquisitions

During 2007, we acquired two seniors housing communities for an aggregate purchase price of
$18.5 million, inclusive of assumed debt of $9.0 million at the time of the acquisition, The purchase ptice was
allocated between land and buildings and improvements of $0.7 million and $17.8 million, respectively, based
upon their estimated fair values. These properties are being leased o affiliates of Senior Care, Inc. (“Senior
Care”).

Also throughout 2007, we acquired eight MOBs, in seven separate transactions, for an aggregate purchase
price of $150.5 million, inclusive of assumed debt of $21.5 million at the lime of the acquisitions. The purchase
price was allocated between land and buildings and improvements of $7.6 million and $142.9 million,
respectively, based upon their estimated fair values. Seven of these MOBs are owned through joint ventures with
three different pariners that provide management and leasing services for the properties. The joint venture
partners have a minority interest ranging from less than 1% to less than 9%.

Senior Care

In November 2006, we completed the acquisition of 64 seniors housing and healthcare-related properties for
an aggregate consideration of $602.4 million, consisting of approximately $422.6 million in cash, the assumption
of $114.8 million of mortgage debt that was repaid in January 2007 and 1,708,279 shares of our common stock.
The portfolio consists of 40 assisted living communities, four multi-level retirement communities, 18 skilled
nursing facilities and two rehabilitation hospitals in 15 states.

The propenties are being leased to affiliates of Senior Care, pursuant to the terms of a triple-net master lease
having an initial term of 15 years and two five-year extensions. Approximately 6.1% and 1.6% of our total
revenues (including amounts in discontinued operations) for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively, were derived from our lease agreements with Senior Care.
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Other 2006 Acquisitions

Also during 2006, we acquired eight seniors housing communities, in five separate transactions, for an
aggregate purchase price of $74.3 million, including assumed debt of $10.8 million at the time of the
acquisitions. The seniors housing communities are leased to various operators under triple-nct leases, each
having initial terms ranging from ten to 15 years and initially providing aggregate, annuat cash base rent of
approximately $6.2 million, subject to escalation as provided in the leases.

Provident

On June 7, 2005, we completed the acquisition of Provident in a transaction valued at approximately $1.2
biflion. Provident was formed as a Maryland real estate investment trust in March 2004 and owned seniors
housing propertics located in the United States. Pursuant to the Provident acquisition, we acquired 68
independent and assisted living communities in 19 states comprised of approximately 6,819 residential living
units, all of which are leased to affiliates of Brookdale and Alterra pursuant to triple-net leases with renewal
options. Approximately 13.6%, 24.7% and 17.8% of our total revenues (including amounts in discontinued
operations) for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, were derived from our lease
agreements related to the Provident properties.

We funded the cash portion of the purchase price for the Provident acquisition, which was approximately
$231.0 million, and repaid all outstanding borrowings under Provident’s credit facility at closing from a
combination of net proceeds from the sale of $350.0 million aggregate principal amount of senior notes issued by
Ventas Realty and a wholly owned subsidiary, Ventas Capital Corporation (collectively, the “Issuers™), and
borrowings under our previous secured revolving credit facility. Additionally, we issued approximately
15.0 million shares of our common stock and share equivalents to Provident equity holders as pan of the
purchase price for the Provident acquisition. We also assumed approximately $459.4 million of property-level
mortgage debt.

Other 2005 Acquisitions

Also during 2005, we acquired 23 seniors housing communities, an adjacent parcel of land and one hospital
for an aggregate purchase price of $278.2 million, including assumed debt of $74.4 million at the time of the
acquisitions. The seniors housing communities and the hospital are leased to various operators under triple-net
leases, each having initial terms ranging from ten to 15 years and initially providing aggregate, annual cash base
rent of approximately $23.9 million, subject to escalation as provided in the leases.

In addition, we acquired three MOBs in 2005 for an aggregate purchase price of $13.0 million, including
assumed debt of $7.3 million at the time of the acquisitions. These buildings are leased to various tenants under
leases having various remaining terms and initially providing aggregate, annual cash base rent of approximately
$1.7 million, subject to escalation as provided in the leases. We have engaged third parties to manage the
operations of the MOBs.
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Estimated Fair Value

The transactions completed during the year ended December 31, 2007 were accounted for under the
purchase method. The following table summarizes the preliminary estimated fair values of the assets acquired
and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition. Such estimates are subject to refinement as additional valuation

information is received.

Sunrise-Managed Sunrise
n?\cquislllom Mlnoriut; Interest Other Total
{In thousands)
Land, met ... . ittt 3 174,074 $ 35,164 $ 8232 § 217470
Buildings and improvements,net ................ 2,062,134 151,362 161,366 2,374,862
L0 T T O U 149,099 7,758 1,008 157,865
Total assets acquired ..................... 2,385,307 194,284 170,606 2,750,197
Notes payable and other debt,met _.............. 782,060 157,761 30,480 970,301
Deferred tax liabilities ........................ 306,225 — — 306,225
Other liabiliies . . ...............00iiivirnnnn. 41,306 5,908 1,182 48,396
Total liabilitiesassumed ................... 1,129,591 163,669 31,662 1,324,922
Netassetsacquired ............covvvninnnnnn. 1,255,716 30,615 138,944 1,425,275
Minority interest .. .......covninii i, —_ 30.615 2,115 32,730
Escrow funds retumned from an Internal Revenue
Code Section 1031 exchange ................. — — 14,100 14,100
Cashacquired ..............ccvrivrennennn 28,494 1,597 — 30,091
Totalcashused ................ccivinenn .. $1,227,222 $ (1,597  $122,729 $1,348,354
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Unaudited Pro Forma

The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share as if we had consummated
our 2007, 2006 and 2005 acquisitions and issuances of common stock as of the beginning of each of the years
ended December 31, 2007 and 2006;

For the Year Ended
December 31,
2007 2006
(In thousands, except
per share amounts)
REVEIIES . .ottt teeennterane s imn e as ittt e atorteaanaeaannntans $929,632 $902,425
Income from continuing operations applicable to common shares . ............... ... 137,409 108,430
Discontinued operations ...... .. ... ... i i e 135,623 5,466
Net income applicable tocommon shares . ....... ... iiivr et ean i 273032 113,89
Eamings per common share:
Basic:
Income from continuing operations applicable to common shares ............ $ 103 § 082
Discontinued OPErations ... ... ..vveterrvanineererrrrarereeinanine 1.02 0.04
Net income applicable tocommon shares . ...........cvvviivevraierres $ 205 3 086
Diluted:
Income from continuing operations applicable to common shares . ........... $ 102 $ 081
Discontinted OPErALONS o\ vt vvnererineivvins o aarsateerassssnsnnss 1.02 0.04
Net income applicable to commonshares . . ..........coeviieiiiireeenn. $ 204 § 085
Weighted average shares used in computing earnings per common share:
2T P 133,140 132,824
9,1 111« S 133,555 133,349

Note 6—Dispositions

On June 30, 2007, we completed the sale of 22 properties to Kindred for $171.5 million in net cash
proceeds. Of these net proceeds, $14.1 million was held in escrow for use in a Code Section 1031 exchange, of
which all was utilized during the year ended December 31, 2007 for other acquisitions. See “Note 5—
Acquisitions.” In addition, Kindred paid us a lease termination fee of $3.5 million. We recognized a net gain on
the sale of assets of $129.5 million during the year ended December 31, 2007. We did not make any dispositions
during the year ended December 31, 2006. In 2005, we completed the sale of one seniors housing community for
approximatcly $9.9 million in net cash proceeds and recognized a net gain on the sale of assets of approximately
$5.1 million. In addition, the tenant paid us a lease termination fee of approximately $0.2 million. These net
proceeds were held in escrow for use in a Code Section 1031 exchange a1 Deccmber 31, 2005 and released back
to us during 2006, as no like-kind exchange was consummated.
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Set forth below is a summary of the results of operations of sold facilities during the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005:

2007 2006 2005
(Lo thousands)

Revenues:
Rental inCome . ....o.onint it iiieiiiinnanans $ 5743  $12,497 $14,64)
Interest and otherincome ... ..........oiiiiiinnransnns 3,500 — 165
9,243 12,497 14,806

Expenses:
Interest ... 2,115 4,550 5117
Depreciation and amortization ..........covvuivenrenanns 983 2,481 2,682
3,098 7.031 8,459
Income before gain on sale of real estate assets ... ............. 6,145 5,466 6,347
Gainonsale of real estate assets ........ccovvviunuiennean 129,478 -— 5,114
Discontinued operations . ..........coviiiaannna.t. $135623 $ 5466 $11,461

Note 7—Intangibles

At December 31, 2007, intangible lease assets, comprised of above market resident leases, in-place resident
leases and other intangibles, were $7.3 million, $81.2 million and $2.6 million, respectively. At December 31,
2007, the accumulated amortization of the intangible assets was $58.4 million. The weighted average
ameortization period of intangible assets is approximately one year.

At December 31, 2007, intangible lease liabilities, comprised of below market resident leases, were $9.8
million. At December 31, 2007, the accumulated amortization of the intangible liabilitics was $6.6 million. The
weighted average amortization period of intangible liabilities is approximately one year.

Note 8—Loans Receivable

As of December 31, 2007, we held three first mortgage loans in an aggregate amount of $20.1 million. Our
first mortgage loans have a 1% exit fee that was received at the date of issuance and is being deferred and
amortized over the term of the loan. The aggregate unamortized balance of these deferred fees as of
December 31, 2007 was $0.1 miltion.

During 2005, we extended three first mortgage loans in the aggregate principal amount of $25.9 million.
The loans accrue interest at a rate of 9% per annum and provide for monthly amortization of principal with
balloon payment maturity dates in 2010. Each loan is guaranteed by an affiliate of the borrower and its two
principals. Only two of these loans were outstanding as of December 31, 2007,

Also during 2005, we invested in a portfolio of eight distressed morigage loans with eight separate
borrowess for an aggregate purchase price of $21.4 million. As of December 31, 2005, our investment in the
portfolio was satisfied by the buy-out of the applicable distressed mortgage loans in an amount equal to our
investment in these loans. In conjunction with these buy-outs, we extended three first mortgage loans in an
aggregate principal amount of $10.5 million. These first mortgage loans also accrue interest at a rate of 9% per
annum and provide for monthly amortization of principal with balloon payment maturity dates in 2010. These
three first mortgage loans are also guaranteed by a third party and its two principals. Only one of these loans was
outstanding as of December 31, 2007.
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Note 9—Borrowing Arrangements

The following is a summary of our long-term debt and certain interest rate and maturity information as of
December 31, 2007 and 2006:

2007 2006
{In thousands)

Unsecured revolving credit facility ...................ooiiaan, $ 149300 § 57,000
Canadiancreditfacility . .......... .. ... i i it 89,670 —
3%% Convertible Senior Notesdue 2011 .................coient. 230,000 230,000
6%% Senjor Notesdue 2017 . ... .. . i 225,000 225,000
6Va% Senior Notes due 2016 .. ... .. i ittt et 200,000 200,000
6¥4% Scnior Notesdue 2010 .. ..o v v iiei e 175,000 175,000
Tvad% Senior Notesdue 2015 .. ... .o i 170,000 175,000
6¥% SeniorNotesdue 2014 . . ... ... it i 175,000 175,000
B¥4% Senior Notes due 2009 .. ... ..o in i itiine i irrnens 174,217 174,217
0% Senior Notes due 2012 ... it vrirrerr o riraar e 191,82} 191,821
Mortgage loans and other ...........cvvrviveeeneiaiiieninines 1,567,668 733,951

) (03 7: Y [ 3,347,676 2,336,989
Unamortized fair value adjustment . .............0ivienniiaian 19,669 —
Unamortized commission fees and discounts .........cooviniven s (6,846) {7.936)

Senior notes payable and otherdebt ..................... Ll $3,360,499 52,329,053

Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility

In April 2006, we entered into a $500.0 million unsecured revolving credit facility which replaced our
previous $300.0 million secured revolving credit facility. Our unsecured revolving credit facility matures in
2009, with an option 10 extend for one year subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions, and originally
contained a $100.0 million “accordion feature” that permitted us to increase our total borrowing capacity to
$600.0 million. On March 30, 2007, we accessed the accordion feature and increased the borrowing capacity
from $500.0 million to $600.0 million. On July 27, 2007, we amended our unsecured revolving credit facility to
include a $150.0 million accordion feature that permits us to expand our borrowing capacity to a total of $750.0
million upon satisfaction of certain conditions. Pricing under the unsecured revolving credit facility remained the
same and we did not record any malerial expenses or charges in connection with the amendment.

Generally, borrowings outstanding under the unsecured revolving credit facility bear interest at a fluctuating
LIBOR-based rate per annum plus an applicable percentage based on our consolidated leverage. As of
December 31, 2007, the applicable percentage was 0.75%. Our previous secured revolving credit facility also
bore interest at a fluctuating LIBOR-based ratc per annum plus an applicable percentage. The applicable
percentage for the previous secured revolving credit facility was 1.45% from January 1, 2006 until its
replacement in April 2006.

We incurred losses on extinguishment of debt in the amount of $1.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006 and $1.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, representing the write-off of
unamortized deferred financing costs related to the previous secured revolving credit facility and our commercial
mortgage backed securities (“CMBS™) loan, respectively.
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Canadian Credit Facility

On August 24, 2007, we entered into a Cdn $90.0 million unsecured revolving credit facility (the “Canadian
credit facility™). Generally, borrowings outstanding under the Canadian credit facility bear interest at a
fluctuating “Bankers’ Acceptance” rate per annum plus an applicable percentage based on our consolidated
leverage. As of December 31, 2007, the applicable percentage was 0.75%.

On January 24, 2008, we amended the Canadian credit facility to expand our borrowing capacity to a total of
Cdn $105.0 million. We also extended the original maturity date from February 24, 2008 10 May 24, 2008. We
may further extend the maiurity date for an additional three months subject 1o the satsfaction of certain
conditions.

Convertible Senior Notes

In December 2006, we completed the offering of $230.0 million aggregate principal amount of our 378 %
Coenvertible Senior Notes due 2011 (the “Convertible Notes™). The Convertible Notes are convertible at the
option of the holder (i) prior to September 15, 2011, upon the occurrence of specified events and (ji) on or after
September 1], 2011, at any time prior to the close of business on the second business day prior to the stated
maturity, in each case into cash up to the principal amount of the Convertible Notes and cash or shares of our
common stock, at our election, in respect of any conversion value in excess of the principal amount at an initial
conversion rate of 22,1867 shares per $1,000 principal amount of notes (which equates to an initial conversion
price of approximately $45.07 per share). The conversion rate is subject to adjustment in certain circumstances,
including the payment of a quarterly dividend in excess of $0.395 per share. As of December 31, 2007, the
adjusted conversion rate was 22,3615 shares per $1,000 principal amount of notes (which equates to a conversion
price of approximately $44.72 per share). To the extent the market price of our common stock exceeds the
conversion price, our earnings per share will be diluted. There was no dilutive impact per share for the year
ended December 31, 2007,

The Convertible Notes are unconditionally guaranteed, jointly and severally, on a senjor unsecured basis by
Veatas Realty and by certain of our other direct and indirect subsidiarics as described in the indenture. The
Convertible Notes are part of our and the guarantors® general unsecured obligations, ranking equal in right of
payment with all of our and the guarantors’ existing and future senior obligations and ranking senior to all of our
and the guarantors’ existing and future subordinated indebtedness. However, the Convertible Notes are
effectively subordinated to our and the guarantors’ secured indebtedness, if any, 1o the extent of the value of the
assets securing that indebledness. The Convertible Notes are also structurally subordinated to preferred equity
and indebtedness, whether secured or unsecured, of our subsidiaries that do not guarantee the Convertible Notes.

We may not redeem the Convertible Notes prior to maturity except to the extent necessary to preserve our
status as a REIT.

If we experience certain kinds of changes of control, holders may require us to repurchase all or a portion of
their Convertible Notes for cash at a purchase price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Convertible
Notes to be repurchased, plus any accrued and unpaid interest to the date of purchase,

Senior Notes

In Septcmber 2006, we completed the offering of $225.0 million aggregate principal amount of 6¥4%
Senior Notes due 2017 (the “2017 Senior Notes”) of Ventas Realty and Ventas Capital Corporation (collectively,
the “Issuers™) at a ¥8% discount to par value. '

In December 2005, we completed the offerings of $200.0 million aggregate principal amount of 6¥2%
Senior Notes due 2016 (the “2016 Senior Notes"”) of the Issuers at a ¥2% discount to par value,

89




VENTAS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

In June 2005, we completed the offering of $175.0 million aggregate principal amount of 6¥2% Senior
Notes due 2010 (the “2010 Senior Notes™) of the Issuers, and $175.0 million aggregate principal amount of
7Va% Scnior Notes due 2015 (the “2015 Senior Notes”) of the Issuers. On August 3, 2007, we purchased $5.0
million principal amount of 2015 Senior Notes in an open market transaction. As a result of the purchase, we
reported a gain on extinguishment of debt of $0.1 million during the year ended December 31, 2007.

In June 2005, we also completed the offering of $50.0 million aggregate principal amount of 6%%% Senior
Notes due 2014 (the “2014 Senior Notes”) of the Issuers, which was in addition to the $125.0 million aggregate
principal amount of 2014 Senior Notes originally issued in October 2004. The additional $50.0 million aggregate
principal amount of the 2014 Senior Notes was issued at a 1% discount to par value. The additional $50.0 million
aggregate principal amount and the original $125.0 million aggregate principal amount of the 2014 Senior Notes
are governed by the same indenture.

In April 2002, we completed the offering of $175.0 million aggregate principal amount of 8%% Senior
Notes due 2009 (the “2009 Senior Notes”) of the Issuers, and $225.0 million aggregate principal amount of
9% Senior Notes due 2012 (the “2012 Senior Notes™) of the Issuers. In December 2002, we purchased $0.8
million principal amount of 2009 Senior Notes and $33.2 million principal amount of 2012 Senior Notes in open
market transactions.

The 2017 Senior Notes, 2016 Senior Notes, 2010 Senior Notes, 2015 Senior Notes, 2014 Senior Notes, 2009
Senior Notes, and 2012 Senior Notes (collectively, the “Senior Notes”) are unconditionally guaranteed, jointly
and severally, on a senior unsecured basis by us and by certain of our current and future subsidiaries as described
in their respective indentures (collectively, the “Guarantors™). The Senior Notes are part of our and the
Guarantors’ general unsecured obligations, ranking equal in right of payment with all of our and the Guarantors’
existing and future senior obligations and ranking senior to all of our and the Guarantors’ existing and future
subordinated indebtedness. However, the Senior Notes are effectively subordinated to our and the Guarantors'
secured indebtedness, if any, to the extent of the value of the assets securing that indebtedness. The Senior Notes
are also structurally subordinated to the preferred equity and indebtedness, whether secured or unsecured, of our
subsidiaries that do not guarantee the Senior Notes.

The Issucrs may redeem the 2017 Senior Notes, in whole at any time or in part from time to time, (i) prior to
April 1, 2012 at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof, plus a make-whole premium
as described in the applicable indenture and (ii} on or after April 1, 2012 at varying redemption prices set forth in
the applicable indenture, plus, in each case, accrued and unpaid interest thercon to the redemption date. In
addition, at any time prior to April 1, 2010, the Issuers may redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount
of the 2017 Senior Notes with the net cash proceeds from certain equity offerings at a redemption price equal to
106.750% of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon to the redemption date.

The Issuers may redeem the 2016 Senior Notes, in whole at any time or in pant from time to time, (i) prior to
June 1, 2011 at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof, plus a make-whole premium as
described in the applicable indenture and (ii) on or after June 1, 2011 at varying redemption prices set forth in the
applicable indenture, plus, in each case, accrued and unpaid interest thereon to the redemption date. In addition,
at any time prior to June 1, 2009, the Issuers may redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of the
2016 Senior Notes with the net cash proceeds from certain equity offerings at a redemption price equal to
106.500% of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon to the redemption date.

The Issuers may redeem the 2010 Senior Notes and the 2015 Senior Notes, in whole at any time or in part
from time 1o time, prior to June 1, 2010 at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof, plus
accrued and unpaid interest thereon to the redemption date and a make-whole premium as described in the
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applicable indenture. The Issuers may also redeem the 2015 Senior Notes, in whole at any time or in part from
time to time, on or after June 1, 2010 at varying redemption prices set forth in the applicable indenture, plus
accrued and unpaid interest thereon to the redemption date. In addition, at any time prior to June 1, 2008, the
Issuers may redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of either or both of the 2010 Senior Notes and
2015 Senior Notes with the net cash proceeds from certain equity offerings at redemption prices equal to
106.750% and 107.1259%, respectively, of the principal amount thereof, plus, in each case, accrued and unpaid
interest thereon to the redemption date.

The Issuers may redeem the 2014 Senior Notes, in whole at any time or in part from time 1o time, (i) prior to
October 15, 2009 at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof, plus a make-whole
premium as described in the applicable indenture and (ii) on or after October 15, 2009 at varying redemption
prices set forth in the applicable indenture, plus, in each case, accrued and unpaid interest thercon to the
redemption date.

The Issuers may redeem the 2009 Senior Notes and the 2012 Senior Notes, in whole at any time or in part
from time to time, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid
interest thereon to the redemption date and a make-whole premium as described in the applicable indenture.

If we experience certain kinds of changes of control, the Issuers must make an offer 1o repurchase the Senior
Notes, in whole or in part, at a purchase price in cash equal to 101% of the principal amount of the Senior Notes,
plus any accriued and unpaid interest to the date of purchase; provided, however, that in the event Moody's and
S&P have confirmed their ratings at Ba3 or higher and BB- or higher on the Senior Notes and certain other
conditions are met, this repurchase obligation will not apply.

Morigages

At December 31, 2007, we had outstanding 121 mortgage loans totaling $1.57 billion that are collateralized
by the underlying assets of the properties. Cutstanding principal batances on these loans ranged from $0.4
million to $59.4 million as of December 31, 2007. The loans generally bear interest at fixed rates ranging from
5.4% to 8.5% per annum, except for 15 loans with outstanding principal balances ranging from $0.4 million to
$32.0 million, which bear interest at the lender’s variable rates ranging from 3.4% to 7.3% per annum as of
December 3!, 2007. At December 31, 2007, the weighted average annual rate on fixed rate debt was 6.5% and
the weighted average annual rate on the variable rate debt was 6.1%. The loans had a weighted average maturity
of 7.0 years as of December 31, 2007, Sunrise’s portion of total debt was $157.1 million as of December 31,
2007.

Scheduled Maturities of Borrowing Arrangemenis and Other Provisivns
As of December 31, 2007, our indebtedness had the following maturities (in thousands):

7.1 - S $ 193,101
2000 . e e e e e e e 605,762
4 1 282,138
4] I 303,191
.2 1 2R 527,221
BN T3 (= = 1,436,263
Total MATUTIES L\ 0ot v ve e e s eee s ine i rarenaanansnasesanns 3,347,676
Unamortized fair value adjustment .. ............ccievirriiniiannn. 19,669
Unamortized commission fees and discounts . .........ccoivvinneonn. (6,846)
Senior notes payable and otherdebt ...................... .. .. $3.360,499
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Certain provisions of our long-term debt contain covenants that limit our ability and the ability of certain of
our subsidiaries to, among other things: (i) incur debt; (ii) make certain dividends, distributions and investments;
(iii) enter into certain transactions; (iv) merge, consolidate or transfer certain assets; and {v) sell assets. We and
certain of our subsidiaries ar¢ also required to maintain total unencumbered assets of at least 150% of this
group’s unsecured debt.

Derivatives and Hedging

In the normal course of business, we are exposed to the effect of interest rate movements on future cash
flows under our variable rate debt agreements and the effect of foreign currency exchange rale movements. We
limit these risks by following established risk management policies and procedures, including the use of
derivative instruments.

For interest rate exposures, derivatives are used primarily to fix the rate on debt based on floating-rate
indices and to manage the cost of borrowing obligations. We currently have an interest rate swap (0 manage
interest rate risk (the “Swap”). We prohibit the use of derivative instruments for trading or speculative purposes.
Further, we have a policy of only entering into contracts with major financial institutions based upon their credit
ratings and other factors. When viewed in conjunction with the underlying and offsetting exposure that the
derivative is designed to hedge, we do not anticipate any material adverse effect on our net income or financial
position in the future from the use of derivativces.

In 2001, we cntered into the Swap in the original notional amount of $450.0 million to hedge floating-rate
debt for the period between July 1, 2003 and June 30, 2008, under which we pay a fixed rate of 5.385% and
receive LIBOR from the counterparty to the agreement. The Swap is treated as a cash flow hedge. In 2003 and
2005, due to our lower expected future variable rate debt balances, we reduced the notional amount of the Swap
to $330.0 million and then to $100,0 million for its remaining lerm in exchange for payments from us of
approximately $8.6 million and $2.3 million, respectively. The $2.3 million partial swap breakage cost and $3.3
million of the deferred gain were recognized as a net gain of $1.0 million in our Consolidated Statemnent of
Income for the year ended December 31, 2005.

Amontization of the deferred gain from the termination of a swap arrangement was included in accumulated
other comprehensive income in the amount of $0.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. For the year
ended December 31, 2007, this amount was fully amortized.

Unrealized gains and losses on the Swap are recorded as other comprehensive income. The amounts
reclassified into interest expense due to the Swap for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 were
$0.5 million, $0.3 million and $6.9 million, respectively. No amount was rcflected as interest expense due to
ineffectiveness of the Swap for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, as our variable rate debt
balances approximated the $100.0 million notional amount of the Swap.

There are no collateral requirements under the Swap. Although we are exposed to credit loss in the event of
the non-performance by the counterparty to the Swap, we do not anticipate any such non-performance. The
notional amount of the Swap at December 31, 2007 was $100.0 million, which is scheduled to expire on June 30,
2008.

At December 31, 2007, the Swap was reported at its fair value of $0.5 million and is included in other
accrued liabilides in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The offsetting entry is reported as a deferred loss in
accumulated other comprehensive loss,
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In January 2007, we entered into two Canadian call options in conjunclion with our agreement to acquire the
assets of Sunrise REIT. See “Note 5—Acquisitions.” We paid an aggregate purchase price of $8.5 million for
these contracts, which had an aggregate notional call amount of Cdn $750.0 million at a Cdn $1.18 strike price.
These contracts were settled on April 26, 2007, the acquisition date, and we received cash of $33.2 million upon
settlement, For the year ended December 31, 2007, we recognized gains related to call option contracts of $24.3
million, which is included as a foreign currency gain on our Consolidated Statement of Income for the year ended
December 31, 2007,

Unamortized Fair Value Adjustment

The fair value adjustment related to the long-term debt we assumed in connection with the Sunrise REIT
acquisition was $22.2 million and is recognized as effective yield adjustments over the remaining term of the
instrumenis. The estimated aggregate amortization of the fair value adjustment related to leng-term debt for each
of the five succeeding years follows: 2008—3$4.3 million; 2009—$3.3 million; 2010~-$2.9 million; 2011—52.9
mllion; and 20§2—$2 .4 million.

Note 10—Fair Values of Financial Instruments

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the carrying amounts and fair vatues of our financial instruments were
as follows:

2007 2006
ﬁamr:ﬁunn‘g Falr Value Amount Falr Value
(In thousands)

Cash and cash equivalents . ............ $ 28334 § 28334 § 1246 $ 1,246
Loans receivable .................... 19,998 22,148 35,647 40,218
Notes receivable—selated parties . ...... 2,092 2,125 2,466 2,470
Interest rate swap agreement . .......... (503) (503) (429) (429)
Senior notes payable and other debt,

BTOSS .« vvuerivnunnoerrnianenaanss (3,347,676) (3471,199) (2,336,989) (2,470,749)

Fair value estimates are subjective in nature and depend on a number of important assumptions, including
estimates of future cash flows, risks, discount rates and relevant comparable market information associated with
each financial instrument. The use of different market assumptions and estimation methodologies may have a
material effect on the reported estimated fair value amounts. Accordingly, the estimates presented above are not
necessarily indicative of the amounts we would realize in a current market exchange.

Note 11—Stock-Based Compensation
Compensation Plans

We have six plans under which options to purchase common stock and/or shares or units of restricted stock
have been, or may be, granted to officers, employees and non-employee directors, one plan under which

- executive officers may receive common stock in lieu of compensation and two plans under which certain

directors have received or may receive common stock in lieu of director fees (the following are collectively
referred to as the “Plans™): (1) the 1987 Incentive Compensation Program (Employee Pian); (2) the 2000
Incentive Compensation Plan (Employee Plan); (3) the 2004 Stock Plan for Directors; (4) the TheraTx,
Incorporated 1996 Stock Option/Stock Issuance Plan; (5) the Common Stock Purchase Plan for Directors (the
“Directors Stock Purchase Plan™); (6) the Executive Deferred Stock Compensation Plan; (7) the Nonemployee
Director Deferred Stock Compensation Plan; (8) the 2006 Incentive Plan; and (9) the 2006 Stock Plan for
Directors.
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During the year ended December 31, 2007, option and restricted stock grants and stock issuances could only
be made under the Executive Deferred Stock Compensation Plan, the Directors Stock Purchase Plan, the
Nonemployee Director Deferred Stock Compensation Plan, the 2006 Incentive Plan and the 2006 Stock Plan for
Directors. The 2000 Incentive Compensaticn Plan (Employee Plan) and the 2004 Stock Plan for Directors
expired on December 31, 2006, and no additional grants were permitted under those plans after that date.
Additional grants are also not permitted under the 1987 Incentive Compensation Program (Employee Plan) or the
TheraTx, Incorporated 1996 Stock Option/Stock Issuance Plan. In addition, the Directors Stock Purchase Pian
terminated in accordance with its terms during 2007,

The number of shares reserved and the number of shares available for future grants or issuance under these
plans as of December 31, 2007 are as follows:

« Executive Deferred Stock Compensation Plan—S500,000 shares are reserved for issuance to our
executive officers in licu of the payment of all or a portion of their salary, at their option, and, as of
December 31, 2007, 500,000 shares were available for future issuance.

* Nonemployee Director Deferred Stock Compensation Plan—500,000 shares are reserved for issuance to
nonemployee directors in lieu of the payment of all or a portion of their retainer and meeting fees, at
their option, and, as of December 31, 2007, 473,730 shares were available for future issuance.

» 2006 Incentive Plan—5,000,000 shares are reserved for grants or issuance to employees and 4,663,364
were available for future grants or issuance as of December 31, 2007. This plan replaced the 2000
Incentive Compensation Plan (Employee Plan).

» 2006 Stock Plan for Directors—400,000 shares are reserved for grants or issuance to non-employee
directors and 364,370 were available for future grants or issuance as of December 31, 2007. This plan
replaced the 2004 Stock Plan for Directors.

Under the Plans (other than the Executive Deferred Stock Compensation Plan, the Directors Stock Purchase
Plan and the Nonemployee Director Deferred Stock Compensation Plan), options are exercisable at the market
price on the date of grant, expire ten years from the date of grant, and vest over varying periods ranging from one
to four years. Vesting of certain options may accelerate upon a change of control of Ventas, as defined in the
applicable Plan, and other events.

We have also granted options and restricted stock to certain officers, employees and non-employee directors
outside of the Plans. These options and shares of restricted stock vest over varying periods, and the options are
exercisable at the market price on the date of grant and expire ten years from the date of grant. As of
December 31, 2007, options for 38,000 shares had been granted outside of the Plans to certain employees and
non-employee directors and remained outstanding.

Prior to January 1, 2006, we accounted for the Plans under the recognition and measurement provisions of
APB Opinion No. 25, as permitted by SFAS No. 123. Consequently, no stock-based compensation cost relating
o stock options was recognized in our Consolidated Statement of Income for any period prior to 2006, as all
options granted under the Plans had an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock
on the date of grant. Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted the fair value provisions for share-based awards
pursuant to SFAS No. 123(R), using the modified-prospective transition method. Under thal transition method,
compensation cost recognized in 2006 includes: (i) compensation cost for all share-based awards granted prior to,
but not yet vested as of Januvary 1, 2006, based on the attribution method and grant date fair value estimated in
accordance with the original provisions of SFAS No. 123, and (ii) compensation cost for al} share-based awards
granted subsequent to January 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value as estimated in accordance with the
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provisions of SFAS No. 123(R), all recognized on a straight-line basis as the requisite service periods are
rendered. Results for prior periods have not been restated. Compensation costs related to stock options for the
years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 were $1.9 million and $0.9 million, respectively.

The adoption of SFAS No, 123(R) on January 1, 2006 caused our nct income for the year ended
December 31, 2006 to be approximately $931,000 lower than if we had continued to account for stock-based
compensation under APB Opinion No. 25. The adoption caused basic and diluted eamings per share to be $0.01
lower for the year ended December 31, 2006.

The following table illustrates the effect on net income and eamnings per share for the year ended
December 31, 2005, as if we had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123(R) to all stock-
based compensation granted under equity award plans for awards granted prior to January 1, 2006 (in thousands,
except per share amounts):

For the Year
Ended
December 31,
2005
Net income applicable to common shares, asreported ... ..o.ooviiiiiiiiiiiiens $130,583
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported net income . .. 1,97
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair value
based method for all awards, net of related tax effects .......................0, (2,872)
Pro forma net income applicable to common shares ........ ... ... o i $129,682
Eamings per common share:
Basic—as Teported .. ... ...uuiiit i i i e $ 137
Basic—profOMMa .. ... .ovvvti ettt i et $ L36
Diluted—asteported . ... .....ivui it i $ 136
Diluted—pro forma ....... ...t iriniie i $ 136
Stock Options

In determining the estimated fair value of our stock options as of the date of grant, we used the Black-
Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions:

2007 2006 20058
Risk-free interest rale .. . .......ccuv v innransoriennanaansy 4.65% 4.57% 4.5%
Dividendyield .... ... it 4.83% 4.95% 6.61%
Volatility factors of the expected market price for our common
1 L1 +5 21.00% 15.00%  20.29%
Weighted average expected lifeof options .................... 6years 6.5years 10 years
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The following is a summary of stock option activity in 2007

Range of Weighted Average

Activity Shares Exercise Prices  Exervise Price
Outstanding as of December 31,2006 .............covvvnnt 1.156,051 % 3.31-%41.76 $23.88
Optionsgranted ......... ... it iiirveiineninns 216,179  42.32- 4326 43.13
Optionsexercised ........ .. viiuiniianriiainnaraeen (406,436) 11.20- 30.83 23.28
Optionscanceled ........cveiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnnne, (15,399) 18.62- 2544 23.21
Outstanding as of December 31,2007 .. ................ 950,395 3.31- 4326 28.52
Exercisable as of December 31,2007 .................. 703,616 $ 3.31-543.26 $25.25

A summary of stock options outstanding at December 31, 2007 follows:

Welghted

Qutstanding Average Exercisable
asof Remaining Welghted as of Weighted
December 31, Contractual Average December 31, Average

Range of Exercise Prices 2007 Life (years) Exercise Price 2007 Exercise Price

$331t08800 .............. ..l 34,757 26 $ 526 34,757 $ 526
$8.01wS$13.74 ......... ..o 111,056 24 12.13 111,056 12.13
513751081862 .. ... 28,374 25 i5.84 28,374 15.84
$186310825.17 ..o 119,290 5.8 2273 119,290 22.73
$25.018t0 83303 ..o 431,739 78 29.49 329,236 29.16
$33.1410841.76 .. ..o 11,500 89 40.54 3,841 40,54
$41.7710843.26 ... ... 213,679 90 43.14 77,062 43.08
950,395 6.8 $28.52 703,616 $25.25

A summary of the status of our nonvested stock options as of December 31, 2007 and changes during the
year then ended follows:

Welghted Average
Grant Date Fair

m Shares Vatue

Nonvested at beginningof year . ... v i 329,126 $2.92
L] 11 L= SR O 216,179 6.20

R 7] -7 [ PO (295,027) 3.71
Forfeited . ..o v et ie i (3,499} 4.82
Nonvestedatendofyear ...............ccoiiiiiiinivinnnn 246,779 $4.83

As of December 31, 2007, there was $440,000 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested
stock options granted under the Plans. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of
1.2 years. Proceeds received from options exercised under the Plans for the years ended December 31, 2007,
2006 and 2005 were $9.8 million, $6.6 million and $6.8 million, respectively.

Restricted Stock

The market value of shares of restricted stock and restricted stock units on the date of the award is
recognized as stock-bascd compensation expense over the service period, with charges to general and
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administrative expenses of approximately $5.6 million in 2007, $2.1 million in 2006 and $2.0 million in 2005.
Restricted stock generally vests over three- to five-year periods. The vesting of certain restricted shares may
accelerate upon a change of control of Ventas, as defined in the applicable Plan, and other events. As required
upon the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), the contra equity balance in uneamed compensation on restricted stock
of approximately $713,000 as of January 1, 2006 was reclassified (i.e. netted against capital in excess of par
value) in our Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2006.

A summary of the status of our nonvested restricted stock units and restricted stock as of December 31,
2007, and changes during the year ended December 31, 2007 follows:

Restricted Welghted Avernge Weighted Average
Stock Grant Date Falr Restricted  Grant Date Fair
Units Value Shares Value
Nonvested at December 31,2006 ................ 5,250 $32.02 263,001 $38.17
Granted . ... ...t i e 4,878 4232 155,685 43.33
Vested .. .o i i e (2,625) 32.02 (101,658) 35.53
Forfeited ..........co oo, — —_ (3,467) 39.03
Nonvested at December 31,2007 ..........ocvvns 7.503 $38.72 313,561 $41.58

As of December 31, 2007, there was $11,453,000 unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested
restricted stock under the Plans. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average of 2.0 years.

Employee and Director Stock Purchase Plan

During 2005, we implemented the Ventas Employee and Director Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”) under
which our employees and directors may purchase shares of our common stock at a discount. Pursuant to the
terms of the ESPP, on each purchase date, participants may purchase shares of common stock at a price not less
than 90% of the market price on that date, with respect to the employee tax-favored portion of the plan, and not
less than 95% of the market price on that date, with respect to the additional employee and director portion of the
plan, We have reserved 2,500,000 shares for issuance under the ESPP. As of December 31, 2007, 18,762 shares
had been purchased under the ESPP and 2,481,238 shares were available for future issuance.

Employee Benefit Plan

We maintain a 401(K) plan that allows for eligible employees to defer compensation subject to certain
limitations imposed by the Code. We make a contribution for each qualifying employee of up to 3% of his or her
salary, subject 1o limitations, regardless of the employee’s individual contribution. During 2007, 2006 and 2005,
our contributions were approximately $106,000, $85,600 and $78,000, respectively.

Note 12—Income Taxes

We have elected 10 be taxed as a REIT under the Code commencing with the year ended December 31,
1999. We also have subsidiaries which we have elected to be treated as taxable REIT subsidiaries (“TRS” or
“TRS entities™), which are subject to federal and state income taxes. The TRS enlities were created or acquired in
connection with the Sunrise REIT acquisition. All other entities are collectively referred to as “the REIT” within
this Note 2.
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We intend to continue to operate in such a manner as to enable us to qualify as a REIT. Our actual
qualification and taxation as a REIT depends upon our ability to meet, on a continuing basis, distribution levels,
stock ownership, and the various qualification tests. During the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005,
our tax treatment of distributions per common share was as follows;

2007 2006 2005

Tax treatment of distributions:

OTdinary iNCOME . . ..\ .ev v it ettt i e enraierreanrarreennennss $1.2872 $1.5450 $ 1.4050
Long-termcapital Gain . ... ...ttt e 0.9621 — —
Unrecaptured Section 1250 ain ........ccovviiiniiiiierianrinerseesas 0.0457 u— —
Distribution reported for 1099-DIV purposes . ........cvvuneevineneennas 22950  1.5450 14050
Add: Dividend declared in current year and taxable in following year ........ — 0.3950  0.3600
Less: Dividend declared in prior year and taxable in current year ........... (0.3950) (0.3600) (0.3250)
Distributions declared per common share outstanding .................... $1.9000 $1.5800 § 1.4400

No net provision for income taxes was recorded in our Consolidated Financial Statements for the years
ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 due to our belief that we qualified as a REIT and the distribution of more
than 100% of our 2006 and 2005 taxable income as a dividend. We believe we have met the annual distribution
requirement by payment of at least 90% of our estimated taxable income for 2007, 2006 and 2005. As a result of
the TRS entities created and acquired in 2007, the consolidated provision (benefit) for income taxes for the year
ended December 31, 2007 is as follows (in thousands):

2007
CUTTONL o vttt s e et aese s eneennncaesanvaaronsnanesiasnnnnnnnrenans $ 908
072302 1 £ - AR ARG O (28,950)
b 10 IR U AU $(28,042)

The deferred benefit for the year ended December 31, 2007 is reduced by income tax expense of $1.1
million related to the minority interest share of net income. Although a substantial portion of the deferred tax
benefit is due to the reversal of the deferred tax liability established as a result of the step-up in basis pursuant to
purchase accounting, the deferred tax benefit is dependent in part upon generating sufficient taxable income in
future periods.

Although the TRS entities did not pay any federal income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2007,
federal income tax payments for these TRS entities may increase in future years as we exhaust net operating loss
carryforwards and as additional seniors housing communities are developed and occupicd. Such increases could
be significant.

Income tax expense computed by applying the federal corporate tax rate for the year ended December 31,
2007 is reconciled to the income tax benefit as follows (in thousands):

Tax at statutory rate on eamings from continuing operations before minority interest and

DI COTTIE LAXES & v v v v v e s e s eeene e sttt tasaerareoneote i araaenreansorsosnes $42,121
State income taxcs, netof federal benefit .. ... ve vt ii il i e s (2,787)
Tax at statutory rate on earnings not subject to federal income taxes .................. © o (68,720)
Other diffEremCES + . o oo v v vt in et nera et stsaansnsasnsonennrnesanssnssnss 1,344
IDCOME AX DEME Tl , . oo vttt iene s ren i nasaacnssananaanscnresannensnnnn $(28,042)
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The REIT made no income tax payments for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, Tax payments
of $2.1 million related to built-in gains income tax were made for the year ended December 31, 2007,

As part of the acquisition of Sunrise REIT, we established a beginning net deferred tax liability of $306.3
million related 1o temporary differences (primarily property and related assets net of net operating loss

carryforwards).

Each TRS is a tax paying component for purposes of classifying deferred tax assets and liabilities. The tax
effects of temporary differences and camryforwards included in the net deferred tax liabilities at December 31,
2007 and 2006 are summarized as follows (in thousands}):

2007 2006

Property, primarily differences in depreciation and amortization, the tax

basis of land assets and the treatment of interests and certaincosts . ... .. $(315,835) $(30,394)
Operating loss and interest deduction carryforwards .................... 57,483 31,004
Expense accruals and other .. ... .ot iiiiinii i 87 —
Valunation alloWaNCE .. cuettee it e it e (39,325) (31,004)
Netdeferred tax liabilities .. ....ccovitiiinirienriorarsontnnnsans $(297,590) $(30,394)

Due to the uncertainty of the realization of certain tax assets, we established valuation allowances. The
majority of the valuation allowances related to the outside tax basis of parmershlp interests where there was
uncertainty regarding their realization.

The net difference between tax bases and the reported amount of REIT assets and liabilities for federal
income tax purposes was approximately $485.1 million and $446.4 million Jess than the book bases of those
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively.

We potentially remain subject to corporate level taxes for any asset dispositions during the ten-year period
immediately after the assets were owned by a C corporation (either prior to our REIT election, through stock
acquisition or merger) (“built-in gains tax"). The amount of income potentially subject to this special corporate
level tax is generally equal to the lesser of (i) the excess of the fair value of the asset over its adjusted tax basis as
of the date it became a REIT asset or (ii) the actual amount of gain. Some but not all future gains could be offset
by available net operating losses (“NOLs"). We had a $23.3 million and 2 $30.4 million deferred tax liability as
of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, to be utilized for any built-in gain tax related to the disposition of
assets owned prior to our REIT election in 1999. The ten-year period in which these assets are subject to built-in
gains tax will end on December 31, 2008, Accordingly, any remaining deferred tax liability related to the built-in
gains tax will be reversed at December 31, 2008.

Generally, we are subject to audit under the statute of limitations by the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS")
for the year ended December 31, 2004 and subsequent years and are subject to audit by state taxing authorities
for the year ended December 31, 2003 and subsequent years. [n Canada, the 2004 through 2007 tax years
generally remain subject to examination for certain entities we acquired as part of the Sunrise REIT acquisition.

During 2006, we were notified by the IRS that it had completed its audit of our 2001 federal tax retumn with

no additional tax being due. Accordingly, we reversed into income a previously recorded $1.8 million tax
liability related to uncertainties surrounding the outcome of this audit.

99




VENTAS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—{Continued)

We have a combined NOL carryforward of $66.5 million at December 31, 2007 related to the TRS entities
and an NOL carryforward reported by the REIT of $88.6 million. These amounts can be used 1o offset future
taxable income (and/or taxable income for prior years if audits of any prior year’s return determine that amounts
are owed), if any. The REIT will be entitled to utilize NOLs and tax credit carryforwards only to the extent that
REIT taxable income exceeds our deduction for dividends paid. The NOL carryforwards begin to expire in 2024
with respect to the TRS entities and in 2018 for the REIT.

As a result of the uncertainties relating to the ultimate utilization of existing REIT NOLs, no net deferred
1ax benefit has been ascribed to REIT NOL carryforwards as of December 31, 2007 and 2006. The IRS may
challenge our entitlement to these tax attributes during its review of the tax rctumns for the previous tax years. We
believe we are entitled to these tax attributes, but we cannot assure you as to the outcome of thesc matters.

On January 1, 2007, we adopted FIN 48. As a result of applying the provisions of FIN 48, we recognized no
change in the lability for unrecognized tax benefits, and no adjustment in accumulated eamings as of January 1,
2007. Our policy is to recognize interest and penalties related to unrecognized lax benefits in income tax
expense.

The following table summarizes the activity related to our unrecognized tax benefits (in thousands):

Balanceas of January 1, 2007 ... .. oot $ —
Additions to tax positions related to the current year ...........coocvveneanss 9,384
Balance as of December 31,2007 . ..o e $9,384

Included in the unrecognized tax benefits of $9.4 million at December 31, 2007 was $9.4 million of tax
benefits that, if recognized, would reduce our annual effective tax rate. We accrued no potential penalties and
interest related to the unrecognized tax benefits during 2007, and in total, as of December 31, 2007, we have
recorded no liability for potential penalties and interest. We expect our unrecognized tax benefits to increasc by
$2.7 million during 2008.

Note 13—Commitments and Contingencies
Assumption of Certain Operating Liabilities and Litigation

As a result of the structure of the Sunrise REIT acquisition, we may be subject to various liabilities of
Sunrise REIT arising out of the ownership or operation of the Sunrise REIT properties prior to the acquisition. If
the liabilities we have assumed are greater than expected, or if there are obligations relating to the Sunnise REIT
propertics of which we were not aware at the time of completion of the Sunrise REIT acquisition, such liabilities
and/or obligations could have a Material Adverse Effect on us.

In connection with our spin off of Kindred in 1998, Kindred agreed, among other things, to assume all
liabilities and to indemnify, defend and hold us harmless from and against certain losses, claims and litigation
arising out of the ownership or operation of the healthcare operations or any of the assels transferred to Kindred
in the spin off, including without limitation all claims arising out of the third-party leases and third-party
guarantees assigned to and assumed by Kindred at the time of the spin off. Under Kindred's plan of
reorganization, Kindred assumed and agreed to fulfill these obligations. The total aggregate remaining minimum
rental payments under the third-party leases was approximately $16.0 million as of December 31, 2007, and we
believe that we had no material exposure under the third-party guarantees.

Similarly, in connection with Provident's acquisition of cerain Brookdale-related and Alterma-related
entities in 2005 and our subsequent acquisition of Provident, Brookdale and Alterra agreed, among other things,
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to indemnify and hold Provident (and, as a result of the Provident acquisition, us) harmless from and against
certain liabilities arising out of the ownership or operation of such entities prior to their acquisition by Provident,

We cannot give any assurances that Kindred or such Brookdale Senior Living subsidiaries will have
sufficient assets, income and access to financing to enable them to satisfy, or that they will be willing to satisfy,
their respective obligations under these arrangements. If Kindred or such Brookdale Senior Living subsidiaries
do not satisfy or otherwise honor their respective obligations to indemnify, defend and hold us harmless under
their respective contractual arrangements with us, then we may be liable for the payment and performance of
such obligations and may have to assume the defense of such claims or litigation, which could have a Matenial
Adverse Effect on us.

Brookdale Leases

Subject to certain limitations and restrictions, if during the first six years of the initial term of cur Brookdale
leases assumed in connection with the Provident acquisition we, either voluntarily or at Brookdale's request,
obtain new mortgage debt or refinance existing mortgage debt on property covered by a Brookdale lease, then we
may be required to pay Brookdale the net proceeds from any such mortgage debt financing or refinancing. Also,
subject to certain limitations and conditions, Brockdale may request that we obtain new morigage debt or
refinance existing mortgage debt on the property covered by the Brookdale leases, and we have agreed to use
commercially reasonable efforts to pursue any such financing or refinancing from the holder of the then existing
mortgage debt on the applicable Brookdale property. In connection with any such financing or refinancing, the
rent for the appticable Brookdale property will be increased using a recomputed lease basis increased by an
amount equal to the net financed proceeds paid to Brockdale plus (with limited exceptions) any fees, penalties,
premiums or other costs related to such financing or refinancing. If the monthly debt service on any financed or
refinanced proceeds paid to Brookdale exceeds the rent increase attributable to those financed or refinanced
proceeds, then Brookdale is required 10 pay the excess, In addition, under certain circumstances, Brookdale will
also be required to pay additional amounts relating to increases in debt service and other costs relating to any
such financing or refinancing,
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Note 14—Earnings Per Share

The following table shows the amounts used in computing basic and diluted earnings per common share:

For the Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(In thousands, except
per share amounts)
Numerator for basic and diluted earnings per share:
Income from continuing operations ...........ccvivaiieineiieiaes $146,695 $125964 $119,i22
Preferred stock dividends and issuance costs .. ....... .. ovev i 5,199 — —
Income from continuing operations applicable to common shares ...... 141,496 125964 119,122
Discontinued OPErAtONS . ..o vt vereerr et irrstearrneeroaraseanss 135,623 5,466 11,461
Net income applicable tocommon shares ......................... $277,119 $131,430 $130,583
Denominator:
Denominator for basic eamnings per share—weighted average shares ... 122,597 104,206 95,037
Effect of dilutive securities:
SIOCK OPLONS . ... ittt raraaie e eannasaesranaens 383 511 124
Restricted stockawards ...........c..voiiivininiininnnsenas 14 14 14
Converible NOES . ......ouvirrrer i i iarrssrenes 18 — —
Dilutive potential common stock .........covveiii i 415 525 738
Denominator for diluted earnings per share—adjusted weighted average
1171 ¢ AN 123,012 104,731 95,775
Basic earnings per share:
Income from continuing operations applicable to common shares ...... $ 115§ 121 $ 1325
Discontinued OPErations .. ......ovvvviinrennrenrsoonnirennnee. 1.11 0.05 0.12
Net income applicable to commonshares ...........c...cioeaennnnn § 226 % 126 $ 137
Diluted earnings per share:
Income from comtinuing operations applicable to common shares ...... $ 115 % 120 % 124
Discontinued OPerBHONS ... ....vveueroeriiierrareravrcerassons 1.10 0.05 0.12
Net income applicable to commonsshares .....................00e $ 225 % 125 § 1.36

There were no anti-dilutive options outstanding for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

Note 15—Litigation
Legal Proceedings Defended and Indemnified by Third Parties

Kindred, Brookdale, Alterra, Sunrise and our other tepants, operators and managers are parties to certain
legal actions and regulatory investigations arising in the normal course of their business. In certain cases, the
tenant, operator or manager, as applicable, has agreed to indemnify, defend and hold us harmless against these
actions and investigations. We cannot give any assurance that the resolution of any litigation or investigations,
either individually or in the aggregate, would not have a material adverse effect on Kindred's, Brookdale’s,
Alterra’s, Sunrise’s or such other tenants’, operators’ and managers® liquidity, financial condition or results of
operations, which in turn could have a Material Adverse Effect on us.
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Litigation Related 10 the Sunrise REIT Acquisition

On February 14, 2007, HCP submitted the first of a series of conditional proposals to acquire the assets of
Sunrise REIT at a price per unit of Cdn $18.00 in cash, conditioned upon HCP entering into an agreement with
Sunrise to modify certain of the contracts between Sunrise and Sunrise REIT. In connection with those proposals
from HCP, we, as well as Sunrise REIT, Sunrise and HCP, sought legal interpretations in the Ontario Superior
Court of Justice concerning various agreements pertaining to the acquisition of Sunrise REIT.

On February 21, 2007, we filed an application in the Ontario Superior Court of Justice (Commercial List),
Court File No, 07-CL-6893, seeking, among other things, & declaration from the Court that Sunrise REIT was
obligated, pursuant to its purchase agreement dated as of January 14, 2007 (the “Purchase Agreement”) with us,
to enforce the standstill terms of the agreement dated November 8, 2006 between Sunrise REIT and HCP (the
“Standstill Agreement”). On March 6, 2007, the Ontario Superior Court of Justice released a ruling, declaring
that Sunrise REIT was obligated to comply with its covenants in the Purchase Agreement to enforce the
Standstill Agreement with HCP. The Court also declared that the Standstill Agreement was still in effect,
confirming HCP’s several conditional proposals to purchase Sunrise REIT were not bona fide and were made in
breach of its Standstill Agreement. The Court dismissed the applications filed by Sunrise REIT and Sunrise,
which sought clarification regarding their rights to negotiate with HCP regarding its proposals. On March 23,
2007, the Coust of Appeal for Ontario upheld the decision of the Superior Court.

On April 5, 2007, we commenced an action in the Ontario Superior Court of Justice, Court File
No. 07-CV-330703PD1, to recover from Sunrise REIT damages resulting from, among other things, Sunrise
REIT's breaches of its standstill enforcement obligations in the Purchase Agreement. On April 26, 2007, upon
closing of the Sunrise REIT acquisition, we and Sunrise REIT entered into an agreement to, among other things,
settle this outstanding litigation against Sunrise REIT.

On May 3, 2007, we filed a lawsuit against HCP in the United States District Court for the Western District
of Kentucky, entitled Ventas, Inc. v. HCP, Inc., Case No. 07<v-238-JGH. We assert claims of tortious
interference with contract and tortious interference with prospective business advantage. The complaint alleges
that HCP interfered with our Purchase Agreement to acquire the assets and liabilities of Sunrise REIT and with
the process for unitholder consideration of the Purchase Agreement, The complaint alleges, among other things,
that HCP made certain improper and misleading offers to acquire Sunrise REIT and that HCP’s actions caused us
to suffer substantial damages, including, among other things, the payment of materially greater consideration to
acquire Sunrise REIT resulting from the substantial increase in the purchase price that was agreed to in the
original Purchase Agreement and the delay in closing the acquisidon, as well as the negative movements in the
foreign currency exchange rates and the per share price of our common equity during such delay. We are sceking
monetary relief and punitive damages against HCP. On July 2, 2007, HCP filed its response to our complaint,
along with a motion to dismiss the lawsuit. On August 6, 2007, we filed our response to HCP’s motion to
dismiss. On December 19, 2007, the District Court denied HCP's motion o dismiss. Although we intend 10
pursue the claims in the action vigorously, we cannot assure you that we will prevail on any of the claims in the
action, or, if we do prevail or one or more of the claims, of the amount of recovery that may be awarded to us for
such claims,

Other Litigation

We are a plaintiff in an action seeking a declaratory judgment and damages entitled Ventas Realty, Limited
Partnership et al. v. Black Diamond CLO 1998-1 Ltd., et al., Case No. 99 C107076, filed November 22, 1999 in
the Circuit Court of Jefferson County, Kentucky. Two of the three defendants in that action, Black Diamond
International Funding, Lid. and BDC Finance, LLC (collectively “Black Diamond”), have asserted counterclaims
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| against us under theories of breach of contract, tortious interference with contract and abuse of process. We
dispute the material allegations contained in Black Diamond's counterclaims and we intend to continue to pursue
our claims and defend the counterclaims vigorously, We are unable at this time to estimate the possible loss or
range of loss for the counterclaims in this action, and therefore, no provision for liability, if any, resulting from
this litigation has been made in our Consolidated Financial Statements as of December 31, 2007.

We are party to various other lawsuits, investigations and claims (some of which may not be insured) arising
i in the normal course of our business, including, without limitation, in connection with the operaticns of our
seniors housing communities managed by Sunrise. It is the opinion of management that, except as set forth in this
Note 15, the disposition of these actions, investigations and claims will not, individually or in the aggregate, have
| a Material Adverse Effcct on us. However, we are unable to predict the ultimate outcome of pending litigation,
! investigations and claims, and if management's assessment of our liability with respect to these actions,
; investigations and claims is incorrect, such actions, investigations and claims could have a Material Adverse
Effect on us.

Note 16—Capital Stock

At December 31, 2007, our suthorized capital stock consisted of 300,000,000 shares of common stock, par
value $0.25 per share, and 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $1.00 per share. Our authorized capital
stock at December 31, 2006 and 2005 consisted of 180,000,000 shares of common stock and 10,000,000 shares
of preferred stock.

| In May 2007, we completed the sale of 26,910,000 shares of our common stock in an underwritten public
: offering pursuant to our current shelf registration statement. We received $1.05 billion in net proceeds from the
sale, which we used along with the proceeds of the disposition of the Kindred assets (see “Note 6—
Dispositions”) and borrowings under our unsecured revolving credit facility to redeem all of our outstanding
Series A Senior Preferred Siock and to repay our indebtedness under the senior interim loan used to fund a
portion of the Sunrise REIT acquisition.

Qur automatic universal shelf registration statement, filed with the Commission in April 2006, relates to the
sale, from time to time, of an indeterminate amount of debt securilies and related guarantees, common stock,
preferred stock, depositary shares and warrants. The registration statement replaced our previous universal shelf
registration statement, under which approximately $500.0 million of securitics remained available for offering.

In July 2005, we completed the sale of 3,247,000 shares of our common stock in an underwritien public
offering pursuant to our previous shelf registration statement. We received $97.0 million in net proceeds from the
sale, which we used 1o repay indebtedness under our previous secured revolving credit facility and for general
corporate purposes, including the funding of acquisitions.

In February 2008, we completed the sale of 4,485,000 shares of our common stock in an underwritten public
offering pursuant to our current shelf registration statement. We received $191.9 million in net proceeds, before
expenses but after the underwriting discount, from the sale, which we used in part to repay indebtedness and will
use for working capital and other general corporate purposes, including to fund future acquisitions, if any.

Excess Share Provision

In order to presesve our ability to maintain REIT status, our Certificate of Incorporation provides that if a
person acquires beneficial ownership of greater than 9% of our outstanding common stock or 9.9% of our
outstanding preferred stock, the shares that are beneficially owned in excess of such limit are deemed to be
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excess shares. These shares are automatically deemed transferred 1o a trust for the benefit of a charitable
institution or other qualifying organization selected by our Board of Directors. The trust is entitled to all
dividends with respect to the shares and the trustee may exercise all voting power over the shares,

We have the right to buy the excess shares for a purchase price equal to the lesser of (i) the price per share
in the transaction that created the excess shares, or (ii) the market price on the date we buy the shares, and we
may defer payment of the purchase price for the excess shares for up to five years. If we do not purchase the
excess shares, the trustee of the trust is required to transfer the excess shares at the direction of the Board of
Directors. The owner of the excess shares is entitled to receive the lesser of the proceeds from the sale of the
excess shares or the original purchase price for such excess shares; any additional amounts are payable 10 the
beneficiary of the trust.

The Board of Directors is empowered to grant waivers from the excess share provisions of ovr Certificate of
Incorporation.

Distribution Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan

We have a Distribution Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan. Under the plan’s terms, existing
stockholders may purchase shares of common stock by reinvesting all or a portion of the cash distribution on
their shares of our common stock. In addition, existing stockholders, as well as new investors, may purchase
shares of common stock by making optional cash payments. In March 2005, we began offering a 1% discount on
the purchase price of our stock 10 shareholders who reinvest their dividends and/or make optional cash purchases
of common stock through the plan. The availability of a market discount is at our discretion. The granting of a
discount for one month or quarter, as applicable, will not insure the availability of a discount or the same
discount in future months or quarters, respectively. Each month or quarter, as applicable, we may lower or
eliminate the discount without prior notice. We may also, withou prior notice, change our determination as to
whether common shares will be purchased by the plan administrator directly from us or in the open market,

Note 17—Related Party Transactions

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, we had loan receivables of approximately $2.1 million and $2.5 million,
respectively, due from certain current and former executive officers. The loans include interest provisions (with a
49% average annual intcrest rate) and were made in 1998 and at various times from 1999 through 2002 1o
finance the income taxes payable by the executive officers resulting from: (i) our 1998 spin off of Kindred and
(ii) vesting of restricted shares. The loans are payable over a period of ten years. Interest on a note relating to the
spin off in the principal amount of $0.4 million at December 31, 2007 (the “Spin Off Note™) is paid on a
quarterly basis and principal on this note is paid annually. The payee of the Spin Off Note resigned as an
employee and director of Ventas in January 2003, [n the event of a change in control, as defined in our previous
1997 Incentive Compensation Plan, accrued interest on and the principal balance of the Spin Off Note is
forgiven. Interest on the note relating to \axes paid for the vested portion of restricted shares (the “Restricted
Share Note™) is payable annually out of and only to the exient of dividends from the vested restricted shares. in
the event of a change in control or upon termination of the officer without cause, as such terms are defined in the
relevant employment agreement, the principal balance of the Restricted Share Note is forgiven. The Restricted
Share Note is secured by a pledge of all of the restricted shares to which the Restricted Share Note relates and the
Restricted Share Nole is otherwise non-recourse. The Spin Off Note is not secured.

During 1998, we acquired eight personal care facilities and related facilities for approximately $7.1 million
from Tangram Rehabilitation Network, Inc. (“Tangram”}. Tangram is a wholly owned subsidiary of Res-Care,
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Inc. (“Res-Care™) of which a member of our Board of Directors is the Chairman of the Board. We leasc the
Tangram facilities to Tangram pursuant to a master lease agreement which is guaranteed by Res-Care. For the

years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, Tangram has paid us approximately $917,000, $897,000 and
$863,000, respectively, in base rent payments.

Note 18—Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

Summarized unaudited consolidated quarterly information for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006
is provided below.

For the Year Ended December 31, 2007

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
REVEIMUES & v ieeeet i aniae e tasataneraaernreesrannenn $119,222 $193,722 $226,294 $232,553
Income from continuing operations .............oveeieianas $ 44,144 § 45,136 § 28,014 § 29401
Preferred stock dividends and issuance costs ................. — 5,199 — —
Income from continuing operations applicable to common
] 17 Vo<1 S 44,144 39,937 28,014 29,401
Discontinued Operations .. ......ovuveeinirrraiieriorensaon 962 134,661 —_ —_
Net income applicable to common shares . ................... $ 45,106 $174,598 $ 28,014 $ 29,401
Earnings per share:
Basic:
Income from continuing operations applicable to
cOmmON Shares .. ..... vvenernneninneriiinenns $ 042 $ 034 $ 021 $ 022
Discontinued operations ..........coeveriireannn 0.01 1.15 —_ —
Net income applicable to common shares ............ $ 043 $ 149 $ 021 $ 022
Diluted:
Income from continuing operations applicable 10
COMMON SHAMES ... .vvnveerneninrennrnnnenns $ 041 $ 034 $ 021 § o022
Discontinued Operations ..........covveeiiiniinas 0.01 1.14 —_ —
Net income applicable to common shares . ........... $ 042 $ 148 § 021 § 022
Dividends declared pershare ...........ccooviviiiivieany $ 0475 $§ 0475 3 0475 $ 0475
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2006

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter  Quarter Quarter Quarter
Revenues ... ... ... . ittt e $94,324 $96,736 $106,855 $117,937
Income from continuing operations applicable to common shares . ..  $27,687 $27,607 §$ 30,954 §$ 39,716
Discontinued operations ...............ivviiiiriirriane.. 1,447 1,651 1,287 1,081
Net income applicable to common shares . . .................... $29,134 $29,258 § 32,241 $ 40,797
Eamnings per share:
Basic:
Income from continuing operations applicable to common
shares .. ... e $ 027 § 026 $ 030 $ 038
Discontinued operations ..............c.vveevianesas 0.01 0.02 0.01 0.01
Net income applicable to common shares .. ............ $ 028 § 028 § 031 $ 039
Diluted:
Income from continuing operations applicable to common
ShAIES . it e e $ 027 $ 026 $ 030 $§ 038
Discontinued operations .........................., 0.01 0.02 0.01 0.0]
Net income applicable to common shares .............. $ 028 §$ 028 8 031 $ 039
Dividends declared pershare ..............c.ccoviiiiiiann $0395 $0395 § 0395 § 0395
Note 19—Segment Information

As of December 31, 2007, we operated through two reportable business segments: triple-net leased
properties and senior living operations. Our triple-net leased properties segment consists of financing, owning
and leasing seniors housing and healthcare-related properties in the United States and leasing or subleasing those
properties to healthcare operating companies under “triple-net” or “absolute-net” leases, which require the
tenants to pay all property-related e¢xpenrses. Qur senior living operations segment consists of investments in
seniors housing communities located in the United States and Canada for which we engage Sunrise to manage
the operations.

We acquired the senior living operations segment on April 26, 2007, pursuant to the purchase of the Sunrise
REIT propertics. With the addition of these properties, we believed segment differentiation would be appropriate
based on the different economic and legal structures used to acquire and own those assets. Prior to the
acquisition, we operated through one reportable segment — investment in real estate — which included the
triple-net leased properties and our MOBs. Our MOB segment consists of leasing space primarily to physicians
and other healthcare-related businesses and engaging third parties to manage those operations. Due to our limited
operation of and allocation of capital to the MOBs, we separated them from the triple-net leased properties
segment. However, the MOB segment is not individually reported and is included in “All Other” because it does
not meet the quantitative thresholds of SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related
Information™ at the current time.

We evalvate performance of the combined properties in each segment based on net operating income before
interest (excluding interest income from loans receivable), income taxes, depreciation and amortization, rent reset
costs, reversal of contingent liability, foreign currency gains/losses, general, administrative and professional fees,
merger-related expenses and minority interest. There are no intersegment sales or transfers.
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All other revenues consist primarily of rental income related to the MOBs, interest income from loans
receivable and other miscellaneous income. All other assets consist primanily of MOB assets and corporate assets
including cash, restricted cash, deferred financing costs, notes receivable, and miscellancous accounts receivable.

Summary information by business segment is as follows:

For the year ended December 31, 2007:

Triple-Net ?..iemor

Leased ving
Properties  Operations Al Other Total
(1o thousands)
Revenues:
Rental iICOMIE . ..o i v vr it crtne e ienenaernenss $469,750 $ —  $14,235 $483,985
Resident fees and services .........cconvineenennnn.s —_ 282,226 —_ 282,226
Interest income from loans receivable . ................ —_ — 2,586 2,586
Interestand Other iNCOME . . . ... i irs v rnneanns 2,125 832 37 2,994
TOtal (EVENUES ..o evner et ieanarneeeernnnnees $471,875 $ 283,058 $ 16858 $ 771,791
Segment net operating income . ......... i i niiaans $ 469,673 $ 90,137 §$ 10,862 $ 570,672
INEreStANCOME « . o v iveev et eb vt ta s aaneranaronnn 2,125 766 37 2,928
Otherincome ........ F e e —_ 66 — 66
Merger-related expenses ...... ... iiiiiiiiiiioas _— (2,979 -— (2,979)
Interest €Xpense . ......oviniiiit it (159317)  (43,001) (1,900) (204,218)
Depreciation and amortization .. ..........coeiiia il (128,726) (101,223) (4,112) (234,061)
General, administrative and professional fees ........... —_ — (36,425)  (36,425)
Foreign currency gain (loss) ...........coconvvienn. — 24,400 (120) 24,280
Gain on extinguishment of debt . .............couenin. 88 — — 88
Minorily inferest ...........ooiiiriersinreranrens — (1,721) 23 (1,698)
Net income before taxes and discontinued
OPErALONS « . e vt iveeann i bianrsrerneannss $ 183,843 $ (33,555) $(31,635) $ 118,653
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For the year ended December 31, 2006:

Revenues:

Remtalincome ........ v iiiiiiiriinrnnrrananerns
Interest income from loans receivable .................
Interestandotherincome ...........c.oiviivienennren

TOMAl FEVENUES . . ..o ve it in e eaeiaannnenns

Segment net operating income ...,
Interestincome ........ ..o iviirienninnnrnrnnonnns
Ctherincome ... ......vi it aiias
INterest EXPense . ... ..o v v iuriin i s
Depreciation and amortization .......................
General, administrative and professional fees ...........
Loss on extinguishmentofdebt ......................
RentresetcostS ... ....ovniiinninnvnrenennsenannns
Reversal of contingent liability .. .....................

Net income before taxes and discontinued

OPETALiONS ... ...t ivivmnrvn i r e innrens

For the year ended Decernber 31, 2005:

Revenues:

Renmtal INCOME . . .. it e ittt ie it et ieeanannen
Interest income from loans receivable ..................
Interest and otherincome . ... ... eiii i,

Total revenues ... ..o ittty

Segment net operating income ... ... i iiie e aaes
Interestincome ........... . iiiiirnr s
Otherincome ..........coiiieiiiiirianainainseanas
INtEreSt BXPENSE . ... ..vvvinune i ionrrerennuninnanss
Depreciation and amortization . ......... ... 00iieann.
General, administrative and professional fees ............
L.oss onextinguishmentofdebt .......................
Netgainonswapbreakage ................ooeevnat.
Net proceeds from litigation setilement .................
Contribution to charitable foundation ..................
Netlossonreal estate proceeds ..............c0vven..

Net income before taxes and discontinued

Triple-Net Senlor
Leased Living
Properties Operations Al Other Total
(In thousands)
$ 398,872 $ $ 7,080 3§ 405952
_ —_— 7014 7,014
2,850 —_ 36 2,886
$401,722 $—  $14,130 §415852
$ 398,801 — $ 10,994 § 409,795
2,850 —_ 36 2,386
(135,160) — (1,384) (136,544)
(115232) — (1,940) (117,172)
—_ — (26,136) (26,136)
(1,273) — — (1.273)
(7,361) — —_ (7,361)
1,769 _— —_ 1,769
$ 144,393 $— $(18,430) $ 125,964
Triple-Net Senior
Leased Living
Properties Operations  All Other Total
(In thousands)
$304,515 $— $ 6400 §310915
—_ —_ 5,001 5,001
3,249 — 19 3,268
$307,764 — $ 11,420 $319,184
$304,450 — £ 8,890 $313,340
3,249 — 19 3,268
(99,082) —_ (1,349) (100,43D)
(83,606) _— (1,713 (85,319)
— —_ (25,075} (25,075)
(1,376) _ —_ (1,376)
981 —_ —_ 981
— — 15,909 15,909
— - (2,000) (2.000)
{175) — — (175)
$124,441 $— $ (5.319) $ 119,122
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As of December 31,
2007 2006
(In thousands)
Assets: .
Triple-net leased properties . . ... e $3.012,510 $3,210,774
Senior living Operations .........coiiiiiieneiieniiaaaeians 2,506,780 —
Al Other AS5e1S ...t ittiti ittt is i et i ia e e 197,338 43,026
Total @55€1S ... vvvertiienrrs et e seen $5,716,628  $3,253,800
For the Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)
Capital expenditures:
Triple-net leased Properties ... ....vvivrevvnrnrnones $ 10,107 $490,311 $583,619
Senior living operations ............c.ieeiiiias. 1,231,083 —_ —
All other expenditures ............c.coiiiiiverrnaes 127,636 368 5933
Total capital expenditures ..................... $1,368,826  $490,679  $589,552

Our portfolio of properties and real estate investments: are located in the United States and Canada.
Revenues are attributed to an individual country based on the location of each property.

Geographic information regarding our business segments is as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)
Revenue;
United SIAtES . ...ttt ierrrirerannenes $724,899 $415,852 $319,184
Canada .......oii it i s 46,892 — —_
TOAlEVEAUES . v vvreiivne e iansarasrasnns $771,791 3415852 $319,184
As of December 31,
2007 2006
(In thousands)
Long-lived assets:
United StaES ... uvt e iinre v o rar i tsnsneneranneras $5,005,632  $3,048,253
0 1T s 468,381 —
Total long-lived assets ................ et raaeaeeneaaan $5.474,013  $3,048,253

Note 20—Condensed Consolidating Information

We and cenain of our direct and indirect whelly owned subsidiaries (the “Wholly Owned Subsidiary
Guarantors™) have fully and unconditionally guaranteed, on a joint and several basis, the obligation to pay
principal and interest with respect to the Senior Notes of the Issuers. Ventas Capital Corporation is a wholly
owned direct subsidiary of Ventas Realty that was formed to facilitate the offering of the Senior Notes and has no
assels or operations. In addition, Ventas Realty and the Wholly Owned Subsidiary Guarantors have fully and
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unconditionally guaranteed, on a joint and several basis, the obligation to pay principal and interest with respect
to our Convertible Notes. ETOP, of which we own substantially all of the partnership units, and certain of its
wholly owned subsidiaries (the “ETOP Subsidiary Guarantors™ and collectively, with the Wholly Owned
Subsidiary Guarantors, the “Guarantors™), have also provided a guarantee, on a joint and several basis, of the
Senior Notes and the Convertible Notes. We have other subsidiaries (“Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries™) that are not
included among the Guarantors, and such subsidiaries are not obligated with respect to the Senior Notes or the
Convertible Notes. Contractual and legal restrictions, including those contained in the instruments governing
certain Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries’ outstanding indebtedness, may under certain circumstances restrict our
ability 10 obtain cash from our Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries for the purpose of meeting our debt service
obligations, including our guarantee of payment of principal and interest on the Senior Notes and our primary
obligation to pay principal and interest on the Convertible Notes. Certain of our real estate assets are also subject
to mortgages. The following summarizes our condensed consolidating information as of December 31, 2007 and
2006 and for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005:

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

As of December 31, 2007
ETOP Wholly
and ETOP Owned Non-
Ventas, Subsidiary Subsidiary Guarantor Consolidated
Inc. Guarantors  Guarantors  [ssuers  Subsidiarles Elimination Consolidated
(In thousands)
Assets
Net real estate investments .... $ 10,793 $51,923 $2,086,143 $ 874,031 $2471,121 § —  $5,494,011
Cash and cash equivalents . .... — —_— 5,388 494 22,452 —_ 28334
Escrow deposits and restricted
cash ... ................ 214 — 23,703 6,341 23,819 _ 54,077
Deferred financing costs, net . .. 419 — 401 14,101 7,915 — 22,836
Notes reccivable-related
PAITIES .. ..oivnininiinnnos 1,717 — — 375 —_ _ 2,092
Investment in and advances to
affiliates ................. 1,114,775 9,039 — 956,394 — (2,080,208} —
Other .......oiiiinneeenns —_ 714 49,510 15,433 49,621 — 115,278
Total assets ............ $1,127.918 561,676 $2,165,145 $1,867,169 $2,574,928 $(2,080,208) $5,716,628
Liabilities and stockholders’
equity
Liabilities:
Senior notes payable and other
Bebl ... e $ 226323 § 400 $ 539,812 $1,457,168 $1,136,796 § —  $3,360,499
Intercompany loans .. ........ (44,47 7,500 578,502  (541,655) — — -
Deferredrevenue ............ ®) — 568 5,463 3042 — 9,065
Accruedinterest .. ........... (796) 3 2,886 16,621 2,076 — 20,790
Accounts payable and other
accrued liabilities.......... 12,264 112 61,891 45,567 53,742 — 173,576
Deferred income taxes .. ...... 297,550 —_— _— — —_ — 297,590
Total liabilities . ......... 491,026 8,015 1,183,659 983,164 1,195,656 ~ 3,861,520
Minority interest ............ 393 —_ _ 2,115 28,946 — 31,454
Total stockholders’
equity ... nn- 636,499 53,661 981486 881,890 1,350,326 (2,080,208) 1,821,654
Total liabilities and

stockholders” equity . $1,127,918  $61,676 $2,165.145 $1,867.169 $2,574,928 $(2.080,208) $5.716,628
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

As of December 31, 2006

ETOP Wholly
and ETOP  Owned

Non-

thas, Sobsidiary Subsidiary Guarantor Consolidated
Guaranters Goarantors  Issuers  Subsidiaries Elimination Coasolidated
(In thousands)
Assets
Net real estate investments ........ $ 11,444 $§54,062 $1,479352 § 978,700 $560,342 $ —  $3,083,900
Cash and cash equivalents ........ - — — 779 467 -— 1,246
Escrow deposits and restricted
€ash ......ovieeiiiieia, 230 _— 53,410 5,630 20,769 —_ 80,039
Deferred financing costs,net ...... 1,106 — —_ 17,279 30 —_ 18,415
Notes receivable-related parties .. .. 1,716 - — 750 - - 2,466
Investment in and advances to
affiliates .......c.o0viineon.. 343,967 9,039 —_ 871,692 — (1,224,698) -—
Other ...oovvviriiiiener e —_ 652 26,546 28,264 12,272 —_ 67.734
Total assets ... .. oovvniveres $358,463 $63,753  $1,559,308 $1,903,094 $593,880 $(1,224,698) $3,251,800
Liabilities and stockholders’
equity
Liabilitics:
Senior notes payable and other
debl ...ovrii i $225469 $ 413 S 415312 $1,369,633 $318226 § —  $2,329,053
INEFCOMPANY oo ovvvarevnnnnnns —_ 7.500 125,000  {132,500) — —_ _
Deferred revenue . .. ....coveennns 18 — — 8.176 — —_ 8,194
Accrued dividend ............... 41,926 23 _— — —_ _— 41,949
Accrued INErest ... .oivea e — 103 1,788 16,230 1,808 —_ 19,929
Accounts payable and other accrued
liabilities ..........cccueivus 1,472 103 52,296 43,642 16,499 _— 114,012
Deferred income taxes ........... 30,394 —_ — —_ —_ —_— 30,394
Total liabilities ............. 299,279 8,142 594,396 1,305,181 336.533 — 2,543,531
Minority interest ................ 393 —_ —_— — —_— — 393
Total stockholders’ equity .... 58,791 55,611 964,912 597913 257347 (1,224.698) 709,876
Total habilities and
stockholders’ equity ....... $358,463 $63,753 $1,559,308 $1,903,094 $593,880 $(1,224,698) $3,253,800
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the year ended December 31, 2007

ETOP  Wholly

and ETOP Owned Non-
Subsidiory Subsidiary Guarantor Consolidated
Veotas, Inc. Guarantors Guarantors Issuers Subsidiaries Elimination Consolidated
(In thousands)
Revennes:
Remalincome .............uun $ 2248 $5754 S128,015 $2832,935 $ 64033 § —  $483,985
Resident fees and services ....... —_ — 13,714 - 208,512 - 282,226
Interest income from loans
receivable ........ ... ...l —_ — — 2,586 —_ _ 2,586
Equity eamings (loss) in
affiliates ................... 250,530 (227) 6,154 — - (256,457) —
Interest and other income .. ...... 82 153 362 1,460 937 -— 2,994
Total revenues ............ 252,860 5,680 208,245 287,981 273482 (256,457 171,791
Expenses;
Interest ........ccovviiiiennnn 875 36 27314 122665 53,328 — 204,218
Depreciation and amortization .. .. 648 2,145 84,304 49,147 97817 _— 234,061
Property-leve] operating
EXPEOSES .. .vve i — —_ 49,700 — 148425 - 198,125
General, administrative and
professional fees . ............ 1,337 409 11470 19,198 4,011 —_— 36,425
Foreign currency (gain) loss .. ... . 120 — 12 (24317} (95) - (24,280)
Gain on extinguishment of debt ... —_ — - {88) — - (88)
Merger-related expepses . . ... .. .. —_ — 2,198 739 42 - 2,979
Intercompany interest ........... (4,396) (233) 30,586 (26,791) 834 — —
Total expenses ............ (1416) 2,357 205584 140,551 304,362 —_ 651,440
Income (loss) before income taxes,
minority interest and discontinued
OPCTALONS .....0vvrenvrvnnrerens 254,276 3,323 2,661 147428 (30,880) (256457) 120,351
Income tax bepefit ................. 28,042 — — — — — 28,042
Income (loss) before minority interest
and discontinued operations .. ... .. 282,318 3323 2661 147428 (30.880) (256,457) 148,393
Minority interest, netoftax . ......... —_ — (1.055) — 2,753 — 1,698
Income (loss) from continuing
OPerations .. .........oeeeuvernns 282318 3323 3716 147428 (33,633) (256457) 146,695
Discontinued operations . ............ — — — 135623 — -_ 135,623
Netincome (loss) ......o00vuvennan 282,318 3323 3,716 283,051 (33,633) (256457) 28318
Preferred stock dividends and issuance
L 5.199 — — — — — 5,199
Net income (loss) applicable to common
shares ... ... ... .ol $277,119  $3,323  § 3,716 3283051 $(33,633) $(256,457) 8277119
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the year ended December 31, 2006

ETOP  Wholly

and ETOP Owned Non-
Ventns, Subsidiary Subsidiary Guarantor Consofidated
Inc. Guarantors Guarantors lssuers Subsidlaries Elimination Consclidated
(In thonsands)
Revenues;
Rental income ... ............ $ 2317 $5722 $87,948 $254529 855436 $ — £405,952
Interest income from loans
receivable ................. —_ — —_ 7,014 — — 71.014
Equity earnings (loss) in
affiliates ..........oco0vnnn 128,902 (99) 4,179 —_ — (132,982) —
Interest and other income ... .... 9 —_ 37 2412 358 —_ 2,886
Total revenues ........... 131,298 5,623 92,164 263955 55,794 (132,982) 415,852
Expenses:
Interest . .......ccoveennnnnns 86 35 20,770 93,138 22515 —_ 136,544
Depreciation and amortization . , . 6713 2,144 42,508 49326 22,521 —_ 117,172
Property-level operating
EXPENSES ... ovvrnnrrnennns — - - 904 2,267 — 317
General, edministrative and
professional fees ............ 878 402 5471 16,029 3,356 — 26,136
Rentresetcosts . ......... Ceees — —_ — 7,361 — e 7.361
Reversal of contingent lisbility ..  (1,769)  — — — — — (1,769}
Loss on extinguishment of
debl . ..o e — —_ — 1,273 —_ —_ 1273
Intercompany interest .......... — (115 —_ (600) 715 -_— —_
Total expenses ........... {132) 2,466 68,749 167431 51,734 — 289,888
Income from continuing operations ... 131,430 3,157 23415 96,524 4,420 (132,982) 125964
Discontinued operations ............ — —_ — 5,466 —_ — 5,466
Net income applicable to common
ShATES . ....vverrincenriiinenas $131,430 $3,157  $23.415 S§101,990 § 4420  $(132,982) $131430
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the year ended December 31, 2005

ETOF  Whoby

and ETOP Owned Noo-
Subsidiary Subsidiary Guarantor Consclidated
Ventas, Ine. Guarantors Guarantors Issuers  Subsidiaries Elimination Consolidated
(In thousands)
Revenues;
Rentalincome ... ......,...... $ 2349 $568) §47014 $220,879 $34990 § — $310915
Interest income from loans
receivable . ............0... —_ - 977 4,024 —_ —_ 5,001
Equity eamings (loss} in -
affiliates ................... 130,026 {48)) 9,218 —_ - (138,761) —_—
Interest and other income ....... 75 93 1,309 1,702 89 — 3,268
Total revepues ............ 132450 5,293 58,518 226,605 35,079 (138.761) 319,184
Expenses
Interest ......... ... iiiieins — 36 11,047 75122 14,226 —_ 100,431
Depreciation and amortization ... 690 2,140 23,699 45052 13,738 - 85,319
Property-level operating )
EXPENSES . ..o veyrrnanerrnns — —_ — 428 2,148 - 2,576
General, administrative and
professional fees ............ 1,177 609 3,810 16,661 2818 — 25075
Loss on extinguishment of debt . . . —_ — -— 1,376 —_— —_ 1,376
Net gain on swap breakage ...... —_ — - (981) —_ _ (981)
Net proceeds from litigation .
setlement . ................. —_ — —_ (15,909} — —_ (15,909
Contribution to charitable
foundation ................. —_ —_ —_ 2,000 —_ -— 2,000
Intercompany interest .......... — (25) — (599) 624 - =
Total expenses ............ 1,867 2,760 38,556 123,150 33554 —_ 199,887
Income before net loss on real estate '
disposals and discontinued
OpEralions . ...........covuvevn- 130,583 2,533 19962 103.455 1,525  (138,761) 119,297
Net loss on real estate disposals . .. . . — —_ —_ (175 — — (175)
Income from continuing
Operations .. ............cevuans 130,583 2,533 19962 103,280 1,525 {138,761) 119,122
Discontinued operations . .......... — 5441 — 6,020 — —_ 11,461
Net income applicable to common
shares ............. .., $130,583 $7.974 $19,962 $109,300 § 1,525 ${138,761) $130,583
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended December 31, 2007

ETOP Wholly

and ETOP  Owned Non-
Ventas, Subsidiary Subsidiary Guarantor Cousolldated
Inc. Guarantors Guarantors  Issuers  Subsidiaries Elimination Consolidated
(In thousands)
Net cash provided by operating
activities ..............0ven $ 22852 $5309 $ 60628 § 212004 § 99017 $— $ 399810
Net cash (used in) provided by
investing activities, .......... 1y — (542,326) 180,755 (B11,804) —_ (1,173,376)
Cash flows from financing
activities:
Net change in borrowings
under revolving credit
facility ................ —_ - — 92,300 - — 92,300
Net change in borrowings
under Canadian credit
facility ................ — —_ 84,286 — — — 84,286
Issuance of bridge
financing .............. — —_ - 1,230,000 — - 1,230,000
Repayment of bridge
financing .............. —_ — —  (1,230,000) —_— —_ (1,230,000}
Proceeds fromdebt . ....... —_ —_ — —_ 53,832 — 53,832
Repaymentof debt ........ — (13) (124,344) (5,001) (55.253) — (134,613)
Net change in intercompany
debt ..ol (44,347) —_ 453502  (409,155) — - —
Debt and preferred stock '
{SSURCE COSIS (v vruvnts (4,300) —_ — — — — (4,300
Payment of deferred
financing costs. ......... — —_ (497) (275) (7,084) — (7,856)
Issuance of common stock .. 1,045,713 —_ —_ — — — 1,045,713
Cash distribution to preferred
stockholders, ........... (3.449) — —_ — — — (3.449)
Cash distribution {to) from
affiliates .............. (746,388) (5.177) 74,139 (65,853) 743279 _— -
Cash distribution to common
stockholders ........... (282,620) (9 -— - — — (282,739)
Other ..........ooalt 12,540 —_ —_ (65) — — 12,475
Ne1 cash provided by (used in)
financing activities .......... (22,851) (5.309) 487,086  (3B8,049) 734,7M2 — 805,649
Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents. ..., —_ —_ 5,388 4,710 21,985 — 32,083
Effect of forcign currency
translation on cash and cash
equivalents. ................ —_ — — (4,995) — — (4.995)
Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year ........... - — —_ 779 467 = 1,246
Cash and cash equivalents at cnd
ofyear. .......ociiiiians 5 — $ — & 5388 5 494 § 22,452 $— $ 28334
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended December 31, 2006

ETOP  Wholly

and ETOP  Owned Non-
Subsidiary Subsldizry Guarantor Consolidated
Ventas, Inc. Guarantors Guarantors Issuers Subsldiaries Elimination Consolidated
{In thousands)
Net cash provided by opernting
activities .........viiiiiiiiin, $ 608 $4618 §51568 $160,833 § 21,240 $— $ 238,867
Net cash used in investing activities . . . — —_ —  (481,640) (334) - (481,974}
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net change in borrowings under
unsecured revolving credit
facility ........ocoeuiu... - —_— — 57,000 - — 57,000
Nei change in borrowings under
secured revolving credit
facility ... it — — — (89,200) - - (89,200)
Proceeds fromdebt ............ 225,469 — — 221,462 2,074 — 449,005
Repaymentofdebt ............ — (1) (9.813) -— (6.260) - (16,084)
Payment of deferred financing
4. . — - - {4,876) —_ — (4.876)
Issuance of common stock .. .... 831 —_ - — —_ — 831
Procesds from stock option
EXercises .................. 6,634 —_ — — —_ — 6,634
Cash distribution (to) from
affiliates . .........o0vvvnnsn (73,232) (4,321) {41,755y 136,173 (16.865) —_ -
Cash distribution to
stockholders ............... (160,311) {287 -_— —_— —_ - {160,598)
Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities .............. (609) (4,619) (51,568) 320,559 (21,051) —_ 242,12
Net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents ...............0.l.n (3} (¢))] — (248) (145) —_ (395)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
cofyear ... ... i 1 1 -— 1,027 612 — 1,641
Cash and cash equivalents at end of
T S 3 — 5§ — 5 — ¥ 779 § 467 — $ 1,246
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended December 31, 2005

ETOP  Wholly

end ETOP Ovwned Non-
Subsidiary Subsidiary Guosrantor Consolidated
Ventas, Inc. Guarantors Guarantors Issuers Subsidlaries Elimination Consolidsted
) (In thousands)
Net cash provided by opcrating
BCUVIHES ... .ouviuininarvnnnns $ 1563 $ 6221 § 25890 $ 178,047 $ 12,043 — $ 223,764
Net cash (used in) provided by
investng activitics . .............. (17,321) 10,228 —  (607.948) —_— — {615,041)
Cash flows from financing activitics:
Net change in borrowings under
secured revolving credit
facility ......cooiiiin - - — 50,200 — — 50,200
Proceeds fromdebt ............ — —_ — 600,000 - —_ 600,000
Issuance of intercompany note .. . - — 125,000 (125,000) — — —_
Repaymentofdebt ............ — £9,242) (2,158) (217,173)  (3.415) - (231,988)
Payment of deferred financing
COSES ..t - — — (9.279) — — (9,279
Issuance of common stock ...... 101,964 — — —_ _ —_ 101,964
Proceeds from stock option
ERETCISES .. vvveninvenrennn 6,819 —_ — — -— — 6,819
Payment of swap breakage fee .. . — - —_ (2.320) —_ —_ (2,320)
Cash distribution from {to)
affiliates . .................. 325714 (7,046) (148,735} 132,648 (9.441) — —
Cash distribution to
stockholders ............... (125,646) (197) —_ — —_ — (125,843)
Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities .............. 15,711 (16,485)  (25,893) 429,076 (12,856) —_ 389,553
Net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents ..............coo.an “n (36) 3) (825) (813) —_ {1,7129)
Cash and cash equivalents 2t beginning
Of YEAr .. vrvr it 43 37 3 1,852 1,425 —_ 3,365
Cash and cash equivalents at end of
L 1 2 $ 15 1 s — $ 1,027 § 612 $— $ 1641
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Note 21—ETOP Condensed Consolidating Information

ETOP, of which we own substantially all of the partmership interests, and the ETOP Subsidiary Guarantors
have provided full and unconditional guarantees, on a joint and several basis with us and certain of our direct and
indirect wholly owned subsidiaries, of the obligation to pay principal and interest with respect to the Senior
Notes and the Convertible Notes. See *“Note 19-—Condensed Consolidating Information.” Certain of ETOP's
other direct and indirect wholly owned subsidiaries (the “ETOP Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries”) have not provided
a guarantee of the Senior Notes or the Convertible Notes and, therefore, are not directly obligated with respect to
the Senior Notes or the Convertible Notes.

Contractual and lepal restrictions, including those contained in the instruments governing certain of the
ETCOP Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries’ outstanding indebtedness, may under certain circumstances restrict ETOP’s
(and therefore our) ability to obtain cash from the ETOP Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries for the purpose of
satisfying ETOP's and our debt service obligations, including ETOP's and our guaraniec of payment of principal
and interest on the Senior Notes and our primary obligation to pay principal and interest on the Convertible
Notes. See “Note 9—Borrowing Amrangements.” Certain of the ETOP Subsidiary Guarantors’ properties are
subject to mortgages.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
As of December 31, 2007

ETOP and

ETOP ETQOP

Subsidiary Non-Guarantor Consoltdated

Guarantors  Subsidiaries Elimination  Consolidated

(In thousands)
Assets
Net real estate inVeSUDENIS. ... ...uerieereerrerosaneersen $51,923 $82.914 $— $134,897
Cashand cashequivalents ..............ociviianeana s — -_ — —
Escrow deposits and vestricted cash .. ... . iiiiiii i, - 7,536 —_ 1.536
Investment ip and advances w affiliates ...._ ... .......... 9,039 — —_ 9,039
Other ....ooeevniinininss e ey 714 1,534 — 2,248
TOAl ASSLLS .. .. vvvuieneteanca oty $61,676 $92,044 e $153.720
Liabilities and partners’ capital
Liabilities:
Notes payable and otherdebl . ... .. ... . ....oiiiiiinn, $ 400 $63,891 — $ 64,291
Note payable toaffiliate ..................covvevanionnn 1.500 - — 7.500
Accrueddividend .. ... ...t it e - - — -
Accruedinterest .......... ..ot iiii i i 3 413 —_— 416
Accounts payable and other accrued Labilities .............. 112 3,071 — 3,183
Total liabilities .. ...oovirire i iiiineeerennns 8,015 67,375 —_— 75,390
Total partners’ capital .. .... ... .. i 53,661 24,669 — 78,330
Total liabilities and partners’ capital .................. 361,676 $92,044 $— $153,720
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VENTAS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

As of December 31, 2006
ETOP and
ETOP ETOP
Sobsidiary Non-Guarantor Consolidated
Guarantors Subsidiaries Elimination  Consolidated
(In thousands)
Assets
Netreal estale INVESINENLS . .. .. oviteeriarrnrarsrransrrnnss $54,062 586,058 — $140,120
Cash and cash eQUIVAIEDIS . ... e.vuurnrecnneenneinsianns - 336 - 336
Escrow deposits and restricted cash .. ... oo i — 6,543 — 6,543
Investment in and advances to affiliates . ...................... 9,039 - —_ 9,039
L1 ¢ - 652 1 .526 _—_:_ 2. 178
TORAY OSSELS + .o v nrveursronnsnnasaarnensentasanans £63,753 $94,463 S_—_ $158,216
Liabilities and partners’ capital
Liabilides:
Notes payable and otherdebl .. .....covvinniiineiienenins $ 413 $65,386 $— $ 65,799
Note payzble o affiliate . ..........cooovvei i ann 7.500 - — 7,500
Accrued dividend .......oovviriiiitii et 23 — — 23
FXT 1 17— 1~ I 103 422 —_ 525
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities ................. 103 3,095 el 3,198
Total liabilities .. oot iiiiivareiametiiresanrannes 8,142 68,903 -_— 77.045
Total partners’ capital . . ... oo 55,611 25,560 — 81,171
Total liabilities and partners’ capital .................000 $63.,753 $94.463 t_ $158,216
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the year ended December 31, 2007
ETOP and
ETO?P ETOP
Subsidiary Non-Guarantor Consolidated
Guarantors Subsidiaries Elimination  Consolidated
(In thonsands)
Revenues:
Rental iNCOME. .. vvvvvvrveerernenroncrnesans $5,754 §10,861 $— $16,615
Interest and otherinCome ... ..o vvveernenrerrans 153 158 — 3in
Equity loss in affiliates. ..............c.o00ens (227) — 227 —
TotaAl FEVENUES ... .cvviirrvsnnsnannnsonss 5,680 11,019 227 16,926
Expenses:
TIREEESE .« o oo st iennnmarnnacaeeaanen 36 4,952 _ 4,988
Depreciation and amortization . ................. 2,145 3221 - 5,366
Property-level operating €Xpenses. .............. — 1,597 — 1.597
General, administrative and professional fees. ..... 409 643 — 1,052
Intercompany interest ....... ... 0ieiiiaaennn (233) 833 — 600
TOtAl XPENSES ..\ vuvevnnvreannrecoananns 2,357 11,246 — 13,603
Netincome (I058) . .o\ vvrieerrranccroaaaneaneiion $3,323 $ 227 $227 $ 3,323
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VENTAS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the year ended December 31, 2006

ETOP and
ETOP ETOP
Subsidiary Non-Guarantor Cousolidated
Guarantors  Sul Elimination  Counsolidated
(In thousands)
Revenues:
Remtalincome ............ccciiiivirraannnnn $5,722 $10,787 — $16,509
Inmerestand otherincome ...................... - 126 —_ 126
Equity loss in affiliates ....................... (99) —_ 9 —_
Towlrevenues ..............covivvvnnnn. 5,623 10,913 99 16,635
Expenses:
1T (=T AU 35 5,060 — 5,095
Depreciation and amortization . ................. 2,144 3,194 —_ 5,338
Property-level operating expenses ............... — 1,448 — 1,448
General, administrative and professional fees . .. ... 402 595 —_ 997
Intercompany interest ..............cvveeinnn, (115) 715 — 600
Total eXPEnSES .. vuvevur i neniviiannnes 2,466 11,012 — 13,478
Net income (JOSS) .o vvvvernerinreansnarsiorneenss $3,157 5 9 $ 99 $ 3,157
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the year ended December 31, 2005
ETOP and
ETOP ETOP
Subsidiary Noo-Guarantor Consolldated
Guarsntors  Subsidiaries Elimination Consolidated
(In thousandds)
Revenues:
Rentalincome ...........coovvviiiiinineann, $5,683 $10,695 — $16,378
Interest and otherincome . ....o.ovvveceeennnnnn. 923 56 —_ 149
Equity lossin affiliates ............. ... .. ..., (483) — 483 —
Totalrevenues ...........c.covivuneennnns 5,293 10,751 483 16,527
Expenses:
L8132 3 O 36 5,161 — 5,197
Depreciation and amortization . ................. 2,140 3,167 —_— 5,307
Property-tevel operating expenses ............... - 1,430 — 1,430
General, administrative and professional fees . ... .. 609 851 — 1,460
Intercompany interest ................00ia (25) 625 — 600
Total expenses ...........c.couvrvannven.. 2,760 11,234 — 13,994
Income (loss) from continuing operations . ............ 2,533 (483) 483 2,533
Discontinued operations ................. . 0coeiin. 5441 — - 5.441
Netineome (1o88) . .oovii it iiiienr s $7.974 $ (483) $483 $ 7974
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VENTAS, INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended December 31, 2007

ETOP and
ETOP ETOP
Subsidiary Non-Gueranlor Consolidated

Guarantors  Subsidiaries Elimination  Consolidated
(Ia thousands}
Net cash provided by operating activities ............. $ 5,309 $2,187 $— $ 2,496
Net cash used in investing activities ................. —_— (135) —_ (135)
Net cash used in financing activities ................. . {5,309) {2,388) _ {7,697)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ............. — {336) —_— (336)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ........ — 336 — 336
Cash and cash equivalents atendof year ............. $ — $ — $— § —
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended December 31, 2006
ETOP and
ETOP ETOP
Subsidlary  Non-Guarantor Consolidated
Guareniors  Subsidiaries  Ellmination  Consolidated
(In thousands)
Net cash provided by operating activities ............. $ 4,618 $ 2,873 $— $ 7,491
Net cash used in investing activities ................. — (259) — (259)
Net cash used in financing activities ......... e (4,619) (2,716) — (7,335)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents . ............ n (102) — {103)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ........ 1 438 — 439
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year ............. 3 — $ 336 $— $ 336
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended December 31, 2005
ETOP and
ETOP ETOP
Subsidiary Non-Guarantor Consolidated
Guarantors  Subsidiaries Elimination  Consofidated
(In thousands)
Net cash provided by operating activities ............. $ 6221 $ 1410 — $ 7631
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities ... ... 10,228 {25) —_ 10,203
Net cash used in financing activities .............. ... (16,485) (2,120) — (18,605)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents . . ........... (36) (735) _ (771)
Cash and cash equivatents at beginning of year ........ 37 1,173 —_ 1,210
Cash and cash equivalents atendof year ............. $ 1 $ 438 — $ 439
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VENTAS, INC.

SCHEDULE I
REAL ESTATE AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
December 31, 2007
{Dollars in Thousands)

For the Years Ended December 31,

007 2006 2008
Reconciliation of real estate:
Carrying cost:
Balance at beginning of period . ......... ... iy $3,707,837 $3,027,896 $1.512.211
Additions during period:

ACQUISIHONS . ... ..ioittt i is i it i 2,619,050 679573 1,521,098

Capital expenditures ............ovivnieemreriannneiiiiiaes 6,372 368 25
Dispositions:

Sale Of ASSELS .o . iii i i it e (82,274) - (5,438)
Foreign currency translation ...............ooiiiiiii i 39,380 —_ —
Balance atendof period ..., i $6,290,365 $3,707,837 $3,027,896
Accumulated depreciation:

Balance at beginning of period ......... .. oo e, $ 659584 3 541,346 $ 454,110
Additions during period:

Deprecialion EXPense . ....vvvuvrrrvenirarerieiairrresions 175494 118,238 87,559

Acquisitions — minority interestshare . . ..........coviineias 20,482 - —
Dispositions:

Sale Of aS56LS ..ot it it i e e {40,212) — (323)
Foreign currency translation ..........oiviiinnnerianrranneennes 1,004 — —
Balance atendofperiod .......... .ottt $ 816352 $ 659,584 § 541,346
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ITEM 9,  Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
Not applicable.

ITEM 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As required by Rules 13a-15(b) and 15d-15(b) of the Exchange Act, our management, with the participation
of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure
controls and procedures as of December 31, 2007. Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and
15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) were effective as of December 31, 2007, at the reasonable assurance level.

Interna) Control Over Financial Reporting

The information set forth under “Management Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting™ and
“Repont of Independemt Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control over Financial Reporting”
included in Part IT, ltem 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K is incorporated by reference into this Tiem 9A.

Internal Control Changes

During the fourth quarter of 2007, there were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) that have materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially. affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. Other Information
Not applicable.
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PART I

ITEM 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by this Item 10 is incorporated by reference to the material under the headings
“Proposal 1: “Election of Directors,” “Executive Officers,” “Corporate Govemnance” and “Section 16(a)
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in our definitive Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders, which we will file with the Commission not later than April 30, 2008.

ITEM 11,  Executive Compensation

The information required by this ftem 11 is incorporated by reference to the material under the headings
“Non-Employee Director Compensation” and “Executive Compensation Matters” in our definitive Proxy
Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which we will file with the Commission not later than
April 30, 2008,

ITEM 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

The information required by this Item 12 is incorporated by reference to the material under the headings
“Equity Compensation Plan Information” and “Security Ownership of Principal Stockholders, Directors and
Executive Officers” in our definitive Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which we
will file with the Commission not later than April 30, 2008,

ITEM 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information required by this tem 13 is incorporated by reference to the material under the headings
“Transactions with Related Persons” and *Corporate Govemance™ in our definitive Proxy Statement for the 2008
Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which we will file with the Commission not later than April 30, 2008.

ITEM 14.  Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this Item 14 is incorporated by reference to the material under the heading
“Audit Matters” in our definitive Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which we will
file with the Commission not later than April 30, 2008.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedules

The following documents have been included in Part {1, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2007 and 2006
Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and
2005
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Consolidated Financial Statement Schedule
Schedule III—Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation

All other schedules have been omitted because they are inapplicable, not required or the information is
included elsewhere in the Consolidated Financial Statements or notes thereto.

Exhibits
Exhibit
Number Description of Document Location of Document
2.1.1 Purchase Agreement dated as of January 14, 2007 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to
among Ventas, Inc.,, Ventas SSL Ontario I, Inc. our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on
(formerly 2124678 Ontario Inc.), Ventas SSL  January 19, 2007.
Ontario II, Inc. (formerly 2124680 Ontario Inc.),
Sunrise REIT, Sunrise REIT Trust and Sunrise REIT
GP, Inc.
212 Amendment to Purchase Agreement dated as of Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to
April 10, 2007 among Ventas, Inc., Ventas SSL our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on
Ontario I, Inc. (formerly 2124678 Ontario Inc.), April 12, 2007.
Ventas SSL Ontario 1I, Inc. (formerly 2124680
Ontario Inc.), Sunrise REIT, Sunrise REIT Trust and
Sunrise REIT GP, Inc.
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to
of Ventas, Inc. our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 2007.
32 Third Amended and Restated Bylaws of Ventas, Inc.  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to
our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 1997,
4.1 Specimen common stock certificate. Incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit 4.1 to
our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 1998,
4.2.1 Ventas, Inc. Distribution Reinvestment and Stock Incorporated by  reference to  our

Purchase Plan,
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Registration Statement on Form S§-3, as
amended, File No. 333-65642.



Exhibit
Number

Description of Bocument

4272

43

44

10.1.1

10.1.2

10.1.3

10.1.4

10.2.1

Amendment t0  Ventas, Inc. Distribution

Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan.

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of
December 1, 2006 by and among Ventas, Inc. and
Banc of America Securities LLC, J.P. Morgan
Securities Inc. and Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner &
Smith Incorporated, as Initial Purchasers.

Certain instruments with respect to long-term debt of
Ventas, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries are not
filed herewith pursuant to Item 601(b)(4)(iii) of
Regulation S-K, since the total amount of securities
authorized under cach such instrument does not
exceed 10% of the total assets of Ventas, Inc. and its
subsidiaries on a consolidated basis, Ventas, Inc.
agrees to furnish a copy of any such instrument to
the Commission upon request.

Second Amended and Restated Master Lease
Agreement No. 1 dated as of April 27, 2007 for lease
executed by Ventas Realty, Limited Partnership, as
Lessor, and Kindred Healthcare, Inc. and Kindred
Healthcare Operating, Inc., as Tenant.

Second Amended and Restated Master Lease
Agreement No. 2 dated as of April 27, 2007 for lease
executed by Ventas Realty, Limited Partnership, as
Lessor, and Kindred Healthcare, Inc. and Kindred
Healthcare Operating, Inc., as Tenant.

Second Amended and Restated Master Lease
Agreement No. 3 dated as of April 27, 2007 for lease
executed by Ventas Realty, Limited Partnership, as
Lessor, and Kindred Healthcare, Inc. and Kindred
Healthcare Operating, Inc., as Tenant.

Second Amended and Restated Master Lease
Agreement No. 4 dated as of April 27, 2007 for lease
executed by Ventas Realty, Limited Partnership, as
Lessor, and Kindred Healthcare, Inc. and Kindred
Healthcare Operating, Inc., as Tenant.

Form of Property Lease Agreement with respect to
the Brookdale properties.

145

Location of Document

Incorporated by reference to our Prospectus
Supplement dated December 8, 2003 to the
Prospectus dated January 23, 2002, filed
pursuant to Rule 424(b)(5) and part of our
Registration Statement on Form S-3, as
amended, File No. 333-65642.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to
our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on
December 6, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on
May 3, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to
our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on
May 3, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to
our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on
May 3, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to
our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on
May 3, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14
to  Provident Senior Living Trust's
Registration Statement on Form S-11, as
amended, File No. 333-120206.




Exhibit
Number

Description of Document

10.2.2

10.2.3

10.24.1

10.2.4.2

10.2.5

10.2.6.1

10.2.6.2

10.2.7.1

10.2.7.2

10.2.7.3

Form of Lease Guaranty with respect to the
Brookdale properties.

Schedule of Agreements Substantially Identical in
All  Material Respects to  the agreements
incorporated by reference as Exhibits 10.2.1 and
10.2.2 1o this Annual Report on Form 10-K, pursuant
to Instruction 2 to Item 601 of Regulation S-K.,

Agreement Regarding Leases dated as of October
19, 2004 by and between Brookdale Provident
Properties LLC and PSLT-BLC Properties Holdings,
LLC.

Letter Agreement dated March 28, 2005 by and
among Brookdale Provident Properties LLC, PSLT-
BLC Properties Holdings, LLC and Ventas
Provident, LLC (successor to Provident Senior
Living Trust).

Guaranty of Agreement Regarding Leases dated as
of October 19, 2004 by Brookdale Living
Communities, Inc. in favor of PSLT-BLC Properties
Holdings, LLC.

Tax Matters Agreement dated as of June 18, 2004 by
and among Fortress Brookdale Acquisition LLC,
BLC Senior Holdings, Inc. and Ventas Provident,
LLC (successor to Provident Senior Living Trust).

Letter Agreement dated March 28, 2005 by and
among Fortress Brookdale Acgquisition LLC,
Brookdale Living Communities, Inc. and Ventas
Provident, LLC (successor to Provident Senior
Living Trust) relating to the Tax Matters Agreement.

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of June 18,
2004, among Fortress Brookdale Acquisition LLC,
Ventas Provident, LLC (successor to Provident
Senior Living Trust) and BLC Senior Holdings, Inc.

Amendment No. 1 to Stock Purchase Agreement
dated as of August 2, 2004 among Fortress
Brookdale Acquisition LLC, Ventas Provident, LL.C
(successor to Provident Senior Living Trust) and
BLC Senior Holdings, Inc.

Amendment No. 2 to Stock Purchase Agreement
dated as of October 17, 2004 among Fortress
Brookdale Acquisition LL.C, Ventas Provident, LLC
(successor to Provident Senior Living Trust) and
BLC Senior Holdings, Inc.
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Location of Document

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17
to Provident Senior Living Trust’s
Registration Statement on Form S$-11, as
amended, File No. 333-120206.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to
our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 2005.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15
to Provident Senior Living Trust’'s
Registration Statement on Form S5-11, as
amended, File No. 333-120206.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19
to  Provident Senior Living Trust's
Registration Statement on Form S-11, as
amended, File No. 333-120206.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16
to Provident Senior Living Trust’s
Registration Statement on Form S-11, as
amended, File No. 333-120206.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18
to Provident Senior Living Trust's
Registration Statement on Form S-11, as
amended, File No. 333-120206.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20
to Provident Senior Living Trust’s
Registration Statement on Form S-11, as
amended, File No. 333-120206,

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11
to Provident Senior Living Trust’s
Registration Statement on Form S-11, as
amended, File No. 333-120206.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12
to Provident Senior Living Trust's
Registration Statement on Form S-11, as
amended, File No. 333-120206.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10,13
to Provident Senior Living Trust's
Registration Statement on Form S-11, as
amended, File No. 333-120206.




Description of Document

10.2.8

10.3.1

10.3.2

10.3.3

Exhibit

Number
10.4
|

10.5.1

105.2

10.6

10.7
| 10.8*
|

i 10.9.1*

Amended and Restated Stock Purchase Agreement,
dated as of October 19, 2004, between Alterra
Healthcare Corporation and Ventas Provident, LLC
(successor to Provident Senior Living Trust).

Credit and Guaranty Agreement dated as of April 26,
2006 among Ventas Realty, Limited Partnership, as
borrower, Ventas, Inc. and the other guarantors
named therein, as guarantors, Bank of America,
N.A., as Administrative Agent, Issuing Bank and
Swingline Lencler, and the lenders identified therein.

" Modification Agreement dated as of March 30, 2007

to Credit and Guaranty Agreement among Ventas
Realty, Limited Partnership, the Guarantors and
Lenders signatory thereto and Bank of America,
N.A.

First Amendment dated as of July 27, 2007 to Credit
and Guaranty Agreement among Ventas Realty,
Limited Partnership, the Guarantors and Lenders
signatory thereto and Bank of America, N.A.

Letter Agreememt dated as of January 14, 2007
between Ventas, Inc. and Sunrise Senior Living, Inc.

Agreement Regarding Leases dated as of
November 7, 2006 by and between Senior Care
Operations Holdings, LLC and Ventas Realty,
Limited Partnership.

Guaranty of Agreement Regarding Leases dated as
of November 7, 2006 by Senior Care, Inc. in favor of
Ventas Reslty, Limited Partnership.

Interim Loan and Guaranty Agreement dated as of
April 26, 2007 among Ventas, Inc., Ventas Realty,
Limited Partnership, Merrill Lynch Capital
Corporation, as Administrative Agent, Citigroup
Global Markets Inc., as Syndication Agent, Merrill
Lynch & Co., Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner &
Smith and Citigroup Global Markets Inc., as Joint
Lead Armangers and Joint Book Runners, and the
lenders referred to therein.

Purchase Agreement dated April 26, 2007 between
Ventas, Inc., Ventas Realty, Limited Partnership and
the Purchasers named therein.

TheraTx, Incorporated 1996 Stock Option/Stock
Issuance Plan.

1987 Incentive Compensation Program.
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Location of Document

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21
to Provident Senior Living Trust's
Registration Statement on Form S-11, as
amended, File No. 333-120206.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
May 2, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on
August 1, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to
our Annual Report en Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9.1
to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2006,

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9.2
to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on
May 1, 2007,

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to
our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on
May 1, 2007,

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to

the Registration Statement on Form S-8 of
TheraTx, File No, 333-15171.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to
our Registration Statement on Form S-1, as
amended, File No. 033-30212,




Exhibit

Amendment to the 1987 Incentive Compensalion

Amendment to the 1987 Incentive Compensation

Amendment to the 1987 Incentive Compensation

Amendment to the 1987 Incentive Compensation

Program dated September 27, 1995.

Amendment to the 1987 Incentive Compensation

Amendment to the 1987 Incentive Compensation

Amendment to the 1987 Incentive Compensation

Program dated as of December 31, 1998.

Ventas, Inc. 2000 Incentive Compensation Plan, as

Ventas, Inc. Common Stock Purchase Plan for

Ventas, Inc. 2004 Stock Plan for Directors, as

Form of Stock Option Agreement—2006 Incentive

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement—2006

Number Description of Document
10.9.2*

Program dated May 15, 1991.
10.9.3+

Program dated May 18, 1994,
10.9.4*

Program dated February 15, 1995,
10.9.5*
10.9.6*

Program cffective May 15, 1996,
10.9.7*

Program dated April 30, 1998.
10.9.8*
10.10*

amended.
10.11*

Directors.
10.12*

amended.
10.13.1* Ventas, Inc. 2006 Incentive Plan.
10.13.2*

Pian.
10.13.3*

Incentive Plan.
10.14.1*

Ventas, Inc. 2006 Stock Plan for Directors,
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Location of Document

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to
our Registration Statement on Form 3-8, as
amended, File No. 033-40949,

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13
to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 1994.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14
to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 1994,

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17
to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 1995,

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10,19
to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 1996.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13
to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended June 30, 1998.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.30
to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 1998.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14.1
10 our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2004,

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 0.1 to
our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 2001,

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16.1
to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2004,

Incorporated by reference to Annex A to our
definitive Proxy Statement for the 2006
Annual Meeting of Stockholders, filed on
April 5, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15.2
to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2006,

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15.3
to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2006,

Incorporated by reference to Annex B to our
definitive Proxy Statement for the 2006
Annual Meeting of Stockholders, filed on
April 5, 2006.




Exhibit

Number Description of Document

10.14.2*  Form of Stock Option Agreement—2006 Stock Plan
for Directors,

10.14.3* Form of Restricted Stock Agreement—2006 Stock
Plan for Directors.

10.14.4*  Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement—2006
Stock Plan for Directors.

10.15.1*  Ventas Executive Deferred Stock Compensation
Plan.

10.15.2* Deferral Election Form under the Ventas Executive
Deferred Stock Compensation Plan,

10.16.1*  Ventas Nonemployee Director Deferred Stock
Compensation Plan.

10.162*  Deferral Election Form wunder the Ventas
Nonemployee Director Deferred Stock
Compensation Plan:

10.17* Form of Indemnification Agreement for directors of
TheraTx, Incorporated.

10.18* Directors and Officers Insurance and Company
Reimbursement Policies.

10.19* Amended and Restated Employment Agreement
dated as of December 28, 2006 between Ventas, Inc.
and Debra A. Cafaro.

10.20.1* Employment Agreement dated as of July 31, 1998
between Ventas, Inc. and T. Richard Riney.

10.20.2* Amendmem dated as of September 30, 1999 to
Employment Agreement dated as of July 31, 1998
between Ventas, Inc. and T, Richard Riney.

10.20.3* Amendment dated as of March 19, 2007 to
Employment Agreement dated as of July 31, 1998
between Ventas, Inc. and T. Richard Riney.

10.204*  Change-in-Control Severance Agreement dated as of
May 1, 1998 between Ventas, Inc. and T. Richard
Riney.

10.20.5* Amendment to Change-in-Control Severance

Agreement dated as of September 30, 1999 between
Ventas, Inc. and T. Richard Riney.
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Location of Document

Incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit 10.16.2
to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16.3
to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16.4
to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to
our Registration Statement on Form S-8,
File No. 333-118944,

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to
our Registration Statement on Form S-8,
File No. 333-118944.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to
our Registration Statement on Form S-8,
File No. 333-118944.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to
our Registration Statement on Form S-8,
File No. 333-118944.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13
to the Registration Statement on Form §-1
of TheraTx, File No. 033-78784.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 1995,

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
our Current Repont on Form B-K, filed on
January 5, 2007.

Incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit
10.15.2.1 two our Annval Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002,

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.15.2.2 to our Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002,

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 10
our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on
March 23, 2007,

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.15.2.3 1o our Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.15.2.4 to our Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002,




Exhibit
Nomber

Description of Document

10.20.6* .

10.21.1*

10.21.2*

10.22.1*

10.22.2*

10.23»

10.24.1*

10.24.2*

10.24.3*

10.25

10.26.1

10.26.2

10.26.3

10.27.1

Amendment dated as of March 19, 2007 to Change-
in-Control Severance Agreement dated as of May |1,
1998 between Ventas, Inc. and T. Richard Riney.

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement
dated as of December 31, 2004 between Ventas, Inc.
and Richard A. Schweinhart.

Amendment dated as of March 19, 2007 to Amended
and Restated Employment Agreement dated as of
December 31, 2004 berween Ventas, Inc. and
Richard A. Schweinhart.

Employment Agreement dated as of September 18,
2002 between Ventas, Inc. and Raymond J. Lewis,

Amendment dated as of March 19, 2007 1o
Employment Agreement dated as of September 18,
2002 between Ventas, Inc. and Raymond J. Lewis.

Employment Agreement dated as of November 10,
2005 between Ventas, Inc. and Robert J. Brehl.

Resignation and Release Agreement dated January
28, 2003 between Ventas, Inc. and W. Bruce
Lunsford.

Promissory Note entered into as of June 15, 1998
between Ventas Realty and W. Bruce Lunsford.

Amendment to Promissory Note entered into as of
December 31, 1998 between Ventas Realty and W,
Bruce Lunsford.

First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited
Partnership of Ventas Realty, Limited Partnership.

Second Amended and Restated Agreement of
Limited Partnership of ETOP.

Second Amendment to Second Amended and
Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of
ETOP, dated October 13, 1999,

Consent of General Partner and Third Amendment to
Second Amended and Restated Agreement of
Limited Partnership of ETOP, dated June 7, 200S.

Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited
Partnership of PSLT OP, L.P.
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Location of Docament

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 10
our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on
March 23, 2007,

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to
cur Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
January 6, 2005.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to
our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on
March 23, 2007.

Incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit 10.3 to
our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 2002,

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to
our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on
March 23, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
November 15, 2005.

Incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit 10.17.1
to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2002,

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17.2
to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2002,

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to
our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 1998,

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.5 to
our Registration Statement on Form S$-4, as
amended, File No, 333-89312.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
ElderTrust's Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 1997.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to
ElderTrust's Annval Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 1599,

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to
ETOP’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
on June 10, 2005.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to
Provident Senior Living Trust's Registration
Statement on Form S-11, as amended, File
No. 333-120206.




Exhihit
Nuntber

Description of Docament

10.27.2

12

21
23
31.1

31.2

321

322

Supplement tw the Amended and Restated
Agreement of Limited Partnership of PSLT OP,
L.P., dated as of August 3, 2004,

Statement Regarding Computation of Ratios of
Eamings to Fixed Charges.

Subsidiaries of Ventas, Inc.
Consent of Emst & Young LLP.

Certification of Debra A. Cafaro, Chairman,
President and Chicf Executive Officer, pursuant to
Rule 13a-14(a) under the Exchange Act.

Centification of Richard A. Schweinhart, Executive
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, pursuant
to Rule 13a-14(a) under the Exchange Act.

Certification of Debra A. Cafaro, Chairman,
President and Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to
Rule 13a-14(b) under the Exchange Act and 18
U.S.C. 1350.

Certification of Richard A. Schweinhart, Executive
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, pursuant
to Rule 13a-14(b) under the Exchange Act and 18
U.5.C. 1350,

Setilement Agreement dated as of April 10, 2007
between Ventas, Inc. and Sunrise REIT,

Location of Document

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10
to Providemt Senior Living Trust's
Registration Statement on Foerm S-11, as
amended, File No. 333-120206.

Filed herewith.

Filed herewith.
Filed herewith.
Filed herewith.

Filed herewith,

Filed herewith.

Filed herewith.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to
our Current Report on Formn 8-K, filed on
April 12, 2007.

* Managemém contract or compensatory plan or arrangement required 1o be filed as an exhibit pursuant to
Item 15(c) of Form 10-K.
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securitics Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant
has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: February 28, 2008
VENTAS, INC.
By: /s/ DEBRA A. CAFARO

Debra A. Cafaro
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
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fs/ DeBRA A. CAFARO Chairman, President and Chief February 28, 2008
Debra A, Cafaro Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ _RICHARD A. SCHWEINHART Executive Vice President and Chief February 28, 2008
Richard A. Schweinhart Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)
/s/ ROBERTJ. BREHL Chief Accounting Officer and February 28, 2008
Robert J. Brehl Controller

{(Principal Accounting Officer)

/s DoucLas CROCKER I . Director February 28, 2008

Douglas Crocker 1
fsi RONALD G. GEARY Director February 28, 2008

Ronald G. Geary
/s/  Jaxy M. GELLERT Director February 28, 2008
Jay M. Gellert

fs!  SHEL! Z. ROSENBERG Director February 28, 2008

Sheli Z, Rosenberg
! /s/ THOoMAS C. THEOBALD Director February 28, 2008

Thomas C. Theobeld
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